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Definitions

In this report (excluding the section of the financial report), the following expressions shall have the meanings 

stated below unless the context otherwise requires:

DEFINITIONS OF FREQUENTLY-USED TERMS

A Share(s) Renminbi-denominated ordinary share(s) of the Company with 

a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, all of which are issued in 

China, subscribed in Renminbi and listed on the SSE

Articles of Association the articles of association of the Company (as amended from 

time to time)

Audit Committee the audit committee under the Board of the Company

Bank of Chengdu Bank of Chengdu Co., Ltd.

Board the board of directors of the Company

CG Code the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the 

Listing Rules

Companies Ordinance the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the 

Laws of Hong Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise 

modified from time to time

Company Law the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China

Company, Xinhua Winshare or 

  Listed Company

Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.* (新華文軒出

版傳媒股份有限公司)

Controlling Shareholder or Sichuan Xinhua 

  Publishing and Distribution Group

Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group Co., Ltd.

COVID-19 Coronavirus Disease 2019
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Definitions (continued)

Director(s) the director(s) of the Company

Group the Company and its subsidiaries

H Share(s) overseas listed foreign share(s) of the Company with a nominal 

value of RMB1.00 each, all of which are issued in Hong Kong, 

subscribed in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Stock 

Exchange

Hainan Phoenix Hainan Phoenix Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Co., Ltd.

Hua Sheng Group Chengdu Hua Sheng (Group) Industry Co., Ltd.

Liaoning Publication Group Liaoning Publication Group Co., Ltd.

Listing Rules the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock 

Exchange and/or the Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on 

the SSE, as the case may be

Model Code the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of 

Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

Nomination Committee the nomination committee under the Board of the Company

Open Book Data monitoring data publicly published by Beijing OpenBook Co., 

Ltd.

Period or Reporting Period from 1 January 2022 to 30 June 2022

PRC or China the People’s Republic of China (for the purpose of this interim 

report, excluding Hong Kong, the Macao Special Administrative 

Region of the PRC and Taiwan)

Remuneration and Review Committee the remuneration and review committee under the Board of 

the Company

RMB Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

Sales value the list price of books printed at the back of each book
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Definitions (continued)

Same Period of Last Year from 1 January 2021 to 30 June 2021

SASAC of Sichuan State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration 

Commission of the Sichuan Provincial Government

SFO Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571, Laws of Hong 

Kong

Shareholder(s) H shareholder(s) and A shareholder(s) of the Company

Sichuan Cultural Investment Group Sichuan Cultural Industry Investment Group Co., Ltd.

Sichuan Development Sichuan Development (Holding) Co., Ltd.

SSE Shanghai Stock Exchange

Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Strategy and Investment Planning Committee the strategy and investment planning committee under the 

Board of the Company

Supervisor(s) the supervisor(s) of the Company

Supervisory Committee the supervisory committee of the Company

Wan Xin Media Anhui Xinhua Media Co., Ltd.

Winshare Hengxin Winshare Hengxin (Shenzhen) Equity Investment Fund 

Partnership (Limited Partnership)

Winshare Investment Winshare Investment Co., Ltd.

Winshare Online Sichuan Winshare Online E-commerce Co., Ltd.

Winshare September the digital content reading service platform under Winshare 

Online

winxuan.com The online sales platform of paper publications under Winshare 

Online

*  For identification purposes only
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Important Notice

I.	 The Board, the Supervisory Committee, Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company 

warrant that this interim report is true, accurate and complete and does not contain any false records, 

misleading statements or material omission and jointly and severally take full legal responsibility as to the 

contents herein.

II.	 Except for Mr. Liu Longzhang, an executive Director, and Mr. Dai Weidong, a non-executive Director, 

who appointed Mr. Ke Jiming, a non-executive Director, and Mr. Zhang Peng, a non-executive Director, 

respectively, to vote on their behalf due to other business commitments, other Directors attended the 

eighth meeting of the fifth session of the Board in 2022 held on 25 August 2022 at which this interim 

report was considered and approved.

III.	 The consolidated financial statements included in this interim report are unaudited.

IV.	 Mr. Luo Yong, the head of the Company, Mr. Ma Xiaofeng, the person-in-charge of accounting affairs, and 

Ms. Wu Sufang, the head of accounting department, declare that they warrant the truthfulness, accuracy 

and completeness of the financial statements contained in this interim report.

V.	 The Board did not recommend payment of the interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2022.

VI.	 The forward-looking statements included in this interim report, including future plans and development 

strategies, do not constitute actual commitment of the Company to investors. Investors should be 

reminded of the risks of investment.

VII.	 During the Period, there were no major risks that would have a material impact on the production and 

operations of the Company. Please read the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of 

this interim report for details of the risk factors that may be involved as set out by the Company.
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Corporate Information

LEGAL NAME OF THE COMPANY

新華文軒出版傳媒股份有限公司

COMPANY NAME IN ENGLISH

XINHUA WINSHARE PUBLISHING 

AND MEDIA CO., LTD.*

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Luo Yong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Luo Yong (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Longzhang (Vice chairman)

Mr. Li Qiang

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Dai Weidong

Mr. Ke Jiming

Mr. Zhang Peng

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Tsz Bun

Mr. Fang Bingxi

Mr. Li Xu

BOARD COMMITTEES

Strategy and Investment Planning Committee

Mr. Luo Yong (Chairman)

Mr. Dai Weidong

Mr. Li Qiang

Audit Committee

Mr. Lau Tsz Bun (Chairman)

Mr. Fang Bingxi

Mr. Ke Jiming

Remuneration and Review Committee

Mr. Li Xu (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Tsz Bun

Mr. Liu Longzhang

Nomination Committee

Mr. Fang Bingxi (Chairman)

Mr. Li Xu

Mr. Zhang Peng

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Supervisors

Mr. Tang Xiongxing (Chairman)

Mr. Chao Hsun

Ms. Wang Yan

Ms. Wang Yuanyuan

Independent Supervisors

Mr. Feng Jian

Ms. Wang Li

* For identification purposes only
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Corporate Information (continued)

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Yang Miao

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Ke Jiming

Ms. Yang Miao

ALTERNATE AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

  Certified Public Accountants LLP

30th Floor, Bund Center

222 Yan An Road East

Shanghai, China

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER

Li & Partners

22nd Floor, World-Wide House

19 Des Voeux Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE PRC

Unit 1, Block 1

No. 238, Sanse Road

Jinjiang District

Chengdu, Sichuan Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN 
HONG KONG

40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

248 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

China Construction Bank

HONG KONG H SHARES REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.winshare.com.cn

STOCK CODE

00811 (H Share)

601811 (A Share)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(I)	 BUSINESS REVIEW

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In the first half of 2022, favorable policies for promoting the development of the cultural industry continued 

to be released. “National reading” has been included in the Government Work Report for the ninth 

consecutive year, and it was transformed from “advocacy” to “in-depth promotion”, meaning that national 

reading would enter a new stage of development. The State successively issued policy documents such 

as the Implementation Opinions on Promoting the Development of In-depth Integration of Publishing  

(《(關於推動出版深度融合發展的實施意見》) and the Opinions on Promoting the Implementation of the 

National Culture Digitalization Strategy (《關於推進實施國家文化數字化戰略的意見》), providing good 

development opportunities for the integrated development of the publishing industry. The central and local 

governments introduced a series of policy measures to promote consumption, which were conducive 

to boosting cultural consumption, activating the consumption vitality of the book market and enhancing 

the confidence on enterprise development.

In the first half of 2022, COVID-19 spread in multiple places in China, resulting in a regional and phased 

shutdown of the publishing industry in terms of production, printing, logistics and distribution. The book 

market was affected to a certain extent. According to Open Book Data, in the first half of 2022, the 

book retail market experienced a 13.8% year-on-year decline. In particular, the physical store channel 

decreased by 39.7% year-on-year, whereas the online store channel decreased by 5.8% year-on-year. 

Against the trend, the short video e-commerce channel increased by 60% year-on-year. The impact of 

the COVID-19, technological transformation, and changes in reading and consumption habits drove the 

publishing industry to innovate and accelerate transformation and upgrading. Physical bookstores actively 

deployed online channels and gradually formed a model of online and offline integrated development. 

The traditional publishing business continued to make efforts in the direction of mobile, video and audio, 

accelerating the pace of product, service and model innovation with digital technology.

RESULTS

The Group deeply implemented the “three chains” strategy of “strengthening the chain, upgrading 

the chain and extending the chain”, continued to improve its production and distribution capabilities 

of high-quality products and creations, actively promoted the integrated innovation development and 

achieved both social benefits and economic benefits, thereby contributing to the construction of a strong 

cultural province and a strong publishing province.

During the Period, the Group recorded revenue of RMB4,980 million, representing growth of 6.83% as 

compared with the Same Period of Last Year, which was mainly due to the sales growth of businesses 

such as education service and online sales of the Group. The Group achieved net profit of RMB715 

million, representing growth of 19.19% as compared with the Same Period of Last Year, which was 

mainly attributable to the increase in profit brought by sales growth, the increase in interest income from 

bank deposits and the compensation income received by several subsidiaries for housing demolition and 

relocation during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

REVENUE

During the Period, the Group recorded revenue of RMB4,980 million, representing growth of 6.83% as 

compared with RMB4,662 million in the Same Period of Last Year, which was mainly due to the sales 

growth of businesses such as education service and online sales of the Group.

OPERATING COSTS

During the Period, operating costs of the Group amounted to RMB3,083 million, representing growth 

of 12.00% from RMB2,753 million in the Same Period of Last Year, among which, costs of principal 

businesses amounted to RMB3,078 million, representing growth of 12.05% as compared with the Same 

Period of Last Year. The increase in operating costs was mainly due to the increase in costs caused by 

the expansion of sales scale, and the change of transportation and logistics expenses incurred for the 

performance of contractual obligations to be included in operating costs as contractual performance 

costs.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

During the Period, consolidated gross profit margin of the Group was 38.08%, down by 2.86 percentage 

points from 40.94% in the Same Period of Last Year, among which, gross profit margin of principal 

businesses was 37.22%, down by 2.93 percentage points from 40.15% in the Same Period of Last 

Year. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the effect of adjustment of contractual 

performance costs. Excluding such factor, the gross profit margin of principal businesses decreased by 

0.41 percentage points as compared with the Same Period of Last Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ANALYSIS OF OPERATING SEGMENTS

1.	 Overview of Principal Business Segments

The operating businesses of the Group are divided into the publication segment and the distribution 

segment.

The principal businesses of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2022 by segment are 

as follows:

Analysis table of principal businesses by segment

RMB

By segment

Principal

 business income

Principal 

business costs

Gross profit 

margin (%)

Change of 

principal 

business 

income as 

compared 

with the 

Same Period 

of Last 

Year (%)

Change of 

principal 

business 

costs as 

compared 

with the 

Same Period 

of Last 

Year (%)

Change of 

gross profit 

margin as 

compared 

with the 

Same Period 

of Last 

Year (ppt)
       

I.	 Publication 1,099,613,019.50 719,679,242.37 34.55 (7.32) (4.78) (1.75)

Textbooks and supplementary materials 639,859,479.08 365,568,169.04 42.87 (5.48) (1.25) (2.45)

General books 335,709,777.32 263,061,978.04 21.64 (5.95) (0.25) (4.48)

Printing and supplies 93,537,050.78 73,922,083.11 20.97 (26.45) (30.45) 4.54

Newspapers and journals 24,964,504.11 13,580,371.31 45.60 32.67 33.33 (0.27)

Others 5,542,208.21 3,546,640.87 36.01 (15.18) (35.15) 19.71

II.	 Distribution 4,394,651,771.08 3,024,490,559.64 31.18 7.98 12.17 (2.57)

Education service 2,872,937,011.60 1,726,690,601.29 39.90 8.82 13.46 (2.46)

Of which: �Textbooks and supplementary  

  materials 2,685,805,125.31 1,568,698,598.06 41.59 7.79 11.49 (1.94)

Education informatized and  

  equipment businesses 175,876,779.62 149,112,558.15 15.22 75.99 81.80 (2.71)

Online sales 1,164,728,571.78 1,068,416,889.57 8.27 11.30 17.34 (4.72)

Store sales 295,429,235.68 187,343,604.10 36.59 6.64 7.76 (0.65)

Others 61,556,952.02 42,039,464.68 31.71 (42.01) (53.40) 16.70

III.	 Others 205,514,584.65 191,699,058.64 6.72 16.23 16.99 (0.60)

Of which: Logistics services 203,537,072.94 190,226,343.28 6.54 18.99 17.90 0.87

Inter-segment elimination total (796,436,550.36) (857,521,106.62)
   

Total 4,903,342,824.87 3,078,347,754.03 37.22 6.82 12.05 (2.93)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

2.	 Operating Data of the Business Segments

(1)	 Publication segment

The publication segment of the Group covers publishing of publications including books, 

newspapers and journals, audio-visual products and digital products; provision of printing 

services and supply of printing materials.

During the Period, revenue from the principal businesses of the publication segment 

amounted to RMB1,100 million (including domestic sales), representing a decline of 7.32% 

as compared with the Same Period of Last Year, among which, the revenue of textbooks 

and supplementary materials publication, general books publication, printing and materials, 

etc., recorded a decrease as compared with the Same Period of Last Year.

During the Period, gross profit margin of the publication segment was 34.55%, representing 

a decrease of 1.75 percentage points from 36.30% in the Same Period of Last Year, which 

was mainly due to the decrease in gross profit margin of textbooks and supplementary 

materials publication and general books publication.

Publication of Textbooks and Supplementary Materials

The Group continued to strengthen its capabilities in the education publishing’s strategic 

planning, market expansion and education service. Focusing on the fundamental task of 

cultivating virtuous talents, the Group advocated the excellent tradition, advanced reform 

and innovation, and created with our hearts high-quality textbooks that could cultivate 

the root of soul and enlighten students. In the first half of the year, the Group initiated the 

revision of national standard teaching materials and local teaching materials in accordance 

with the new curriculum plans and curriculum standards for compulsory education; newly 

prepared the supplementary materials for evaluation in accordance with the requirements 

of new textbooks and new college entrance exam to accommodate to the use of new 

textbooks for high schools in Sichuan Province; and developed new products that 

could better help students reduce burden and improve quality in order to adapt to the 

requirements of the “double reduction” policy. At the same time, the Group also successively 

launched serial products such as After-school Hierarchical Training for the Excellent (《課

外培優分層訓練》), Standard Language Copybook (《語文規範字書寫字帖》), Easy Job to 

Learn Characters (《識字太容易了》), Mathematical Thinking Training (《數學思維訓練》), 

Xueba Classroom Notes (《學霸課堂筆記》) and the thematic educational reader Prevention 

and Self-rescue of Geological Disasters for Primary School Students in Sichuan Province (《

四川省小學生地質災害防範與自救》), so as to improve the structure of education products.

During the Period, the Group’s revenue from the principal business of the publication of 

textbooks and supplementary materials business amounted to RMB640 million (including 

domestic sales), representing a decrease of 5.48% as compared with the Same Period 

of Last Year, mainly affected by timing difference of revenue recognition; and cost of the 

principal businesses amounted to RMB366 million, representing a decrease of 1.25% as 

compared with the Same Period of Last Year. Gross profit margin was 42.87%, down by 

2.45 percentage points as compared with the Same Period of Last Year, mainly affected 

by the increase in paper costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Publication of General Books

Under the strategic guidance of “revitalizing the publishing industry in Sichuan Province”, 

the Group adhered to the guidance and control, strengthened quality management, 

improved publishing planning, optimized topic selection structure, and steadily promoted 

various major publication projects. In the first half of the year, the Group focused on the 

theme and launched key theme books such as Love China with the Whole Life: The Story 

of Isabel Crook (《我用一生愛中國：伊莎白•柯魯克的故事》) and Golden League (《黃金

團》); deeply explored local resources and continued to promote the thematic publications 

of “Sanxingdui” such as Encounter With Sanxingdui (《遇見三星堆》), Explore Sanxingdui (

《探秘三星堆》) and Dragon Sanxingdui (《龍騰三星堆》) and the implementation of Tibet 

Pharmaceutical Encyclopedia (《藏醫藥大全》) and Bashu cultural heritage projects such 

as Bashu Rare Genealogy Manuscript Collection (《巴蜀珍稀家譜鈔稿本匯編》) and Bashu 

Rare Ethnic Group Literature Collection (《巴蜀珍稀民族文獻匯刊》); obtained subsidies 

from the 2022 National Publication Foundation for nine projects including Porcelain Changes 

the World (《瓷器改變世界》); received the third prize of the Sichuan News Award for the 

serial reports including Thousand-year-old Mystery of Sanxingdui (《三星堆千年未解之謎》), 

and won the thematic award at the 9th “Jinqing Award” for The “Latest” of Sanxingdui (《

三星堆「上新」》); and cooperated with relevant institutions to launch the first blockchain 

book integration project “Digital Collections (數字藏書)” in China, which attracted the 

attention of the industry. The Group’s efforts in “Going Out” achieved remarkable results, 

with 254 copyrights of various types exported and physical books valued at RMB1,700,000 

exported. According to the Open Book Data, in the first half of 2022, the actual value market 

share of the Group’s general books ranked 8th among 37 publishing and media groups in 

China, up by 2 places as compared with the end of 2021.

During the Period, the Group’s revenue from the principal business of the general book 

publication business amounted to RMB336 million (including domestic sales), representing 

a decline of 5.95% as compared with the Same Period of Last Year, which was due to a 

certain degree of impact of factors such as the resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic and 

the closure and suspension of logistics in some regions in the first half of the year. Cost of 

the principal businesses amounted to RMB263 million, representing a decrease of 0.25% 

as compared with the Same Period of Last Year. Gross profit margin was 21.64%, down 

by 4.48 percentage points as compared with the Same Period of Last Year. The decrease 

in gross profit margin was mainly due to sales concession, changes in channel structure 

and the adjustment of contractual performance costs.

Newspapers and journal business

The Group has 13 newspaper and journal brands (comprising 2 newspapers and 11 

journals, including newspapers and journals run by the publishing houses), covering culture, 

children, popular science, fashion and other categories. The audience covers all age groups 

from infants to middle-aged and elderly people.

During the Period, 14,100,200 copies were distributed by the newspapers and journal 

business of the Group. Revenue from the principal businesses amounted to RMB24,964,500, 

increased by 32.67% from the Same Period of Last Year. Costs of the principal businesses 

amounted to RMB13,580,400, increased by 33.33% from the Same Period of Last Year. 

The gross profit margin was 45.60%, dropped by 0.27 percentage points from the Same 

Period of Last Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

(2)	 Distribution segment

The distribution segment of the Group covers distribution of textbooks and supplementary 
materials to schools, teachers and students and supply of education informatized and 
equipment service for secondary and primary schools; retailing, distribution and online 
sales of publications.

During the Period, revenue from the principal businesses of the distribution segment of 
the Group amounted to RMB4,395 million, representing growth of 7.98% as compared 
with the Same Period of Last Year, mainly benefitting from the sales growth of businesses 
such as textbooks and supplementary materials, education informatized and equipment 
business and online sales.

During the Period, gross profit margin of the distribution segment of the Group was 31.18%, 
down by 2.57 percentage points from 33.75% in the Same Period of Last Year, mainly 
due to the adjustment of contractual performance costs. Excluding such factor, the gross 
profit margin remained basically the same as compared with the Same Period of Last Year.

Education Service

The education service business includes the distribution of textbooks and supplementary 
materials to schools, teachers and students, and the provision of primary and secondary 
school education informatized and education equipment service to primary and secondary 
schools.

In the first half of 2022, the Group gave full play to the advantages of content resource 
integration and sales network, refined and deepened education service, adhered to 
the purpose of meeting customer needs, and subdivided customers into the groups 
of preschool, compulsory, high school and vocational education. By means of channel 
optimization and business integration, the Group continued to enhance its capabilities 
in product research and development and marketing service to adapt to the classroom 
teaching and after-school service needs of the “double reduction” policy and achieve 
sustained growth of education service. As to textbooks, through continuously strengthening 
the synergies of upstream and downstream, the Group enhanced its planning and focused 
on innovation, optimized product mix for better product and service quality with revenue 
from the principal businesses maintaining steady growth with progress. As to education 
informatized and education equipment, the Group seized the market opportunities arising 
from national policies such as new college entrance exam curriculum reform and education 
informatized 2.0 action plan, and developed businesses in the two directions of “integrated 
business” and “application-oriented business”, providing corresponding products and 
services. At the same time, the Company had always been committed to channel innovation, 
mechanism innovation and business innovation, and enhanced its comprehensive capability 
of education service to achieve innovative and integrated development. In the first half 
of 2022, the Company continued to optimize and upgrade system performance. The 
“quality learning and quality teaching” online service platform operated steadily, covering 
6,319 schools and serving 4,520,000 students. In the first half of the year, the labor and 
practical education business achieved a total order amount of RMB7,700,000, serving 
more than 30,000 students. The teacher training business achieved a total order amount 
of RMB16,370,000, serving more than 90,000 teachers. At the same time, the Group 
continued to develop the high school education service market, gradually developed the 
vocational education service and preschool education service markets, and innovatively 
explored the primary and secondary after-school extended services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

During the Period, revenue from the principal businesses of the education service business 
of the Group amounted to RMB2,873 million, representing an increase of 8.82% as 
compared with the Same Period of Last Year, mainly benefitting from sales growth in 
the textbooks and supplementary materials and education informatized and equipment 
business in the Period. Gross profit margin was 39.90%, representing a decrease by 2.46 
percentage points as compared with the Same Period of Last Year, which was mainly due 
to the adjustment of contractual performance costs. Excluding such factor, the gross profit 
margin remained basically the same as compared with the Same Period of Last Year.

Online Sales

In the first half of 2022, in the face of the difficulties such as multiple outbreaks of the 
COVID-19 pandemic in China and the phased suspension of logistics in some regions, the 
Group achieved “two-handed grasp” and “two-handed hard” in ensuring both operation and 
normalized pandemic prevention. In terms of consolidating core business capabilities, the 
Group continued to explore operational technologies such as product category management 
and traffic conversion, consolidated its competitive advantages on comprehensive 
e-commerce platforms such as Tmall, JD.com and Pinduoduo, vigorously developed 
short video and live streaming business, expanded new media channels, and strengthened 
single-product operation and talent cooperation, so as to enrich the consumption scenarios 
of content e-commerce. In terms of promoting business development through technological 
innovation, the Group continued to optimize the collaborative business cooperation 
mechanism and risk control methods, provided bookstores and institutional customers with 
mini apps supporting online sales, and provided libraries with an online borrowing platform 
connecting readers to library suppliers. In the first half of the year, the Group maintained 
its top three position in book sales on major platforms such as Tmall and JD.com, and 
continued to consolidate its leading position in the national book e-commerce market.

During the Period, revenue from the principal business of online sales business amounted to 
RMB1,165 million, representing an increase of 11.30% as compared with the Same Period 
of Last Year, mainly benefitting from the improvement of refined product category operation 
level and the promotion of product organization and logistics organization through technical 
means. Gross profit margin was 8.27%, representing a decrease of 4.72 percentage points 
as compared with the Same Period of Last Year, which was mainly due to the adjustment 
of contractual performance costs. Excluding such factor, the gross profit margin remained 
basically the same as compared with the Same Period of Last Year.

Store Sales

Store sales business includes the retail store business and the group-buying business.

In the first half of 2022, the Group built a new reading service system of “online and offline 
integration, in-store and off-store combination” with physical bookstores as the connection 
point. While improving store operation, the Group vigorously expanded off-store business 
by revitalizing the private domain traffic of stores and launching Winshare Cloud Store (文
軒雲店). The Group also built large customer shopping malls and optimized the network 
system of physical bookstores by completing the transformation and upgrading of Xinhua 
Winshare Pujiang Store, Pidu Store and Bazhong Book City, providing readers with more 
comfortable reading service experience and helping the comprehensive construction of a 
bookish society.

During the Period, revenue from the principal businesses of the store sales business 
amounted to RMB295 million, representing an increase of 6.64% as compared with the 
Same Period of Last Year, mainly benefitting from revenue growth of government and 
corporate business. In-store sales revenue declined year-on-year due to the overall industry 
environment and the COVID-19 pandemic, but the decline was lower than the industry level. 
Gross profit margin was 36.59%, slightly decreased from 37.24% in the Same Period of 
Last Year.
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(II)	 ANALYSIS OF OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

BREAKDOWN OF THE RELEVANT ITEM CHANGES IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(For the six months ended 30 June 2022)

RMB

Item Current period

Same Period of 

Last Year Change (%)
    

Revenue 4,979,805,010.92 4,661,581,052.64 6.83

Operating costs 3,083,492,387.26 2,753,023,066.47 12.00

Selling expenses 629,208,473.88 699,439,817.71 (10.04)

Administrative expenses 595,296,295.63 596,618,524.09 (0.22)

Finance expenses (69,114,840.22) (32,705,955.22) N/A

Research and development expenditure 2,322,116.03 1,309,586.41 77.32

Net cashflow generated from operating activities 420,724,436.88 471,138,646.19 (10.70)

Net cashflow generated from investing activities 186,678,757.54 (1,043,853,199.94) N/A

Net cashflow generated from financing activities (296,206,219.75) (290,661,524.60) N/A

Other incomes 50,859,579.20 38,604,454.63 31.75

Gain on fair value change (loss represented by “-”) (57,143,903.32) (36,891,522.25) N/A

Credit impairment loss (loss represented by “-”) (113,317,656.18) (60,736,337.28) N/A

Asset impairment loss (loss represented by “-”) (19,347,328.54) (35,461,604.56) N/A

Gain on asset disposal (loss represented by “-”) 40,342,601.44 2,027,859.68 1,889.42

Income tax expenses (13,749,731.56) (9,594,898.29) N/A

Other comprehensive income net, after tax 321,665,681.01 153,924,304.47 108.98
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EXPENSES

During the Period, selling expenses of the Group amounted to RMB629 million, representing a decrease 

of 10.04% from RMB699 million in the Same Period of Last Year, mainly due to the increase in labor 

costs, promotion expenses and e-commerce platform service fees as compared with the Same Period 

of Last Year as a result of sales growth in the Period, coupled with the change of transportation and 

logistics expenses incurred for the performance of contractual obligations to be included in operating 

costs, resulting in a year-on-year decrease in selling expenses.

During the Period, administrative expenses of the Group amounted to RMB595 million, which remained 

basically the same as RMB597 million in the Same Period of Last Year.

During the Period, finance expenses of the Group amounted to RMB-69,114,800, as compared with 

RMB-32,706,000 in the Same Period of Last Year, which was mainly due to the increase in interest income 

of bank deposits during the Period as compared with the Same Period of Last Year.

During the Period, research and development expenses of the Group amounted to RMB2,322,100, 

representing growth of 77.32% from RMB1,309,600 in the Same Period of Last Year, mainly due to the 

increase in research and development investment in the area of education informatized and study tour 

business during the Period as compared with the Same Period of Last Year.

CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSS

During the Period, the Group made provision for credit impairment loss of RMB113,317,700, representing 

an increase of RMB52,581,400 as compared with RMB60,736,300 in the Same Period of Last Year, mainly 

due to the increase in the amount of provision for bad debts in the Period as compared with the Same 

Period of Last Year due to the fact that payment collection of general books sales business, education 

informatized and education equipment business and other businesses of the Group was affected to a 

certain extent by the multiple outbreaks of the COVID-19 pandemic in China, financial budget strain of 

some regions and other factors in the first half of the year.

GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGE

During the Period, loss on fair value change of the Group amounted to RMB57,143,900, representing an 

increase of loss of RMB20,252,400 as compared with loss on fair value change of RMB36,891,500 in the 

Same Period of Last Year, mainly due to the fair value changes in the items held by the funds invested 

by the Group as a result of stock price fluctuations and other factors during the Period.
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INVESTMENT INCOME

During the Period, the Group’s investment income was RMB89,815,900, representing an increase of 

27.27% from RMB70,571,700 in the Same Period of Last Year, mainly due to the increase in the Group’s 

income from convertible bond business and dividends from investee companies in the Period as compared 

with the Same Period of Last Year, while investment income from associates and joint ventures under the 

equity method decreased as compared with the Same Period of Last Year.

OTHER INCOMES AND NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

During the Period, other incomes of the Group amounted to RMB50,859,600, representing growth of 

31.75% from RMB38,604,500 in the Same Period of Last Year, mainly due to the increase in VAT refund 

received during the Period as compared with the Same Period of Last Year as a result of the preferential 

policies of reimbursement of value-added tax enjoyed by the publication segment of the Group.

During the Period, non-operating income of the Group amounted to RMB3,142,300, representing an 

increase of 13.16% from RMB2,776,800 in the Same Period of Last Year.

During the Period, non-operating expenses of the Group amounted to RMB11,670,700, representing a 

decrease of 27.48% from RMB16,094,100 in the Same Period of Last Year, mainly due to the decrease 

in donation expenses of the Group during the Period as compared with the Same Period of Last Year.

GAIN ON ASSET DISPOSAL

During the Period, gain on asset disposal of the Group amounted to RMB40,342,600, representing an 

increase of RMB38,314,700 from RMB2,027,900 in the Same Period of Last Year, mainly due to the 

compensation with respect to housing demolition and relocation received by various subsidiaries of the 

Company during the Period.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

During the Period, income tax expenses of the Group amounted to RMB-13,749,700, compared with 

RMB-9,594,900 in the Same Period of Last Year, mainly due to the change in deferred income tax 

expenses as a result of the fair value changes of the funds including Winshare Hengxin held by the 

Company’s subsidiary Winshare Investment and effect of deductible losses on income tax expenses.
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OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

During the Period, other comprehensive income net, after tax of the Group amounted to RMB322 million, 

representing an increase of 108.98% from RMB154 million in the Same Period of Last Year, mainly due 

to the fluctuations in the market price of shares of listed companies held by the Company including Wan 

Xin Media and Bank of Chengdu.

PROFIT

Net profit of the Group for the Period amounted to RMB715 million, representing year-on-year growth 

of 19.19%. Net profit attributable to shareholders of the listed company amounted to RMB718 million, 

representing year-on-year growth of 19.06%. After deducting non-recurring profit or loss, the net 

profit attributable to shareholders of the listed company amounted to RMB642 million, representing a 

year-on-year increase of 4.15%, which was mainly attributable to the increase in profit brought by sales 

growth and the increase in interest income from bank deposits.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share is calculated based on the net profit of the Company attributable to the shareholders 

of the listed company for the Period divided by the weighted average number of the ordinary shares 

in issue during the Period. During the Period, earnings per share of the Group amounted to RMB0.58, 

representing an increase of 18.37% as compared with RMB0.49 in the Same Period of Last Year. For 

details regarding the calculation of earnings per share, please refer to Note (VI)52 to the consolidated 

financial statements in the interim report.

CASH FLOW

During the Period, net cashflow of the Group generated from operating activities was net inflow of 

RMB421 million, representing a decrease of 10.70% as compared with net inflow of RMB471 million in 

the Same Period of Last Year, mainly due to the increase in the cash outflow for purchase of goods and 

payment to employees for the Period as compared with the Same Period of Last Year.

During the Period, net cashflow of the Group generated from investing activities was net inflow of RMB187 

million, compared with net outflow of RMB1,044 million in the Same Period of Last Year, mainly due to 

RMB400 million of time deposits collected during the Period, whereas in the Same Period of Last Year, 

net outflow was mainly due to payment of RMB317 million to Hainan Phoenix with respect to investment 

and placement of time deposits with maturity over three months.

During the Period, net cashflow of the Group generated from financing activities was net outflow of 

RMB296 million, which remained basically the same as compared with net outflow of RMB291 million in 

the Same Period of Last Year.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ANALYSIS

(As at 30 June 2022)

RMB

Item

As at the 
end of the 

current period

Amount 
as at the end 
of the current 

period as a 
percentage 
of the total 
assets (%)

As at the 
end of the 
prior year

Amount 
as at the end 

of the prior 
year as a 

percentage 
of the total 
assets (%)

Change in the 
amount as 
at the end 

of the current 
period 

over the 
amount as at 

the end of the 
prior year (%) Remark

       

Construction in 
progress

30,153,010.93 0.16 144,794,764.90 0.77 (79.18) Mainly due to the completion of 
the Publishing and Media Creativity 
Center secondary installation project, 
which was reclassified as fixed asset.

Lease liabilities 345,672,418.70 1.83 259,594,365.23 1.38 33.16 Mainly due to the fact that the  
Company renewed the three-year 
lease contract with Sichuan Xinhua 
Publishing and Distribution Group, 
and considered the renewal period 
on this basis, resulting in an increase 
in future lease payments.

Held-for-trading 
financial assets

8,041.10 0.00 20,945.15 0.00 (61.61) Mainly due to changes in market 
value of stock investment.

Long-term prepaid 
expenses

23,459,999.76 0.12 15,260,900.36 0.08 53.73 Mainly due to the official relocation 
of the Company and its subsidiaries 
to the Publishing and Media Creative 
Center in April this year, and the 
office furniture purchased, which led 
to an increase in the balance of long-
term prepaid expenses.

Notes receivable 16,284,812.23 0.09 45,285,599.60 0.24 (64.04) Mainly due to the decrease in the 
balance of trade payables settled 
by notes for the provision of printing 
materials business, education 
informatized and equipment 
business at the end of the Period as 
compared with the end of last year.

Other payables 538,456,195.02 2.85 386,886,795.47 2.06 39.18 Mainly due to the H share cash 
dividend in 2021 of RMB141 million 
declared by the Company which was 
paid in July this year.

Deferred income tax 
liabilities

20,291,163.04 0.11 32,872,282.61 0.18 (38.27) Mainly due to the change in deferred 
income tax expenses caused by the 
change in fair value of Winshare 
Hengxin and other funds held by 
Winshare Investment, a subsidiary 
of the Company.

       



20 Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had cash and short-term deposits of approximately RMB6,347 million 

(31 December 2021: RMB6,040 million). The Group did not have any interest-bearing bank and other 

borrowings.

As at 30 June 2022, the gearing ratio (calculated by dividing total liabilities by total assets) of the Group 

was 37.72%, down by 3.10 percentage points as compared with 40.82% as at 31 December 2021. The 

Group’s overall financial structure remains relatively stable.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2022, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2022, the balance of pledged deposits of the Group amounted to RMB12,615,900 (31 

December 2021: RMB13,675,200), representing the security deposits placed with the banks for the 

issuance of bank’s acceptance bills and letters of guarantee. Save as disclosed above, the Group did 

not have any other assets under pledge or guarantee.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Almost all of the Group’s assets, liabilities, revenues, costs and expenses were denominated in RMB. As 

a result, the management believes that foreign exchange exposure of the Group is minimal and confirms 

that no foreign exchange hedging arrangement has been made.

WORKING CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
   

Current ratio 1.7 1.5

Inventory turnover days 146.8 144.3

Notes and trade receivable turnover days 60.0 67.1

Notes and trade payable turnover days 305.8 309.4
   

As at 30 June 2022, current ratio of the Group was 1.7, which slightly increased as compared with the 

Same Period of Last Year. In the first half of the year, the inventory turnover days was 146.8 days, which 

slightly increased from 144.3 days as compared with the Same Period of Last Year. The notes and trade 

receivable turnover days was 60.1 days, down by 7.1 days as compared with the Same Period of Last 

Year. The notes and trade payable turnover days was 305.8 days, which slightly decreased from 309.4 

days as compared with the Same Period of Last Year.

The above indicators reflect that the operating conditions of the Group remained relatively stable, and the 

turnover days of inventory, trade receivables and trade payables were in line with the industry features 

of the publication and distribution enterprises.
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(III)	 OVERVIEW OF MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND 
DISPOSALS

During the Reporting Period, the Group centered on the development strategy and optimized the industry 

layout. While developing its principal businesses, the Group pushed ahead the industry-finance integration 

with a view to establishing the Group as a first-class cultural media group in the PRC.

In order to improve the utilization efficiency of the Company’s assets, in December 2021, the 10th 

meeting in 2021 of the 4th session of the Board of Directors of the Company considered and agreed to 

the subscription of 177,174 board lots of convertible bonds issued by Bank of Chengdu (10 convertible 

bonds per board lot) (subject to the actual placing announced by Bank of Chengdu) with the Company’s 

own funds of not more than RMB177,174,000. On 3 March 2022, the Company subscribed 1,771,200 

convertible bonds of Bank of Chengdu, with a par value of RMB100 each, with the Company’s own 

funds of RMB177,120,000 and sold the convertible bonds in whole on the first day of the listing of 

convertible bonds of Bank of Chengdu. The net proceeds after handling charges and VAT amounted to 

RMB24,723,900.

The Company was interested in 80,000,000 shares of Bank of Chengdu. Its shareholding was 2.21%. The 

cost of investment was RMB240 million. During the Period, the Company recognized a dividend income 

of RMB50,400,000 from Bank of Chengdu. The Group made use of the share of Bank of Chengdu to 

carry out the securities refinancing business and realized an income of RMB17,300. As at 30 June 2022, 

the market capitalization of the shares held by the Company in Bank of Chengdu was RMB1,326 million.

The Company was interested in 6.27% shares of Wan Xin Media, with investment costs of RMB186 

million. During the Period, the Company recognized a dividend income of RMB21,188,800 from Wan 

Xin Media. As at 30 June 2022, the market capitalization of the shares held by the Company in Wan Xin 

Media was RMB602 million.

Wan Xin Media and Bank of Chengdu are financial investments of the Company which not only generate 

attractive dividend income to the Group for the Period, but also provide higher capital appreciation to the 

Group. The Company will monitor the price trends of the A share market and these two stocks from time 

to time. Coupled with the industrial development, the Company will formulate corresponding investment 

strategies to continuously and steadily contribute to the financial income of the Company.

During the Period, details of the external investments made by the Group are set out in Notes (VI)12, 13 

and 14 to the consolidated financial statements in this interim report.
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INFORMATION OF THE MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

RMB0’000

Shareholding January to June 2022 30 June 2022

Name of subsidiary Nature of business
percentage 

(%)
Registered 

capital Revenue Net profit Total assets Net assets
        

Sichuan Education Publishing 
House Co., Ltd.

Publication of books 100 1,000.00 34,542.64 17,885.22 131,055.63 112,432.20

Sichuan Publication Printing 
Co., Ltd.

Plate-leased printing and supply 
  of textbooks

100 5,000.00 16,153.07 6,275.52 82,644.90 75,512.44

Sichuan Youth and Children’s 
Publishing House Co., Ltd.

Publication of books and journals 100 11,000.00 11,805.62 4,045.55 73,816.59 62,446.40

Sichuan Printing Materials Co., 
Ltd.

Wholesale and retail of goods 100 3,000.00 14,560.60 138.86 32,558.20 5,385.41

Sichuan Winshare Education 
Technology Co., Ltd.

Software development and 
  sales of electronic equipment

100 33,000.00 8,727.94 (3,171.39) 96,420.00 22,350.89

Sichuan Winshare Online 
E-commerce Co., Ltd.

Online sales of different products 75 6,000.00 141,024.39 170.27 293,457.46 (8,957.78)

(IV)	 FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2022, the Group will continue to promote the “three chains” strategy. In addition to strengthening the 
mass publishing and distribution industry chain and the education publishing and distribution industry 
chain, the Group will promote the upgrading and transformation of the Group’s traditional industry 
chain towards the smart industry chain, and drive the external extension of the Group’s industrial chain 
advantages with a view to creating a new growth pole for industrial development:

The Group will continue to improve its thematic publication capabilities, consolidate its existing publication 
advantages, and accelerate the promotion of key publication projects. In addition, it will deepen copyright 
operations, accelerate integrated publishing, and drive the mass publishing and the education publishing 
industry chain towards refined operation and diversified model development in an effort to build the 
Winshare publishing brand. Facing the opportunities and challenges brought by policy changes such 
as “double reduction”, new college entrance examination reform and vocational education reform, the 
Group will promote the online and offline integrated development of education service channels, deeply 
explore the new demand of the education service market within the province, actively expand diversified 
businesses, extend the education service industry chain, and improve comprehensive education service 
capabilities. The Group will accelerate the expansion of new media channels, strengthen product operation 
capabilities, and optimize the business model of content and channel integration; continuously strengthen 
supply chain synergistic service capabilities with innovative technologies; and continue to improve the 
construction of the Internet reading service system to consolidate and expand the market share of the 
Internet business. As to the physical bookstores, the Group will continue to improve the quality and 
efficiency of in-store operation, create new space for cultural consumption, actively expand business 
outside the stores, and strive to ensure the subscription, distribution and service guarantee of current 
political publications, so as to continuously improve the comprehensive capabilities of reading service. 
Besides, the Group will improve the construction of logistics network system, improve the efficiency of 
logistics operation, optimize the business structure, expand the third-party logistics market, and reinforce 
its comprehensive logistics service capabilities holistically. Through gathering high-quality social resources, 
the Group will strengthen cooperation with leading investment institutions, improve investment expansion 
capabilities and post-investment management level, make contribution to capital operating income, and 
promote the coordinated development of the Group’s industrial development and capital operation.
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(V)	 ANALYSIS OF CORE COMPETITIVENESS

As an integrated publishing and media enterprise in the publication and distribution industry chain, through 

intensive cultivation and coordinated development of various segments, the Group significantly improved 

its operational efficiency, and continuously enhanced its competitiveness and influence.

Publication capabilities. Since the strategic implementation to “revitalize the publishing industry in 

Sichuan”, the Group’s content resource aggregation and development capabilities have steadily improved, 

and the Group has established close partnership with authoritative experts from different sectors and 

well-known writers such as Wang Meng, Huang Yazhou, Long Pingping, Alai, Beimao and Yang Hongying, 

and owns various copyrights of world-renowned publishing and media organizations such as Disney and 

DK. The Group has excellent and influential editorial and planning teams such as Mingqin Workshop, 

which are able to closely meet the market demand and create high-quality dual-effect books. Books 

published by the Group have strong competitiveness in the market with an expanding range of book 

genres with influence. In particular, it has built a strong content brand advantage in the publication of 

children’s books. Its subsidiary, Sichuan Youth and Children’s Publishing House, owns the best-seller 

intellectual property rights – the Hilarious School Diaries, which repeatedly topped the charts of Open 

Book on children’s book best-sellers, with cumulative sales of approximately 143 million copies.

Reading service capabilities. By integrating cultural mall, large and medium-sized bookstores, 

professional bookstores, community bookstores, supermarket bookstores, online reading service 

platform for publications and the “publication collaborative transaction platform” serving the publication 

and distribution industry, backed by the logistics service network primarily based in Chengdu, Tianjin, 

Wuxi and Qingyuan, the Group has built a reading service network system based in Sichuan Province 

with nationwide coverage using a combination of online and offline methods. The Group has a number 

of brands including “Xinhua Winshare”, “Stackway”, “Winshare Bookstore”, “Kids Winshare” children’s 

bookstore, “Winshare Commercial Supermarket”, “winxuan.com” and “Winshare September” to provide 

consumers with diversified, personalized and smart reading cultural consumption service.

Education service capabilities. The Company is the only enterprise that is qualified to engage in the 

distribution of textbooks for primary and secondary schools in Sichuan Province and at the same time 

is qualified to publish textbooks and supplementary materials of all subjects in the curriculum of primary 

and secondary schools. After years of accumulation of experience, the Company has developed an 

all-variety, full-coverage and high-efficiency education service capabilities in the Sichuan regional market. 

The Group is the pioneer in the digital education service business in China, providing education services 

such as digitalized resources, teaching softwares and hardwares as well as digitalized subject tools. As the 

major operator of education informatized service and education equipment products in Sichuan Province, 

the Group has developed education equipment products such as professional subject classroom and 

innovative education equipment by centering on the subject contents and classroom scenarios. At the 

same time, the Group’s businesses of labor and practice education services, teachers’ training services 

and after-school extended services enjoy a branding and channel strength in the regional market.
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(VI)	 EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had a total of 7,480 (31 December 2021: 7,481) employees.

The Group improves and optimizes its employee remuneration policies and remuneration management 

system continuously, by which it has established an incentive mechanism that aligns employees’ 

remuneration to the Group’s development. The standard remuneration package of the Group includes 

basic salary, performance-based bonus and benefits. Pensions, medical insurance, unemployment 

insurance, work injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing welfare funds, corporate annuity, etc. 

are available to the employees. For the six months ended 30 June 2022, the Group’s total post-retirement 

plan contributions and corporate annuity scheme contributions amounted to RMB92,184,000, representing 

an increase of RMB5,464,700 as compared with RMB86,719,300 in the Same Period of Last Year, mainly 

due to the natural increase of labor costs.

The Group attaches great importance to and cares about the growth and development of employees 

and continues to provide training and opportunities for exchange to help them enhance their professional 

skills and expand their areas of expertise. Based on the objectives and requirements of personnel training 

that are in line with the corporate strategies, as well as the principles of unified management of plans 

and implementation of hierarchical organizations, the Group uses key positions as the entry point and 

continuously optimizes the content and types of training, and has established a multi-level and multi-form 

training system. The training content of the Group covers various aspects such as operation management, 

job skills, cultural quality, professional qualifications and team building, and is carried out in various ways 

such as internal training, external training, online learning and knowledge competition, focusing on the 

pertinence and effectiveness of training, effectively improving the skills and professional quality, thinking 

awareness and expanding the scope of work of employees at all levels. The business development is 

driven by the improvement of employees’ ability and quality.
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(VII)	POTENTIAL RISKS
In recent years, the trend of online and offline integration of the publishing industry has intensified. 
The book channel has shown a diversified pattern, and the cross-border competition among emerging 
Internet enterprises has also become increasingly fierce. In addition, the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic 
has changed the market consumption expectation of the whole society, which has undoubtedly brought 
more challenges to the traditional publishing and distribution enterprises. The market environment faced 
by the Group has become increasingly complex, which may bring certain market risks and operating 
pressure. The Group will continue to pay attention to market changes, strengthen the top-level strategic 
design, maintain reasonable and stable resource investment, and continuously improve its innovative 
development capabilities, market competitiveness and risk resistance abilities.

With the rapid rise of information technology and mobile Internet, advanced technologies such as big 
data, cloud computing and AI have been reshaping the forms and management models of traditional 
publishing business. Various new business forms and new models have been emerging, which bring 
development opportunities and a series of challenges to the publishing business. The Group will conduct 
in-depth research on the development trends of the integration of the industry and technology, further 
improve the technological innovation mechanism, enhance the level of digitization and intelligence, and 
promote the in-depth integrated development of the publishing industry.

(VIII)	USE OF PROCEEDS
In August 2016, the Company issued 98,710,000 RMB-denominated ordinary shares (A Shares) at an 
issue price of RMB7.12 per share through its initial public offering on the SSE. The total proceeds raised 
amounted to RMB702,815,200. After deducting the issuance expenses, the net proceeds actually raised 
by the Company amounted to RMB645,175,100, which were mainly used for the Company’s education 
cloud service platform, construction of logistics network in the western region, upgrade and expansion 
of retail stores, construction and upgrade of ERP and publications regarding the revival of the Chinese 
culture, etc. In the first half of 2022, the Group utilized RMB12,057,800 of the proceeds. As of 30 June 
2022, the accumulated use of proceeds amounted to RMB632,119,700. The balance of the unutilized 
proceeds amounted to RMB14,904,300, which is detailed as follows:

RMB

Committed investment projects
Committed 

total investment

Amount invested 
during the 

Reporting Period

Accumulated 
investment 

amount as at
 the end of 
the Period

Unutilized 
amount

Consistent 
with the 
planned use 
as disclosed 
or not

Expected timeline 
for utilizing 
unutilized proceeds

        

1. Education cloud service 
  platform project (Note 1)

200,000,000.00 – 200,247,762.29 – Yes –

2. Construction and upgrade 
  of ERP project (Note 1)

35,175,098.06 – 35,602,525.95 – Yes –

3. Publications regarding the revival
   of the Chinese culture project

10,000,000.00 – – 10,102,761.20 Yes Note 2

4. Upgrade and expansion of 
  retail stores project (Note 1)

100,000,000.00 1,678,409.11 100,448,421.73 – Yes –

5. Construction of logistics network
   in the western region project

300,000,000.00 10,379,352.78 295,820,959.78 4,801,579.29 Yes Note 2

    

Total 645,175,098.06 12,057,761.89 632,119,669.75 14,904,340.49 – –
    

Notes:

1.	 The accumulated investment amounts of projects were greater than the total investment amounts committed by the proceeds 

because the accumulated investment amounts included the principal amount of the proceeds and the interest generated from 

the proceeds.

2.	 The expected timeline for utilizing the unutilized proceeds is based on the Company’s consideration on the future market 

conditions and development of projects.

As at the date of this interim report, there is no change in the use of proceeds of the Group.
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INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL

As at 30 June 2022, the total issued share capital of the Company was RMB1,233,841,000, divided into 

1,233,841,000 shares of RMB1.00 each as follows:

As at 30 June 2022, the interests in share capital were as follows:

Class of shares

Number 

of shares

Approximate 

percentage 

of issued 

share capital of 

the Company
    

A Shares 791,903,900 64.18%

  including

  (i) Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group (Note 1) 592,809,525 48.05%

  (ii) Other promoters (Note 2) 46,322,618 3.75%

  (iii) Hua Sheng Group (Note 3) 53,336,000 4.32%

  (iv) A Share public investors 99,435,757 8.06%

H Shares 441,937,100 35.82%

  including

  (i) Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group (Note 4) 90,780,000 7.36%

  (ii) Other promoters (Note 5) 6,324,000 0.51%

  (iii) H Share public investors 344,833,100 27.95%
    

Total Share Capital 1,233,841,000 100%
   

Notes:

1.	 Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group, the controlling shareholder of the Company, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sichuan 

Development. The de facto controller of Sichuan Development is SASAC of Sichuan.

2.	 Other promoters include Sichuan Cultural Investment Group, Sichuan Daily Newspaper Group Co., Ltd. and Liaoning Publication Group. 

Liaoning Publication Group is interested in 6,485,160 A Shares of the Company through its subsidiary.

3.	 Social Legal Person Shares are held by Hua Sheng Group, a promoter of the Company.

4.	 90,780,000 H Shares of the Company are held by Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group, a controlling shareholder of the 

Company, directly and indirectly through its subsidiary.

5.	 Sichuan Cultural Investment Group, a promoter of the Company, is interested in 6,324,000 H Shares of the Company through its 

subsidiary.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND 
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2022, so far as is known to the Directors and Supervisors of the Company, the following persons 

(not being Directors, Supervisors or senior management of the Company) had, or were deemed to have interests 

or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which were required, pursuant 

to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to be kept by the Company referred to therein:

Name of shareholder

Number 
of shares 

directly and 
indirectly held Capacity

Class of 
shares

Approximate 
percentage 

in the 
relevant 
class of 

shares

Approximate 
percentage 

of total
 issued share 
capital of the 

Company

Long 
position/
short 
position

       

Sichuan Development 623,382,470 Interests in 
 controlled 
 corporation

A Shares 78.72% 50.52% Long position

97,104,000
(Note 1)

Interests in 
 controlled 
 corporation

H Shares 21.97% 7.87% Long position

Sichuan Xinhua Publishing 592,809,525 Beneficial owner A Shares 74.86% 48.05% Long position
 and Distribution Group 90,780,000

(Note 2)
Interests in 
 controlled 
 corporation

H Shares 20.54% 7.36% Long position

Hua Sheng Group 53,336,000
(Note 3)

Beneficial owner A Shares 6.74% 4.32% Long position

Wu Wenqian 53,336,000
(Note 3)

Interests in 
 controlled 
 corporation

A Shares 6.74% 4.32% Long position

Seafarer Capital 
 Partners, LLC*

30,875,500 Investment manager H Shares 6.99% 2.50% Long position

Brown Brothers 
 Harriman & Co.*

38,626,617 Approved lending 
 agent

H Shares 8.74% 3.13% Long position

 38,626,617 Approved lending 
 agent

H Shares 8.74% 3.13% Lending pool

*  The information of H Shares is sourced from the “Disclosure of Interests” form filed on the website of the Stock Exchange.

Notes:

1.	 Sichuan Development is the controlling shareholder of Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group and Sichuan Cultural Investment 

Group. According to the SFO, Sichuan Development is deemed to (i) indirectly hold 592,809,525 A Shares of the Company through 

Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group and 30,572,945 A Shares of the Company through Sichuan Cultural Investment 

Group, totalling 623,382,470 A Shares; and (ii) indirectly hold 90,780,000 H Shares of the Company through Sichuan Xinhua Publishing 

and Distribution Group and 6,324,000 H Shares of the Company through Sichuan Cultural Investment Group, totalling 97,104,000 H 

Shares.
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2.	 Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group directly and through its wholly-owned subsidiary Shudian Investment Co., Ltd. 

indirectly holds 90,780,000 H Shares of the Company, and directly holds 592,809,525 A Shares of the Company.

3.	 Ms. Wu Wenqian is directly interested in 95% equity interests in Hua Sheng Group. Accordingly, Ms. Wu Wenqian is deemed to hold 

53,336,000 A Shares of the Company through Hua Sheng Group.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, so far as is known to the Directors and Supervisors, no other 

person (not being a Director, Supervisor or senior management of the Company) had any interest and short 

position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which were required, pursuant to 

section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to be kept by the Company referred to therein.

Apart from (i) Mr. Luo Yong, the chairman of the Company, who is the party secretary and chairman of Sichuan 

Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group; (ii) Mr. Liu Longzhang, the vice chairman of the Company, who is the 

deputy party secretary, vice chairman and general manager of Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group; 

and (iii) Mr. Ke Jiming, the non-executive Director of the Company, who is a member of the party committee, 

the director and deputy general manager of Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group, as at 30 June 

2022, none of the Directors and Supervisors of the Company held any positions as directors or employed as 

employees in any company having interests or short positions which would fall to be disclosed to the Company 

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND 
CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES 
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 30 June 2022, the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the 

Company who had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company 

or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required, pursuant 

to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to be kept by the Company, or which are 

required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange are as follows:

Name of supervisor

Number 

of shares 

directly and 

indirectly held Capacity

Class of 

shares

Approximate 

percentage 

in the relevant 

class of shares

Approximate 

percentage 

of total 

issued share 

capital of the 

Company

Long 

position/

short 

position
       

Chao Hsun 53,336,000

(Note)

Spouse interest A Shares 6.74% 4.32% Long position

Note: 	 Mr. Chao Hsun is the spouse of Ms. Wu Wenqian who is indirectly interested in 53,336,000 A Shares of the Company through Hua 

Sheng Group. According to the SFO, Mr. Chao Hsun is deemed to be indirectly interested in 53,336,000 A Shares of the Company 

held by Ms. Wu Wenqian through Hua Sheng Group.
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Period, details of the change relating to Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the 
Company are set out below:

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS

On 24 January 2022, as resolved at the first extraordinary general meeting of 2022 of the Company, Mr. Luo 
Yong, Mr. Liu Longzhang and Mr. Li Qiang were appointed as executive Directors of the fifth session of the Board, 
Mr. Dai Weidong, Mr. Ke Jiming and Mr. Zhang Peng were appointed as non-executive Directors of the fifth 
session of the Board, and Mr. Chan Yuk Tong, Mr. Fang Bing Xi and Mr. Li Xu were appointed as independent 
non-executive Directors of the fifth session of the Board. On the same day, as resolved at the first meeting of the 
fifth session of the Board of 2022, Mr. Luo Yong was elected as the chairman of the fifth session of the Board 
and Mr. Liu Longzhang was elected as the vice chairman of the fifth session of the Board. Their terms of office 
became effective on 24 January 2022 and will last until the expiry of the term of the fifth session of the Board. 
Mr. Luo Jun, Mr. Han Xiao Ming and Ms. Xiao Li Ping retired as Directors of the Company.

Mr. Chan Yuk Tong has served the Board for 6 consecutive years and tendered his resignation as an independent 
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration and Review 
Committee of the Company with effect from 24 May 2022. On the same day, as resolved at the annual general 
meeting of 2021 of the Company, Mr. Lau Tsz Bun was appointed as an independent non-executive Director 
with effect from 24 May 2022 until the expiry of the term of the fifth session of the Board.

CHANGES OF SUPERVISORS

On 24 January 2022, as resolved at the 2022 first extraordinary general meeting of the Company, Mr. Tang 
Xiongxing and Mr. Chao Hsun were appointed as Supervisors of the fifth session of the Supervisory Committee 
and Mr. Feng Jian and Ms. Wang Li were appointed as independent Supervisors of the fifth session of the 
Supervisory Committee. Together with the Supervisors representing the staff and workers, Ms. Wang Yan and 
Ms. Wang Yuanyuan who were elected at the meeting of the representatives of the staff and workers of the 
Company on 6 January 2022, the abovementioned Supervisors shall form the fifth session of the Supervisory 
Committee. On the same date, as resolved at the first meeting of 2022 of the fifth session of the Supervisory 
Committee, Mr. Tang Xiongxing was elected as the chairman of the fifth session of the Supervisory Committee. 
His term became effective on 24 January 2022 and will last until the expiry of the term of the fifth session of 
the Supervisory Committee. Ms. Lan Hong, Mr. Li Xu and Ms. Liu Mixia retired as Supervisors of the Company.

CHANGES OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

On 24 January 2022, as resolved at the first meeting of the fifth session of the Board of 2022, Mr. Li Qiang 
was appointed as the general manager of the Company, Ms. Yang Miao was appointed as the secretary to 
the Board, Ms. Yang Miao and Ms. Wong Wai Ling were appointed as the joint company secretaries of the 
Company. As nominated by the general manager of the Company, Mr. Chen Dali was appointed as chief editor 
of the Company and Mr. Wang Huaguang, Mr. Zhao Xuefeng, Mr. Zou Jian, Mr. Hu Bo, Mr. Hu Wei and Mr. Ma 
Xiaofeng were appointed as deputy general managers of the Company. On the same date, Mr. You Zugang 
retired as the secretary to the Board and Mr. Zhu Zaixiang retired as the chief financial officer of the Company.

For details relating to the changes of Directors, Supervisors and senior management, please refer to the 
announcements dated 1 December 2021, 6 January 2022, 24 January 2022, 17 February 2022, 29 March 2022 
and 24 May 2022 and the circulars dated 3 December 2021 and 1 April 2022 of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, during the Period and up to the date of this interim report, there are no other changes 
relating to Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE 
COMPANY

During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the 

Company’s listed securities.

SHARE APPRECIATION RIGHT INCENTIVE SCHEME

During the Period, the Company did not adopt any share appreciation right incentive scheme.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

During the Period, the Company was not involved in any litigation, arbitration or claims of material importance 

and there was no litigation or claim of material importance which was known to the Directors to be pending or 

threatened by or against the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Directors are of the view that, during the Period, the Company has adopted and complied with all applicable 

principles and the code provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS 
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors 

and Supervisors, for the purpose of regulating securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors. Having 

made specific enquiries to each Director and Supervisor, all Directors and Supervisors confirmed that they have 

complied with the provisions as set out in the Model Code throughout the Period. So far as the Company is 

aware, there was no violation by any Directors or Supervisors during the Period.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board has not recommended the payment of an interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2022 

(six months ended 30 June 2021: Nil).
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of this interim report, there were no material events of the Group after the Reporting Period.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance with the requirements under Rules 3.21 and 

3.22 of the Listing Rules with specific written terms of reference.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s unaudited consolidated financial statements for the six months 

ended 30 June 2022 included in this interim report and has communicated and discussed the financial reporting 

issues of the Group with the management of the Company. The Audit Committee confirmed that the interim 

financial report of the Group has been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards and 

requirements and have made appropriate disclosures accordingly.

By Order of the Board

XINHUA WINSHARE PUBLISHING AND MEDIA CO., LTD.*

Luo Yong

Chairman

Sichuan, the PRC, 25 August 2022

*  For identification purposes only
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RMB

30 June 2022 31 December 2021

ITEM Notes (Unaudited)
    

Current Assets:

Cash and bank balances (VI)1 6,346,513,408.41 6,040,029,278.72

Held-for-trading financial assets (VI)2 8,041.10 20,945.15

Notes receivable (VI)3 7,467,785.57 10,545,962.27

Accounts receivable (VI)4 1,691,697,819.08 1,555,884,147.93

Financing receivables (VI)5 4,827,529.91 5,132,438.00

Prepayments (VI)6 76,008,266.86 79,323,179.35

Other receivables (VI)7 119,300,649.04 101,641,043.44

Inventories (VI)8 2,219,981,005.50 2,742,158,426.84

Contract assets (VI)9 27,856,608.49 34,660,471.53

Non-current assets due within one year (VI)11 164,992,003.76 172,294,518.11

Other current assets (VI)10 493,220,424.72 502,276,759.44
    

Total Current Assets 11,151,873,542.44 11,243,967,170.78
    

Non-current Assets:

Long-term receivables (VI)11 104,165,055.44 143,479,125.91

Long-term equity investments (VI)12 747,358,942.89 754,803,876.08

Other equity instrument investment (VI)13 1,929,782,505.22 1,608,071,463.87

Other non-current financial assets (VI)14 606,294,366.36 723,047,595.79

Investment properties (VI)15 78,002,503.07 82,653,580.43

Fixed assets (VI)16 2,160,465,470.89 2,014,782,433.12

Construction in progress (VI)17 30,153,010.93 144,794,764.90

Right-of-use assets (VI)18 391,371,978.77 345,014,851.31

Intangible assets (VI)19 364,812,531.95 379,475,191.25

Development cost 3,002,593.11 2,561,158.72

Goodwill (VI)20 500,571,581.14 500,571,581.14

Long-term prepaid expenses (VI)21 23,459,999.76 15,260,900.36

Deferred income tax assets (VI)22 29,087,429.96 23,931,737.96

Other non-current assets (VI)23 747,024,641.52 791,530,359.26
    

Total Non-current Assets 7,715,552,611.01 7,529,978,620.10
    

TOTAL ASSETS 18,867,426,153.45 18,773,945,790.88
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RMB

30 June 2022 31 December 2021

ITEM Notes (Unaudited)
    

Current Liabilities:

Notes payable (VI)24 16,284,812.23 45,285,599.60

Accounts payable (VI)25 4,864,028,421.56 5,406,581,179.99

Contract liabilities (VI)26 535,257,219.26 542,086,414.16

Employee benefits payable (VI)27 424,016,628.61 594,173,428.34

Taxes payable (VI)28 45,255,964.35 62,425,209.54

Other payables (VI)29 538,456,195.02 386,886,795.47

Non-current liabilities due within one year (VI)31 85,565,471.91 101,706,168.70

Other current liabilities (VI)30 213,167,057.76 201,498,906.04
    

Total Current Liabilities 6,722,031,770.70 7,340,643,701.84
    

Non-current Liabilities:

Lease liabilities (VI)31 345,672,418.70 259,594,365.23

Deferred income (VI)32 28,544,452.24 31,146,881.78

Deferred income tax liabilities (VI)22 20,291,163.04 32,872,282.61
    

Total Non-current Liabilities 394,508,033.98 323,613,529.62
    

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,116,539,804.68 7,664,257,231.46
    

Shareholders’ Equity:

Share capital (VI)33 1,233,841,000.00 1,233,841,000.00

Capital reserve (VI)34 2,572,524,766.32 2,572,524,766.32

Other comprehensive income (VI)35 1,500,508,438.58 1,178,842,757.57

Surplus reserve (VI)36 1,009,210,479.29 1,009,210,479.29

Undistributed profits (VI)37 5,550,106,949.33 5,227,141,020.57

Total Shareholder’s Equity Attributable to 

  the Parent Company 11,866,191,633.52 11,221,560,023.75

Non-controlling Interests (115,305,284.75) (111,871,464.33)

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 11,750,886,348.77 11,109,688,559.42
    

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ 

EQUITY 18,867,426,153.45 18,773,945,790.88
    

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 32 to 44 were signed by the following:

Luo Yong Ma Xiaofeng Wu Sufang

Legal Representative Chief Accountant Person in Charge of the Accounting Body
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RMB

30 June 2022 31 December 2021

ITEM Notes (Unaudited)
    

Current Liabilities:

Cash and bank balances (XVI)1 5,073,066,744.80 4,820,615,701.63

Held-for-trading financial assets 8,041.10 20,945.15

Accounts receivable (XVI)2 932,898,651.74 789,852,470.51

Prepayments (XVI)3 27,946,340.99 12,125,972.56

Other receivables (XVI)4 556,678,779.30 920,535,846.37

Inventories (XVI)5 258,531,919.29 782,488,210.66

Contract assets 1,019,074.95 –

Non-current liabilities due within one year 42,199,239.42 59,313,651.82

Other current assets (XVI)6 199,617,408.07 75,129,097.46
    

Total Current Assets 7,091,966,199.66 7,460,081,896.16
    

Non-current Assets:

Long-term receivables 8,057,907.72 24,011,262.32

Long-term equity investments (XVI)7 3,997,777,342.55 3,976,896,556.03

Other equity instrument investment 1,928,411,200.00 1,606,881,600.00

Other non-current financial assets 189,595,947.80 198,611,536.30

Investment properties (XVI)8 14,558,103.09 18,088,129.22

Fixed assets (XVI)9 1,781,268,352.64 1,635,820,321.56

Construction in progress 30,086,564.33 144,643,362.55

Right-of-use assets (XVI)10 373,399,826.98 322,577,069.81

Intangible assets (XVI)11 139,256,284.69 143,564,350.45

Long-term prepaid expenses (XVI)12 10,337,156.17 7,670,045.48

Other non-current assets (XVI)13 1,100,893,731.75 1,152,980,979.59
    

Total Non-current Assets 9,573,642,417.72 9,231,745,213.31
    

TOTAL ASSETS 16,665,608,617.38 16,691,827,109.47
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The Parent Company’s Balance Sheet (continued)

RMB

30 June 2022 31 December 2021

ITEM Notes (Unaudited)
    

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable (XVI)14 3,741,749,579.69 4,409,120,230.36

Contract liabilities (XVI)15 357,845,948.35 357,008,714.02

Employee benefits payable (XVI)16 268,389,078.89 404,488,683.90

Taxes payable (XVI)17 18,582,745.13 18,907,622.47

Other payables (XVI)18 1,165,276,597.85 1,025,604,218.09

Non-current liabilities due within one year (XVI)19 80,216,349.51 93,824,087.70

Other current liabilities 77,507,860.13 69,114,268.40
    

Total Current Liabilities 5,709,568,159.55 6,378,067,824.94
    

Non-current Liabilities:

Lease liabilities (XVI)19 332,745,884.36 247,654,970.93

Deferred income 4,075,997.11 3,973,820.34
    

Total Non-current Liabilities 336,821,881.47 251,628,791.27
    

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,046,390,041.02 6,629,696,616.21
    

Shareholders’ Equity:

Share capital 1,233,841,000.00 1,233,841,000.00

Capital reserve (XVI)20 2,631,057,328.10 2,631,057,328.10

Other comprehensive income (XVI)21 1,501,995,872.00 1,180,466,272.00

Surplus reserve (XVI)22 1,008,375,729.16 1,008,375,729.16

Undistributed profits (XVI)23 4,243,948,647.10 4,008,390,164.00
    

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 10,619,218,576.36 10,062,130,493.26
    

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ 

EQUITY 16,665,608,617.38 16,691,827,109.47
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RMB

Amount 

recognized in the

 current period

Amount 

recognized in the 

Same Period of 

Last Year

ITEM Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
    

I.	 Operating income (VI)38 4,979,805,010.92 4,661,581,052.64

Less: Operating costs (VI)38 3,083,492,387.26 2,753,023,066.47

Taxes and surcharges (VI)39 20,102,483.76 18,470,555.76

Selling expenses (VI)40 629,208,473.88 699,439,817.71

Administrative expenses (VI)41 595,296,295.63 596,618,524.09

Research and development expenditure 2,322,116.03 1,309,586.41

Finance expenses (VI)42 (69,114,840.22) (32,705,955.22)

Including: �Interest expense 10,939,606.43 10,968,702.67

Interest income 83,828,683.18 48,382,725.61

Add: Other income (VI)43 50,859,579.20 38,604,454.63

Investment income (VI)44 89,815,916.35 70,571,673.25

Including: �Income (losses) from  

  investments in associates  

  and joint ventures (6,544,933.19) 9,149,573.22

Losses from changes in fair values (VI)45 (57,143,903.32) (36,891,522.25)

Losses on credit impairment (VI)46 (113,317,656.18) (60,736,337.28)

Impairment losses of assets (VI)47 (19,347,328.54) (35,461,604.56)

Gains from disposal of assets (VI)48 40,342,601.44 2,027,859.68

II.	 Operating profit 709,707,303.53 603,539,980.89

Add: Non-operating income (VI)49 3,142,325.76 2,776,841.20

Less: Non-operating expenses (VI)50 11,670,697.45 16,094,123.90

III.	 Total profit 701,178,931.84 590,222,698.19

Less: Income tax expenses (VI)51 (13,749,731.56) (9,594,898.29)

IV.	 Net profit 714,928,663.40 599,817,596.48

(I)	� Categorized by the nature of  

  continuing operation:

1.	 Net profit from continuing operations 714,928,663.40 599,817,596.48

2.	 Net profit from discontinued operations – –

(II)	 Categorized by ownership:

1.	� Net profit attributable to shareholders 

  of the parent company 717,795,048.76 602,909,289.93

2.	� Profit or loss attributable to 

  non-controlling interests (2,866,385.36) (3,091,693.45)
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Consolidated Income Statement (continued)

RMB

Amount 

recognized in the

 current period

Amount 

recognized in the 

Same Period of 

Last Year

ITEM Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
    

V.	 Other comprehensive income, net of tax (VI)35 321,665,681.01 153,924,304.47

Other comprehensive income attributable to 

shareholders of the parent company, net 

of tax 321,665,681.01 153,924,304.47

(I)	� Other comprehensive income not  

  reclassified to profit or loss

1.	� Changes in other equity instrument  

  investment at fair value 321,665,681.01 153,924,304.47

Other comprehensive income attributable to 

non-controlling shareholders, net of tax – –

VI.	Total comprehensive income 1,036,594,344.41 753,741,900.95

Total comprehensive income attributable to 

shareholders of the parent company 1,039,460,729.77 756,833,594.40

Total comprehensive income attributable to 

non-controlling shareholders (2,866,385.36) (3,091,693.45)

VII.	Earnings per share:

(I)	 Basic earnings per share (VI)52 0.58 0.49

(II)	 Diluted earnings per share N/A N/A
    



38 Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

The Parent Company’s Income Statement
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RMB

Amount 

recognized in the 

current period

Amount 

recognized in the 

Same Period of 

Last Year

ITEM Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
    

I.	 Operating income (XVI)24 3,204,877,119.80 2,969,226,766.21

Less: Operating costs (XVI)24 1,854,756,884.73 1,646,940,769.34

Taxes and surcharges (XVI)25 11,214,751.94 10,479,452.15

Selling expenses (XVI)26 439,432,998.47 486,313,480.26

Administrative expenses (XVI)27 448,760,590.40 461,831,574.39

Finance expenses (XVI)28 (40,250,204.11) (16,443,875.66)

Including: Interest expenses 19,297,146.21 15,551,338.44

Interest income 61,621,950.87 34,956,026.55

Add: Other income (XVI)29 2,479,461.98 1,386,809.61

Investment income (XVI)30 203,241,636.06 38,664,196.10

Including: �Gains from investments in  

  associates and joint  

  ventures 6,880,786.52 11,583,846.70

Gains (losses) from changes 

  in fair values 10,450,275.32 (10,644,615.91)

Losses on credit impairment (XVI)31 (63,184,755.11) (14,501,164.95)

Impairment losses of assets (XVI)32 (6,404,579.17) (19,534,275.44)

Gains from disposal of assets 2,096,212.61 51,926.33

II.	 Operating profit 639,640,350.06 375,528,241.47

Add: Non-operating income (XVI)33 2,005,473.64 2,077,409.89

Less: Non-operating expenses (XVI)34 11,258,220.60 15,855,868.47

III.	 Total profit  630,387,603.10 361,749,782.89

Less: Income tax expenses – –

IV.	 Net profit 630,387,603.10 361,749,782.89

(I)	 Net profit from continuing operations 630,387,603.10 361,749,782.89

(II)	 Net profit from discontinued operations – –

V.	 Other comprehensive income, net of tax (XVI)21 321,529,600.00 153,860,800.00

(I)	 Other comprehensive income not 

reclassified to profit or loss  

1.	 Changes in other equity instrument  

  investment at fair value 321,529,600.00 153,860,800.00

VI.	Total comprehensive income 951,917,203.10 515,610,582.89
    



39Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RMB

Amount 

recognized in the 

current period

Amount 

recognized in the 

Same Period of 

Last Year

ITEM Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
    

I.	 Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash receipts from the sale of goods and 

  the rendering of services 4,999,988,853.97 4,712,206,904.61

Receipts of tax refunds 37,105,294.24 –

Other cash receipts relating to 

  operating activities (VI)53(1) 107,191,401.70 116,501,482.17

Sub-total of cash inflows from 

  operating activities 5,144,285,549.91 4,828,708,386.78

Cash payments for goods purchased and 

  services received 3,285,357,971.86 2,869,121,763.23

Cash payments to and on behalf of 

  employees 925,883,747.20 803,993,108.16

Payments of various types of taxes 76,593,774.99 71,623,054.14

Other cash payments relating to 

  operating activities (VI)53(2) 435,725,618.98 612,831,815.06

Sub-total of cash outflows from 

  operating activities 4,723,561,113.03 4,357,569,740.59

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (VI)54(1) 420,724,436.88 471,138,646.19

II.	 Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Cash receipts from recovery of investments 251,386,092.46 306,714,479.22

Cash receipts from investment income 98,676,394.54 66,748,425.03

Net cash receipts from disposals of fixed 

  assets, intangible assets and other 

  long-term assets 38,895,018.65 2,477,621.09

Other cash receipts relating to 

  investing activities (VI)53(3) 405,499,999.89 –

Sub-total of cash inflows from 

  investing activities 794,457,505.54 375,940,525.34

Cash payments to acquire or construct 

  fixed assets, intangible assets and 

  other long-term assets 116,014,885.70 95,564,737.81

Cash payments to acquire investments 191,763,862.30 624,228,987.47

Other cash payments relating to 

  investing activities (VI)53(4) 300,000,000.00 700,000,000.00

Sub-total of cash outflows from 

  investing activities 607,778,748.00 1,419,793,725.28

Net Cash Flow from 

  Investing Activities 186,678,757.54 (1,043,853,199.94)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

RMB

Amount 

recognized in the 

current period

Amount 

recognized in the 

Same Period of 

Last Year

ITEM Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
    

III.	Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Cash payments for distribution of dividends, 

  profit or settlement of interest expenses 253,426,737.21 245,505,212.44

Including: Payments for distribution 

            of dividends, profit to 

            non-controlling shareholders of 

            subsidiaries – –

Other cash payments relating to 

  financing activities (VI)53(5) 42,779,482.54 45,156,312.16

Sub-total of cash outflows from 

  financing activities 296,206,219.75 290,661,524.60

Net Cash Flow from 

  Financing Activities (296,206,219.75) (290,661,524.60)

IV.	Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes 

   on Cash and Cash Equivalents – –

V.	 Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and  

  Cash Equivalents (VI)54(1) 311,196,974.67 (863,376,078.35)

Add: Opening balance of cash and 

        cash equivalents (VI)54(2) 5,997,769,686.81 5,740,841,068.18

VI.	Closing Balance of Cash and Cash  

  Equivalents (VI)54(2) 6,308,966,661.48 4,877,464,989.83
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The Parent Company’s Cash Flow Statement

RMB

Amount 

recognized in the 

current period

Amount 

recognized in the 

Same Period of 

Last Year

ITEM Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
    

I.	 Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash receipts from the sale of goods and 

  the rendering of services 3,166,045,976.20 2,836,218,446.40

Other cash receipts relating to 

  operating activities (XVI)35(1) 54,943,991.41 45,240,086.39

Sub-total of cash inflows from 

  operating activities 3,220,989,967.61 2,881,458,532.79

Cash payments for goods purchased and 

  services received 1,724,278,038.33 1,453,008,047.60

Cash payments to and on behalf of 

  employees 640,839,038.52 554,414,312.67

Payments of various types of taxes 13,204,170.90 13,070,987.28

Other cash payments relating to 

  operating activities (XVI)35(2) 333,260,719.45 416,732,990.40

Sub-total of cash outflows from 

  operating activities 2,711,581,967.20 2,437,226,337.95

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (XVI)36(1) 509,408,000.41 444,232,194.84

II.	 Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Cash receipts from recovery of investments 196,634,656.75 214,479.22

Cash receipts from investment income 197,776,394.54 63,681,333.13

Net cash receipts from disposals of fixed 

  assets, intangible assets and other 

  long-term assets 502,405.11 379,801.66

Net cash receipts from disposals of 

  subsidiaries and other business units – 2,096,772.27

Other cash receipts relating to 

  investing activities 6,304,463.70 60,621,330.17

Sub-total of cash inflows from 

  investing activities 401,217,920.10 126,993,716.45

Cash payments to acquire or construct 

  fixed assets, intangible assets and 

  other long-term assets 88,982,913.86 76,376,864.48

Cash payments to acquire investments 191,155,888.88 317,278,987.47

Other cash payments relating to 

  investing activities 50,000,000.00 260,000,000.00

Sub-total of cash outflows from 

  investing activities 330,138,802.74 653,655,851.95

Net Cash Flow from 

  Investing Activities 71,079,117.36 (526,662,135.50)
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The Parent Company’s Cash Flow Statement (continued)

RMB

Amount 

recognized in the 

current period

Amount 

recognized in the 

Same Period of 

Last Year

ITEM Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
    

III.	Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Other cash receipts relating to 

  financing activities 71,000,000.00 279,500,000.00

Sub-total of cash inflows from 

  financing activities 71,000,000.00 279,500,000.00

Cash payments for distribution of dividends, 

  profit or settlement of interest expenses 255,980,333.99 245,490,209.00

Other cash payments relating to 

  financing activities 146,030,805.75 43,615,538.37

Sub-total of cash outflows from 

  financing activities 402,011,139.74 289,105,747.37

Net Cash Flow from 

  Financing Activities (331,011,139.74) (9,605,747.37)

IV.	Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes  

  on Cash and Cash Equivalents – –

V.	 Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and  

  Cash Equivalents (XVI)36(1) 249,475,978.03 (92,035,688.03)

Add: Opening balance of cash and 

        cash equivalents (XVI)36(2) 4,812,923,667.75 4,235,082,239.58

VI.	Closing Balance of Cash and  

  Cash Equivalents (XVI)36(2) 5,062,399,645.78 4,143,046,551.55
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

RMB

Current period (Unaudited)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company
 

ITEM

Share 

capital

Capital 

reserve

Other 

comprehensive 

income

Surplus 

reserve Retained profits

Non-controlling 

interests

Total 

shareholders’ 

equity
        

I.	 31 December 2021 1,233,841,000.00 2,572,524,766.32 1,178,842,757.57 1,009,210,479.29 5,227,141,020.57 (111,871,464.33) 11,109,688,559.42

II.	 Changes in current period

(1)	 Total comprehensive 

income – – 321,665,681.01 – 717,795,048.76 (2,866,385.36) 1,036,594,344.41

(2)	 Profit distribution

1.	 Distributions to 

shareholders – – – – (394,829,120.00) (567,435.06) (395,396,555.06)

III.	 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 1,233,841,000.00 2,572,524,766.32 1,500,508,438.58 1,009,210,479.29 5,550,106,949.33 (115,305,284.75) 11,750,886,348.77
        

RMB

The Same Period of Last Year (Unaudited)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company
 

ITEM

Share 

capital

Capital 

reserve

Other 

comprehensive 

income

Surplus 

reserve

Retained 

profits

Non-controlling 

interests

Total 

shareholders’ 

equity
        

I.	 31 December 2020 1,233,841,000.00 2,572,524,766.32 1,016,266,307.50 897,647,684.81 4,416,564,721.94 (108,694,463.23) 10,028,150,017.34

II.	 Changes in current period

(1)	 Total comprehensive 

income – – 153,924,304.47 – 602,909,289.93 (3,091,693.45) 753,741,900.95

(2)	 Profit distribution

1.	 Distributions to 

shareholders – – – – (382,490,710.00) (516,793.97) (383,007,503.97)

(3)	 Internal carry-over within 

equity

1.	 Other comprehensive 

income carried 

forward to retained 

earnings – – 1,311,665.90 – (1,311,665.90) – –

III.	 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) 1,233,841,000.00 2,572,524,766.32 1,171,502,277.87 897,647,684.81 4,635,671,635.97 (112,302,950.65) 10,398,884,414.32
        



44 Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

The Parent Company’s Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022

RMB

Current period (Unaudited) 

ITEM

Share

 capital

Capital

 reserve

Other

 comprehensive 

income

Surplus

 reserve

Retained 

profits

Total 

shareholders’ 

equity
       

I.	 31 December 2021 1,233,841,000.00 2,631,057,328.10 1,180,466,272.00 1,008,375,729.16 4,008,390,164.00 10,062,130,493.26

II.	 Changes in current period

(1)	 Total comprehensive income – – 321,529,600.00 – 630,387,603.10 951,917,203.10

(2)	 Profit distribution

1.	 Distributions to shareholders – – – – (394,829,120.00) (394,829,120.00)

III.	 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 1,233,841,000.00 2,631,057,328.10 1,501,995,872.00 1,008,375,729.16 4,243,948,647.10 10,619,218,576.36
       

RMB

The Same Period of Last Year (Unaudited)

ITEM

Share 

capital

Capital

 reserve

Other 

comprehensive 

income

Surplus

 reserve

Retained 

profits

Total 

shareholders’ 

equity
       

I.	 31 December 2020 1,233,841,000.00 2,631,057,328.10 1,017,913,006.10 896,812,934.68 3,388,127,389.56 9,167,751,658.44

II.	 Changes in current period

(1)	 Total comprehensive income – – 153,860,800.00 – 361,749,782.89 515,610,582.89

(2)	 Profit distribution

1.	 Distributions to shareholders – – – – (382,490,710.00) (382,490,710.00)

(3)	 Internal carry-over within equity

1.	 Other comprehensive income 

carried forward to retained 

earnings – – 1,311,665.90 – (1,311,665.90) –

III.	 30 June 2021 (Unaudited) 1,233,841,000.00 2,631,057,328.10 1,173,085,472.00 896,812,934.68 3,366,074,796.55 9,300,871,531.33
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(1)	 BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1.	 Company Overview

Upon approvals of Reply on State-owned Equity Management of Sichuan Xinhua Winshare 

Chain Co., Ltd. (Preparing for Establishment) (filed as Chuan Guo Zi Wei [2005] No. 81) issued 

by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Sichuan Province, 

and Reply on Incorporating Sichuan Xinhua Winshare Chain Co., Ltd. By Sichuan Provincial 

People’s Government (filed as Chuan Fu Han [2005] No. 69) issued by Sichuan Provincial People’s 

Government, Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Company”, originally known as Sichuan Xinhua Winshare Chain Co., Ltd.), collectively sponsored 

by Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Sichuan 

Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group”), Chengdu Huasheng (Group) Industry Co., Ltd., 

Sichuan Daily Newspaper Group Co., Ltd., Sichuan Cultural Industry Investment Group Co., Ltd. 

(hereinafter referred to as “Sichuan Cultural Investment Group”), Sichuan Youth and Children’s 

Publishing House Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Youth and Children’s Publishing House”), 

and Liaoning Publication Group Co., Ltd., was incorporated on 11 June 2005 upon registration 

at Sichuan Provincial Administration for Market Regulation.

In accordance with resolutions made on 7th meeting of the second session of the Board of 

Directors meeting on 20 August 2010, the Company changed its name from Sichuan Xinhua 

Winshare Chain Co., Ltd. To Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.

The Company publicly offered 401,761,000 shares of overseas listed foreign shares (including 

over-allotment) (“H Shares”) and was listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 May 2007.

As approved by Reply on Approval of IPO of Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd. (filed 

as Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2016] No. 1544) issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission, the 

Company publicly offered 98,710,000 shares of RMB ordinary shares (“A Share”) to the public 

and was listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 8 August 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(1)	 BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY (Continued)

1.	 Company Overview (Continued)

Luo Yong is the legal representative of the Company. The registered address of the Company 

is Unit 1, Block 1, No. 238, Sanse Road, Jinjiang District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province. The 

headquarters of the Company is located at Xinhua Star Tower A, No. 238, Sanse Road, Jinjiang 

District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are mainly engaged in: 

sales of books, newspapers, journals, electronic publications; wholesale of audio-visual products 

(for exclusive purpose of chain store); manufacture of electronic publications and audio-visual 

products; production of audio tapes, video tapes; logistics; and wholesale and retail of pre-

packaged food, dairy products (not including infant formula) (solely operated by branch office 

management); printing of publications, printed matters of package and decoration and other 

printed matters; (the valid period of the above business scope is subject to the approval of 

licenses). Plate-leased printing and supply of textbooks; investments in publications and assets 

management; leasing of properties; business services; wholesale and retail of goods; import and 

export business; education ancillary services; catering business and ticketing agency. (The items 

above exclude pre-licensing items while the post-licensing items are subject to the approval of 

licenses and shall be operated according to the licenses.)

The parent company of the Company is Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group. The 

Company is de facto controlled by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration 

Commission of Sichuan Province (“Sichuan SASAC”).

2.	 Scope of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated and the parent company’s financial statements were approved by the Board of 

the Company on 25 August 2022.

Details of the scope of the consolidated financial statements for the Period are set out in Note (VIII) 

“Interests in other entities”. Details of changes in the scope of consolidated financial statements 

for the Period are set out in Note (VII) “Changes in consolidation scope”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(II)	 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of preparation

The Group has adopted the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (“ASBE”) and relevant 

regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance (“MoF”). In addition, the Group has disclosed relevant 

financial information in accordance with Information Disclosure and Presentation Rules for Companies 

Offering Securities to the Public No. 15 – General Provisions on Financial Reporting (Revised in 2014), 

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange 

of Hong Kong Limited.

Going concern

The Group assessed its ability to continue as a going concern for the 12 months subsequent to 30 June 

2022, and found no events or circumstances that may cast significant doubts upon it. Hence the financial 

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Basis of accounting and principle of measurement

The Group has adopted the accrual basis of accounting. Except for certain financial instruments which 

are measured at fair value, the Group adopts the historical cost as the principle of measurement in the 

financial statements. Where assets are impaired, provisions for asset impairment are made in accordance 

with relevant requirements.

Where the historical cost is adopted as the measurement basis, assets are recorded at the amount of 

cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given to acquire them at the time of 

their acquisition. Liabilities are recorded at the amount of proceeds or assets received or the contractual 

amounts for assuming the present obligation, or, at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected 

to be paid to settle the liabilities in the normal course of business.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Regardless of whether that fair value 

is directly observable or estimated using valuation technique, fair value measurement and disclosure 

purposes in the financial statements are determined on such a basis.

For financial assets with transaction prices as the fair value upon initial recognition and using valuation 

technique of unobservable inputs in the subsequent measurement at the fair value, the technique is 

adjusted during the valuation to match the initial recognition results determined with the transaction prices.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(II)	 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Basis of accounting and principle of measurement (Continued)

Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 and 3 based on the degree to which the 

inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

•	 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

that the entity can access at the measurement date.

•	 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable 

for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

•	 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

(III)	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

1.	 Statement of compliance with the ASBE

The financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with ASBE, and 

present truly and completely, the consolidated and the parent company’s financial position as at 30 

June 2022, and the consolidated and the parent company’s results of operations, the consolidated 

and the parent company’s statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and the consolidated and 

the parent company’s cash flows for the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022.

2.	 Accounting period

The Group has adopted the calendar year as its accounting year, i.e. from 1 January to 31 

December.

3.	 Operating cycle

An operating cycle refers to the period since when an enterprise purchases assets for processing 

purpose until the realization of those assets in cash or cash equivalents. The Group’s operating 

cycle is 12 months.

4.	 Functional currency

Renminbi (“RMB”) is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company 

and its domestic subsidiaries operate. Therefore, the Company and its subsidiaries choose RMB 

as their functional currency. The Company adopts RMB to prepare its financial statements.
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(III)	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
(Continued)

5.	 The accounting treatment of business combinations involving enterprises under common 

control and business combinations not involving enterprises under common control

Business combinations are classified into business combinations involving enterprises under 

common control and business combinations not involving enterprises under common control.

5.1 	 Business combinations involving enterprises under common control

A business combination involving enterprises under common control is a business 

combination in which all of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same 

party or parties both before and after the combination, and that control is not transitory.

Assets and liabilities obtained shall be measured at their respective carrying amounts as 

recorded by the combining entities at the date of the combination. The difference between 

the carrying amount of the net assets obtained and the carrying amount of the consideration 

paid for the combination is adjusted to the share capital premium in capital reserve. If the 

share capital premium is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be adjusted 

against retained earnings.

Costs that are directly attributable to the combination are charged to profit or loss in the 

period in which they are incurred.

5.2 	 Business combinations not involving enterprises under common control and goodwill

A business combination not involving enterprises under common control is a business 

combination in which all of the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by the 

same party or parties before and after the combination.

The cost of combination is the aggregate of the fair values of the assets given, liabilities 

incurred or assumed, and equity securities issued by the acquirer in exchange for control 

of the acquiree. Where a business combination not involving enterprises under common 

control is achieved in stages that involve multiple transactions, the cost of combination is 

the sum of the consideration paid at the acquisition date and the fair value at the acquisition 

date of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree. The intermediary expenses 

incurred by the acquirer in respect of auditing, legal services, valuation and consultancy 

services, etc. and other associated administrative expenses attributable to the business 

combination are recognized in profit or loss when they are incurred.
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(III)	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
(Continued)

5.	 The accounting treatment of business combinations involving enterprises under common 

control and business combinations not involving enterprises under common control 

(Continued)

5.2 	 Business combinations not involving enterprises under common control and goodwill 

(Continued)

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, acquired by the 

acquirer in a business combination, that meet the recognition criteria shall be measured at 

fair value at the acquisition date.

Where the cost of combination exceeds the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the 

acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is treated as an asset and recognized as 

goodwill, which is measured at cost on initial recognition. Where the cost of combination is 

less than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the 

acquirer firstly reassesses the measurement of the fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable 

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities and measurement of the cost of combination. If 

after that reassessment, the cost of combination is still less than the acquirer’s interest in 

the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the acquirer recognizes it in profit or 

loss for the current period.

Goodwill arising on a business combination is measured at cost less accumulated 

impairment losses, and is presented separately in the consolidated financial statements.

6.	 Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidation in the consolidated financial statements is determined on the basis of 

control. Control exists when the investor has power over the investee; is exposed, or has rights, to 

variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and has the ability to use its power over the 

investee to affect its returns. Once there are any changes in relevant elements of the definition of 

control arising from changes in relevant facts or circumstances, the Group will make reassessment.

A subsidiary is consolidated commencing from the obtaining of the control over such subsidiary 

by the Group and is ceased to be consolidated upon losing the control over such subsidiary by 

the Group.

For a subsidiary disposed of by the Group, the operating results and cash flows before the date 

of disposal (the date when control is lost) are included in the consolidated income statement and 

consolidated statement of cash flows, as appropriate.

For a subsidiary acquired through a business combination not involving enterprises under common 

control, the operating results and cash flows from the acquisition date (the date when control is 

obtained) are included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of cash 

flows, as appropriate.
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6.	 Preparation of consolidated financial statements (Continued)

No matter when the business combination occurs in the reporting period, subsidiaries acquired 

through a business combination involving enterprises under common control are included in the 

Group’s scope of consolidation as if they had been included in the scope of consolidation from 

the date when they first came under the common control of the ultimate controlling party. Their 

operating results and cash flows from the beginning of the earliest reporting period are included 

in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of cash flows, as appropriate.

The significant accounting policies and accounting periods adopted by the subsidiaries are 

determined based on the uniform accounting policies and accounting periods set out by the 

Company.

The impacts of internal transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries and among the 

subsidiaries on the consolidated financial statements are eliminated on consolidation.

The portion of subsidiaries’ equity that is not attributable to the Company is treated as non-

controlling interests and presented as “non-controlling interests” in the consolidated balance 

sheet within shareholders’ equity. The portion of net profits or losses of subsidiaries for the period 

attributable to non-controlling shareholders are presented as “profit or loss attributable to non-

controlling shareholders” in the consolidated income statement below the “net profit” line item.

When the amount of loss for the period attributable to the non-controlling shareholders of a 

subsidiary exceeds the non-controlling shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of owners’ 

equity of the subsidiary, the excess amount is still allocated against non-controlling interests.

Acquisition of non-controlling interests or disposal of interest in a subsidiary that does not result 

in the loss of control over the subsidiary is accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying 

amounts of the Company owners’ interests and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the 

changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. The difference between the amount by which 

the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid/received is 

adjusted to capital reserve under owners’ equity. If the capital reserve is not sufficient to absorb 

the difference, the excess is adjusted against retained earnings.
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6.	 Preparation of consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Where equity interests in an acquiree are acquired in stages through multiple transactions 

ultimately constituting a business combination not involving enterprises under common control, 

the acquirer shall determine if these transactions are considered to be a “bundled transaction”. 

If yes, these transactions are accounted for as a single transaction where control is obtained. If 

no, these transactions are accounted for as multiple transactions where control is obtained at the 

acquisition date; in this case, the acquirer remeasures its previously-held equity interests in the 

acquiree at their fair value on the acquisition date and recognizes any differences between such fair 

value and carrying amounts in profit or loss for the period. Where equity interests in an acquiree 

held before the acquisition date involve changes in other comprehensive income or changes in 

other owners’ equity under equity method, they are transferred to income for the period that the 

acquisition date belongs to.

7.	 Classification of joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is classified into joint operation and joint venture, depending on the rights and 

obligations of the parties to the arrangement, which is assessed by considering the structure and 

the legal form of the arrangement, the terms agreed by the parties in the contractual arrangement 

and, when relevant, other facts and circumstances. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby 

the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for 

the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties 

that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.

The joint arrangement of the Group refers to the joint venture. The Group accounts for investments 

in joint ventures using equity method. Refer to Note (III) “14.3.2 Long-term equity investments 

accounted for using the equity method” for details.

8.	 Recognition criteria of cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand of the Group and its deposits that can be readily withdrawn on 

demand. Cash equivalents are the Group’s short-term (generally due within three months from 

the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts 

of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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(Continued)

9.	 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition, by applying the spot exchange 

rate on the date of the transaction.

At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are translated into the functional 

currency using the spot exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising 

from the differences between the spot exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date and 

those on initial recognition or at the previous balance sheet date are recognized in profit or loss 

for the period, save as: (1) exchange differences relating to a special borrowing denominated in 

foreign currency qualified for capitalization are capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant asset 

during the capitalization period; (2) exchange differences relating to hedging instruments for the 

purpose of hedging against foreign currency risks are accounted for using hedge accounting; (3) 

exchange differences arising from changes in the carrying amounts (other than amortized cost) of 

monetary items classified at FVTOCI are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Foreign currency non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated to the amounts 

in functional currency at the spot exchange rates on the dates of the transactions.

10.	 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument.

For all regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, assets to be received and liabilities to be 

assumed therefrom shall be recognized on a trade date basis, or assets sold shall be derecognized 

on a trade date basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. For financial assets and 

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are immediately recognized 

in profit or loss. For other financial assets and financial liabilities, transaction costs are included in 

their initial recognized amounts. For accounts receivable excluding significant financing components 

or regardless of financing components of contracts less than on year initially recognized based 

on ASBE No. 14 – Revenue (the “Standard – Revenue”), accounts receivable recognized shall 

be measured at transaction price defined based on the Standard – Revenue on initial recognition.
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10.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or 

a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over each accounting 

period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the 

expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the net carrying amount of the financial 

asset or the amortized cost of financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the 

Group estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial asset or 

financial liability including earlier repayment, extension, call option or other similar options etc. 

without considering future credit losses.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability is the amount of a financial asset or 

a financial liability initially recognized net of principal repaid, plus or less the cumulative amortized 

amount arising from amortization of the difference between the amount initially recognized and the 

amount at the maturity date using the effective interest method, net of cumulative loss allowance 

(only applicable to financial assets).

10.1 	 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s financial assets of various categories are 

subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 

or fair value through profit or loss.

If contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, and the 

financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in 

order to collect contractual cash flows, such asset is classified into financial asset measured 

at amortized cost. Such financial assets mainly include bank and cash, notes receivable, 

accounts receivable, other receivables, other current assets (time deposits), long-term 

receivables, other non-current assets (time deposits) and etc.
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10.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

10.1 	 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets (Continued)

The contract clauses of financial assets stipulate that cash flows generated on a specified 

date are only payments of principal and interest based on the amount of outstanding 

principal and the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is 

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets. The 

financial assets that meet the above conditions are classified as at fair value through other 

comprehensive income (FVTOCI), among which those with maturities over one year upon 

acquisition are presented under other debt investments, those with maturities within one 

year (inclusive) since the balance sheet date are presented under non-current assets due 

within one year, those classified as accounts receivable and notes receivable at FVTOCI 

upon acquisition are presented under financing receivables, those remaining items with 

maturities within one year (inclusive) upon acquisition are presented under other current 

assets.

Upon initial recognition, the Group can irrevocably designate non-trading equity instrument 

investments other than contingent considerations recognized in the business combination 

not under common control as financial assets at FVTOCI based on an individual financial 

asset. Such financial assets are presented as other equity instrument investments.

Financial assets meeting one of the following requirements indicate that the financial assets 

are held by the Group for trading:

•	 The obtaining of relevant financial assets is mainly for the purpose of sale in the near 

future.

•	 Relevant financial assets are part of the identifiable financial instrument combination 

under centralised management upon initial recognition and there is objective 

evidence indicating that recently there exists a short-term profit model.

•	 Relevant financial assets are derivatives, excluding derivatives that meet the definition 

of financial guarantee contracts as well as derivatives designated as effective hedging 

instruments.
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10.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

10.1 	 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets (Continued)

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) include those classified as 

at FVTPL and those designated as at FVTPL:

•	 Financial assets that are unqualified for the classification as at amortized cost and 

at FVTOCI are classified as at FVTPL.

•	 Upon initial recognition, to eradicate or significantly reduce accounting mismatches, 

the Group can irrevocably designate financial assets as at FVTPL.

Excluding derivative financial assets, financial assets at FVTPL are presented under held-

for-trading financial assets. Those due over one year from the balance sheet date (or with 

no fixed term) and expected to be held for over one year are presented under other non-

current financial assets.

10.1.1 	 Financial assets classified as at amortized cost

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gain or loss arising from 

impairment or derecognition is included in profit or loss for the current period.

Interest income from the Group’s financial assets measured at amortized cost is 

recognized based on the effective interest method. Interest income is determined by 

applying an effective interest rate to the book balance of the financial asset except 

for the following situations:

•	 For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Group 

recognizes their interest income based on amortized cost and credit-adjusted 

effective interest rate of such financial assets since initial recognition.
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10.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

10.1 	 Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets (Continued)

10.1.1	Financial assets classified as at amortized cost (Continued)

•	 For purchased or originated financial assets without credit impairment but 

subsequently becoming credit-impaired, the Group subsequently recognizes 

their interest income based on amortized costs and effective interest rate of 

such financial assets. If there exists no credit impairment due to improvement 

in credit risk of the financial instruments subsequently, and such improvement 

can be associated with a particular event upon the application of the above 

rule, the Group recognizes interest income by applying effective interest rate 

to book balance of the financial assets.

10.1.2	Financial assets classified as at FVTOCI

Gains or losses on impairment and interest income calculated using effective interest 

rate that relate to a financial asset classified as at FVTOCI are recognized in profit or 

loss for the period, otherwise fair value changes in the financial asset are included in 

other comprehensive income. The amount of the financial asset included in profit or 

loss for each period is equal to the amount as if it had been measured at amortized 

cost through profit or loss for each period. Upon derecognition of the financial asset, 

cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income are 

transferred and included in profit or loss for the period.

The fair value change of non-trading equity instrument investments designated 

as at FVTOCI is recognized in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition 

of the financial asset, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other 

comprehensive income are transferred and included in retained earnings. During 

the period for which the Group holds the investments in such non-trading equity 

instruments, dividend income is recognized and included in profit or loss for the 

period when the Group’s right to collect dividend has been established; it is probable 

that economic benefits associated with dividend will flow into the Group; and the 

amount of dividend can be reliably measured.

10.1.3	Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, gains or losses 

arising from fair value changes and dividends and interest income in relation to such 

financial assets are included in profit or loss for the period.
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10.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

10.2 	 Impairment of financial instruments

The Group carries out impairment testing of and recognizes the loss allowance for financial 

assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets at FVTOCI and lease receivables based 

on expected credit loss (ECL).

The Group measures loss allowance for all contract assets, notes receivable and account 

receivables arising from transactions regulated by the Standard – Revenue and operating 

lease receivables arising from the transactions regulated by the ASBE No. 21 – Lease based 

on the amount of full lifetime ECL.

For other financial instruments, except for the purchased or internally generated credit-

impaired financial assets, at each balance sheet date, the Group assesses changes in 

credit risk of relevant financial assets since initial recognition. If the credit risk of the 

above financial instruments has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group 

measures loss allowance based on the amount of full lifetime ECL; if credit risk of the 

financial instruments has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group 

recognizes loss allowance based on 12-month ECL of the financial asset. Increase in or 

reversal of credit loss allowance is included in profit or loss as loss or gain on impairment. 

Except for financial assets classified as at FVTOCI, in which case the impairment amount 

is offset against the carrying amount of financial assets. For the financial assets classified 

as FVTOCI, the Group recognizes credit loss allowance in other comprehensive income, 

without reducing the carrying amount of the financial assets presented in the statement of 

financial position.

The Group measured loss allowance at the full lifetime ECL of the financial instruments in 

the prior accounting period. However, as at the balance sheet date for the current period, 

for the above financial instruments, due to failure to qualify as significant increase in credit 

risk since initial recognition, the Group measures loss allowance for the financial instruments 

at 12-month ECL at the balance sheet date for the current period. Relevant reversal of loss 

allowance is included in profit or loss as gain on impairment.
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10.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

10.2 	 Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)

10.2.1	Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, 

the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at 

the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument 

as at the date of initial recognition by using reasonable and supportable forward-

looking information available.

The following information is taken into account when the Group assesses whether 

credit risk has increased significantly:

(1)	 Whether expected adverse changes in business, financial and economic 

conditions of the borrower which will affect debtor’s ability to perform 

repayment obligation have changed significantly.

(2)	 Whether the actual or expected operating results of the debtor have changed 

significantly.

(3)	 Whether credit risk of other financial instruments issued by the same debtor 

has increased significantly.

(4)	 Whether regulatory, economic or technical environment for the debtor has 

significant adverse changes.

(5)	 Whether the debtor’s expected performance and repayment activities have 

changed significantly.

At the balance sheet date, the Group assumes that credit risk of the financial 

instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition when the Group 

determines that the financial instrument is only exposed to lower credit risk.
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10.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

10.2 	 Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)

10.2.2	Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have an adverse 

impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

Evidence of credit-impairment includes observable data about the following events:

(1)	 Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

(2)	 A breach of contract by the debtor, such as a default or delinquency in interest 

or principal payments;

(3)	 The creditor, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the debtor’s 

financial difficulty, having granted to the debtor a concession that the creditor 

would not otherwise consider;

(4)	 It becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial 

reorganizations;

(5)	 The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset due to financial 

difficulties of issuer or debtor;

(6)	 The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a significant discount that 

reflects the incurred credit losses.
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10.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

10.2 	 Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)

10.2.3	Recognition of ECL

The Group recognizes credit loss for contract assets, receivables-deposits and 

security deposits and long-term receivables on an individual basis and recognizes 

credit loss of related financial instruments for notes receivable, accounts receivable 

(including receivables with sales return clause) and other receivables other than 

deposits and security deposits on a collectively basis using a provision matrix. 

The Group classifies financial instruments into different groups based on shared 

risk characteristics. Shared credit risk characteristics include type of financial 

instruments, the date of initial recognition, remaining contractual maturity and 

industry of debtor etc.

ECL of relevant financial instruments is recognized based on the following methods:

•	 For a financial asset, credit loss is the present value of difference between the 

contractual cash flow receivable and the expected cash flows to be received.

•	 For lease receivables, credit loss is the present value of difference between 

the contractual cash flow receivable and the expected cash flows to be 

received.

•	 For credit-impaired financial assets other than the purchased or internally 

generated credit-impaired financial assets at the balance sheet date, credit 

loss is difference between the carrying amount of financial assets and the 

present value of expected future cash flows discounted at original effective 

interest rate.

The Group’s measurement of ECL of financial instruments reflects factors including 

unbiased probability weighted average amount recognized by assessing a series of 

possible results, time value of money, reasonable and supportable information related 

to historical events, current condition and forecast of future economic position that 

is available without undue cost or effort at the balance sheet date.
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10.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

10.2 	 Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)

10.2.4	Reduction in financial assets

The Group directly reduces the carrying amount of financial assets when ceasing 

to reasonably expect that the contractual cash flow of such financial assets may 

be fully or partially recoverable. Such reduction comprises derecognition of relevant 

financial assets.

10.3 	 Transfer of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset if one of the following conditions is satisfied: (1) 

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; or (2) the financial 

asset has been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 

financial asset is transferred to the transferee; or (3) although the financial asset has been 

transferred, the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards 

of ownership of the financial asset but has not retained control of the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 

of the financial asset, and it retains control of the financial asset, the Group continues to 

recognize the financial asset transferred to the extent of its continuing involvement and 

recognizes the relevant liabilities correspondingly. The Group measures the relevant liabilities 

in the following ways:

•	 If the financial asset transferred is measured at amortized cost, the carrying amount 

of the relevant liabilities is equal to the carrying amount of the financial asset 

transferred with continuing involvement less the amortized cost of the rights retained 

by the Group (if the Group retains relevant rights due to the transfer of financial 

assets) plus the amortized cost of the obligations undertaken by the Group (if the 

Group assumes relevant obligations due to the transfer of financial assets), and the 

relevant liabilities are not designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss.

•	 If the transferred financial asset is measured at fair value, the carrying amount of the 

relevant liabilities is equal to the carrying amount of the financial asset transferred 

with continuing involvement less the fair value of the rights retained by the Group 

(if the Group retains relevant rights due to the transfer of financial assets) plus the 

fair value of the obligations assumed by the Group (if the Group assumes relevant 

obligations due to the transfer of financial assets), and the fair value of the rights 

and obligations is measured on an individual basis.
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10.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

10.3 	 Transfer of financial assets (Continued)

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that satisfies the derecognition criteria, the 

difference between the carrying amount of the transferred financial asset on the date of 

derecognition plus the consideration received from the transfer of financial asset and the 

sum of corresponding amounts derecognized in the accumulated changes in the fair value 

of other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss for the period. If the Group 

transfers a financial asset that belongs to non-trading equity instrument designated as at 

FVTOCI, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income 

are transferred and included in retained earnings.

For a partial transfer of a financial asset that satisfies the derecognition criteria, the carrying 

amount of the financial asset in its entirety before transfer shall be amortized between 

the part of financial asset derecognized and the part of financial asset continued to be 

recognized at their respective fair values on the transfer dates. The difference between 

the sum of the consideration received from the part of financial asset derecognized and 

the amount corresponding to derecognition in the cumulative gains or losses previously 

recognized in other comprehensive income and the carrying amount of the part of financial 

asset derecognized at the date of derecognition is included in the profit or loss for the 

period. If the financial asset transferred by the Group is a non-trading equity instrument 

investment designated at FVTOCI, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other 

comprehensive income are transferred and included in retained earnings.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that does not satisfy the derecognition 

criteria, the Group continues to recognize the transferred financial asset in its entirety. The 

consideration received is recognized as a financial liability.

10.4 	 Classification of financial liabilities and equity instruments

The Group’s financial instruments or their components are, on initial recognition, classified 

into financial liabilities or equity instruments on the basis of contractual terms for issuance 

and the economic substance reflected by such terms and in combination with definitions 

of financial liability and equity instrument, instead of only on the basis of the legal form.
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10.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

10.4 	 Classification of financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

10.4.1	Classification, recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities at 

fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The Group’s financial 

liabilities are all other financial liabilities, mainly including notes payable, accounts 

payable, other payables and etc.

10.4.1.1	Other financial liabilities

All other financial liabilities as measured at amortized cost, and gains or 

losses arising from derecognition or amortization are recognized in profit or 

loss for the period.

10.4.2	Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability (or part of it) only when the underlying 

present obligation (or part of it) is discharged. An agreement between the Group 

(an existing borrower) and an existing lender to replace the original financial liability 

with a new financial liability with substantially different terms is accounted for as an 

extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial 

liability.

When the Group derecognizes a financial liability or a part of it, it recognizes the 

difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of the financial 

liability) derecognized and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets 

transferred or new financial liabilities assumed) in profit or loss.

10.4.3	Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets 

of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued (including 

refinanced), repurchased, sold and cancelled by the Group are recognized as 

changes of equity. Change of fair value of equity instruments is not recognized by 

the Group. Transaction costs related to equity transactions are deducted from equity.

The Group recognizes the distribution to holders of the equity instruments as 

distribution of profits, and dividends paid do not affect total amount of shareholders 

equity.
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10.	 Financial instruments (Continued)

10.5	 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Where the Group has a legal right that is currently enforceable to set off the recognized 

financial assets and financial liabilities, and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 

realize the financial asset and settle the financial liability simultaneously, a financial asset 

and a financial liability shall be offset and the net amount is presented in the balance 

sheet. Except for the above circumstances, financial assets and financial liabilities shall be 

presented separately in the balance sheet and shall not be offset.

11.	 Financing receivables

Notes receivable classified at FVTOCI are presented as financing receivables. See Note (III)10 for 

the relevant accounting policies.

12.	 Inventories

12.1	 Categories of inventories

The Group’s inventories mainly include raw materials, packaging materials, low cost and 

short-lived materials, work in progress, and goods on hand, etc. Inventories are initially 

measured at cost. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion 

and other expenditures incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 

condition.

12.2	 Valuation method of inventories upon delivery

The actual cost of inventories upon delivery is calculated using the weighted average 

method.
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12.	 Inventories (Continued)

12.3	 Basis for determining net realizable value of inventories and provision methods for decline 

in value of inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable 

value. If the net realizable value is below the cost of inventories, a provision for decline in 

value of inventories is made.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventories in the ordinary course of 

business less the estimated costs to be incurred up to completion, the estimated costs 

necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. Net realizable value is determined on the 

basis of clear evidence obtained, and takes into consideration the purposes of holding 

inventories and effect of post balance sheet events.

For large quantity and low value items of inventories of the Group, provision for decline 

in value is made based on categories of inventories. For items of inventories relating to a 

product line that are produced and marketed in the same geographical area, have the same 

or similar end uses or purposes, and cannot be practicably evaluated separately from other 

items in that product line, provision for decline in value is determined on an aggregate basis.

For general books, textbooks and supplementary materials, the provision for decline in 

value of inventories is made by using the following method:

The provision for decline in value of self-owned, stenciling-rent, consigned printing and 

outsourcing (for underwriting part) general books are made by: aging within one year, no 

provision for impairment is made; aging for one to two years, provision is made at 10% of 

total pricing of book inventory at year end/period end; aging for two to three years, provision 

is made at 20% of total pricing of book inventory at year end/period end; aging for more 

than 3 years, provision is made at 100% of actual costs of book inventories at year end/

period end. The provision for outsourcing (for returnable part) general books is made at 

1%-3% of actual costs of book inventories at the year end/period end.

The Group makes impairment provisions for textbooks and supplementary materials 

produced or purchased for teaching in prior years in full amount. For those produced 

or purchased for current period’s teaching, if the Group has a clear picture about the 

utilization for the next year, the Group will make impairment provision for textbooks and 

supplementary materials which will not be used in the next year at full amount, and will 

make impairment provision for those whose utilization condition is unclear at 50% of their 

costs. No impairment provision for textbooks and supplementary materials produced or 

purchased for teaching for next year will be made.

After the provision for decline in value of inventories is made, if the circumstances that 

previously caused inventories to be written down below cost no longer exist so that the net 

realizable value of inventories is higher than their carrying amounts, the original provision 

for decline in value is reversed and the reversal is included in profit or loss for the period.
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12.	 Inventories (Continued)

12.4	 Inventory count system

The perpetual inventory system is maintained for stock system.

12.5	 Amortization method for low cost and short-lived consumable items and packaging 

materials

Low cost and short-lived consumable items and packaging materials are amortized using 

the immediate write-off method.

13.	 Contract assets

13.1	 Recognition methods and criteria for contract assets

Contract assets refer to the rights to receive consideration for the transfer of goods or 

services by the Group to its customers, and that right depends on factors other than the 

passage of time. The Group’s unconditional right (only the passage of time is required) to 

consideration from customer is presented separately as receivables.

13.2	 The determination method and accounting treatment for ECL of contract assets

Please refer to Note (III)10.2 “Impairment of financial instruments” for details of the 

determination method and accounting treatment for ECL of contract assets.
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14.	 Long-term equity investments

14.1	 Judgement criteria for joint control and significant influence

Control exists when the investor has power over the investee; is exposed, or has rights, 

to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and has the ability to use its 

power over the investee to affect its returns. Joint control is the contractually agreed 

sharing of control over an economic activity, and exists only when the strategic financial 

and operating policy decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of 

the parties sharing control. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial 

and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those 

policies. When determining whether an investing enterprise is able to exercise control or 

significant influence over an investee, the effect of potential voting rights of the investee (for 

example, warrants and convertible debts) held by the investing enterprises or other parties 

that are currently exercisable or convertible shall be considered.

14.2	 Determination of initial investment cost

For a long-term equity investment acquired through a business combination involving 

enterprises under common control, the investment cost of the long-term equity investment 

is the attributable share of the carrying amount of the owners’ equity of the acquiree at 

the date of combination. The different between the initial investment cost of the long-term 

equity investment and the amount of cash paid, the carrying amounts of non-cash assets 

transferred and liabilities assumed is adjusted to capital reserve. If the capital reserve is not 

sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be adjusted against retained earnings.

For a long-term equity investment acquired through business combination not involving 

enterprises under common control, the initial investment cost of the long-term equity 

investment is the aggregate cost on the date of acquisition. Where equity interests in an 

acquiree are acquired in stages through multiple transactions ultimately constituting a 

business combination not involving enterprises under common control, the acquirer shall 

determine if these transactions are considered to be a “bundled transaction”. If yes, these 

transactions are accounted for as a single transaction where control is obtained. If no, the 

sum of carrying amounts of equity investments previously held in the acquiree and the new 

investment cost is deemed as the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment 

that was changed to be accounted for using cost method. If the equity interests previously 

held were accounted for using the equity method, the corresponding other comprehensive 

income is not subject to accounting treatment temporarily.

The expenses incurred by the acquirer or acquiree in respect of auditing, legal services, 

valuation and consultancy services, etc. and other associated administrative expenses 

attributable to the business combination are recognized in profit or loss when they are 

incurred.

The long-term equity investment acquired otherwise than through a business combination 

is initially measured at its cost.
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14.	 Long-term equity investments (Continued)

14.3	 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit or loss

14.3.1	Long-term equity investment accounted for using the cost method

Long-term equity investments in subsidiaries are accounted for using the cost 

method in the parent company’s separate financial statements. A subsidiary is an 

investee that is controlled by the Group.

Under the cost method, a long-term equity investment is measured at initial 

investment cost. The cost of the long-term equity investment is adjusted according 

to addition or disposal of investment. Investment income is recognized in the period 

in accordance with the attributable share of cash dividends or profit distributions 

declared by the investee.

14.3.2	Long-term equity investment accounted for using the equity method

The Group accounts for investment in associates and joint ventures using the equity 

method. An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and 

a joint venture refers to a joint arrangement whereby the Group has only the rights 

to the net assets of such arrangement.

Under the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a long-term equity 

investment exceeds the Group’s share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable 

net assets at the time of acquisition, no adjustment is made to the initial investment 

cost. Where the initial investment cost is less than the Group’s share of the fair value 

of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of acquisition, the difference 

is recognized in profit or loss for the period, and the cost of the long-term equity 

investment is adjusted accordingly.
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14.	 Long-term equity investments (Continued)

14.3	 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit or loss (Continued)

14.3.2	Long-term equity investment accounted for using the equity method (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes its share of the net profit or loss 

and other comprehensive income of the investee for the year as investment income 

and other comprehensive income respectively. Meanwhile, carrying amount of 

long-term equity investment is adjusted. The carrying amount of long-term equity 

investment is decreased in accordance with its share of the investee’s declared 

profit or cash dividends. Other changes in owners’ equity of the investee other than 

net profit or loss and other comprehensive income are correspondingly adjusted 

to the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment, and recognized in the 

capital reserve. The Group recognizes its share of the investee’s net profit or loss 

based on the fair value of the investee’s individual identifiable assets, etc. at the 

acquisition date after making appropriate adjustments. Where the accounting policies 

and accounting period adopted by the investee are not consistent with those of 

the Company, the Company shall adjust the financial statements of the investee to 

conform to the Company’s accounting policies and accounting period, and recognize 

investment income and other comprehensive income based on the adjusted financial 

statements. The Group’s transactions with its associates and joint ventures where 

assets contributed or sold do not constitute a business, unrealised internal profit or 

loss is recognized as investment profit or loss to the extent that those attributable to 

the Group’s proportionate shareholding are eliminated. However, unrealised losses 

resulting from the Group’s internal transactions with its investees which represent 

impairment losses on the transferred assets are not eliminated.

The Group discontinues recognizing its share of net losses of the investee after the 

carrying amount of the long-term equity investment together with any long-term 

interests that in substance form part of its net investment in the investee is reduced 

to zero. In addition, if the Group has incurred obligations to assume additional losses 

of the investee, a provision is recognized according to the expected obligation, 

and recorded as investment loss for the period. Where net profits are subsequently 

made by the investee, the Group resumes recognizing its share of those profits only 

after its share of the profits exceeds the share of losses previously not recognized.
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14.	 Long-term equity investments (Continued)

14.4	 Disposal of long-term equity investments

On disposal of a long-term equity investment, the difference between its carrying amount 

and the proceeds actually received is recognized in profit or loss for the period.

15.	 Investment properties

An investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. The 

investment property of the Group is a building that is leased out.

An investment property is measured initially at cost. Subsequent expenditures incurred for 

such investment property are included in the cost of the investment property if it is probable 

that economic benefits associated with an investment property will flow to the Group and the 

subsequent expenditures can be measured reliably. Other subsequent expenditures are recognized 

in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of investment property, and adopts 

a depreciation policy for the investment property which is consistent with that for buildings.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is 

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the Group recognizes the 

amount of any proceeds on disposal net of the carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss 

for the period.
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16.	 Fixed assets

16.1	 Recognition criteria

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods 

or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and have useful lives of 

more than one accounting year. A fixed asset is recognized only when it is probable that 

economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset 

can be measured reliably. Fixed assets are initially measured at cost.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for the fixed asset are included in the cost of the fixed 

asset and if it is probable that economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the 

Group and the subsequent expenditures can be measured reliably. Meanwhile the carrying 

amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Other subsequent expenditures are recognized 

in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

16.2	 Depreciation method

A fixed asset is depreciated over its useful life using the straight-line method since the 

month subsequent to the one in which it is ready for intended use. The useful life, estimated 

net residual value rate and annual depreciation rate of each category of fixed assets are 

as follows:

Category Useful life

Estimated 
net residual 

value rate

Annual 
depreciation 

rate
    

Buildings 8-40 years – 2.50-12.50%
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years 0-3% 9.70-20.00%
Electronic equipment and others 5-8 years 0-3% 12.13-20.00%
Transportation vehicles 5-8 years 0-3% 12.13-20.00%

    

Estimated net residual value of a fixed asset is the estimated amount that the Group would 

currently obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, 

if the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.

16.3 Other explanations

If a fixed asset is upon disposal or no future economic benefits are expected to be 

generated from its use or disposal, the fixed asset is derecognized. When a fixed asset is 

sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the amount of any proceeds on disposal of the asset 

net of the carrying amount and related taxes is recognized in profit or loss for the period.

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value of a fixed asset and the 

depreciation method applied at least once at each financial year end, and accounts for any 

change as a change in an accounting estimate.
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17.	 Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at its actual costs. The actual costs include various 

construction expenditures during the construction period and other relevant costs. Construction 

in progress is not depreciated. Construction in progress is transferred to a fixed asset when it is 

ready for intended use.

18.	 Intangible assets

18.1	 Valuation method, useful life and impairment test for intangible assets

Intangible assets include land use rights, software and patents etc.

An intangible asset is measured initially at cost. When an intangible asset with a finite useful 

life is available for use, its original cost is amortized over its estimated useful life using the 

straight-line method. The estimated net residual value of intangible assets of the Group is 

zero. The useful life for each category of intangible assets is as follows:

Category Useful life
  

Land use rights 40-70 years

Patents 10-15 years

Software 5-10 years

Others 10 years
  

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful life and 

amortization method at the end of the year, and makes adjustments when necessary.

For details of impairment test for intangible assets, please refer to Note (III) “19. Impairment 

of long-term assets”.
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18.	 Intangible assets (Continued)

18.2	 Internal research and development expenditure

Expenditure during the research phase is recognized as an expense in the period in which 

it is incurred.

Expenditure during the development phase that meets all of the following conditions at 

the same time is recognized as intangible asset. Expenditure during development phase 

that does not meet the following conditions is recognized in profit or loss for the period:

(1)	 it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available 

for use or sale;

(2)	 the Group has the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

(3)	 the Group can demonstrate the ways in which the intangible asset will generate 

economic benefits, including the evidence of the existence of a market for the output 

of the intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used internally, 

the usefulness of the intangible asset;

(4)	 the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the 

development and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(5)	 the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development phase 

can be reliably measured.

If the expenditures cannot be distinguished between the research phase and development 

phase, the Group recognizes all of them in profit or loss for the period. The costs of 

intangible assets incurred in internal development activities only include the gross 

expenditures incurred for bringing the intangible assets to expected usage from the point 

of time of satisfaction of capitalization conditions. The expenditures included in the profit or 

loss capitalized before the same intangible asset meets the capitalization conditions during 

the course of development are not adjusted.



75Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(III)	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
(Continued)

19.	 Impairment of long-term assets

The Group reviews the long-term equity investments, investment properties measured by cost 

method, fixed assets, construction in progress, right-of-use assets and intangible assets with 

definite useful life at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that 

they have suffered an impairment loss. If there is any indication that such assets may be impaired, 

the recoverable amounts are estimated for such assets.

Recoverable amount is estimated on individual basis. If it is not practical to estimate the 

recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of the asset group to which 

the asset belongs will be estimated. The recoverable amount of asset or asset group is the higher 

of fair value net of disposal expenses and the present value of estimated future cash flow.

If such recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, a provision for impairment losses in 

respect of the deficit is recognized in profit or loss for the period.

In determining the impairment loss of assets related to contract costs, the Group first determines 

the impairment loss of other assets related to the contract recognized in accordance with other 

relevant ASBE. Secondly, for assets related to contract costs, the excess is provided for impairment 

and recognized as asset impairment loss if the carrying amount of the assets is higher than the 

difference between the followings: (1) the remaining amount of consideration that the Group 

expects to receive in exchange for the goods or services to which the assets relate; and (2) the 

estimated costs to be incurred for the transfer of the relevant goods or services.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least at the end of each year. For the purpose of impairment 

testing, goodwill is considered together with the related assets group(s), i.e., goodwill is reasonably 

allocated to the related assets group(s) or each of assets group(s) expected to benefit from the 

synergies of the combination. An impairment loss is recognized if the recoverable amount of the 

assets group or sets of assets groups (including goodwill) is less than its carrying amount. If the 

impairment loss is recognized, it is first deducted from the carrying amount of goodwill allocated 

to the asset group or sets of asset groups, and then deducted from the carrying amount of the 

remaining assets of the asset group or sets of asset groups excluding goodwill on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss once recognized shall not be reversed in a subsequent period.

20.	 Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses represent expenses incurred that should be amortized over the 

current period and each of the subsequent periods (together of more than one year). Long-term 

prepaid expenses are amortized over the expected periods in which benefits are derived.
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21.	 Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities refer to the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for 

which the Group has received or should receive consideration from the customer. Contract assets 

and contract liabilities under the same contract are presented in net amounts.

22.	 Employee benefits

22.1	 Accounting treatment for short-term employee benefits

In the accounting period in which an employee has rendered services, the Group recognizes 

the actual short-term employee benefits payable for those services as a liability and the 

profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred or cost of related assets. The Group 

recognizes the employee welfare as profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred or 

cost of related assets. The non-monetary employee welfare shall be measured at fair value.

Payment made by the Group of social security contributions for employees such as 

premiums or contributions on medical insurance, work injury insurance and maternity 

insurance, etc. and payments of housing funds, as well as union running costs and 

employee education costs provided in accordance with relevant requirements, are calculated 

according to prescribed bases and percentages in determining the amount of employee 

benefits and recognized as relevant liabilities, with a corresponding charge to the profit 

or loss for the period or the costs of relevant assets in the accounting period in which 

employees provide services.

22.2	 Accounting treatment of post-employment benefits

The entire post-employment benefits of the Group are defined contribution plan, which 

are primarily the payments for basic pensions and unemployment insurance related to 

government mandated social welfare programs, as well as the annuity scheme established. 

The Group makes contributions to the annuity scheme at a certain percentage of the 

employees’ basic salaries for the previous year. If the employees left the enterprise annuity 

plan prior to vesting fully in the contributions, they are required to return part of their 

equity interests to the Group. The returned contributions shall not be used by the Group 

to reduce the existing level of contributions of the annuity scheme. The use of the returned 

contributions will be determined in the future.

In an accounting period of an employee rendering services to the Group, the Group 

recognizes the payable amount calculated based on the defined contribution plan as a 

liability and includes it in the current profit or loss or as cost of related asset.
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22.	 Employee benefits (Continued)

22.3	 Accounting treatment of termination benefits

When the Group provides termination benefits to employees, employee benefit liabilities 

are recognized for termination benefits, with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss 

for the period at the earlier of: when the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw the offer of 

termination benefits because of the termination plan or a curtailment proposal; and when 

the Group recognizes costs or expenses related to restructuring that involves the payment 

of termination benefits.

23.	 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation related to a contingency, it 

is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and the 

amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to 

settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account factors pertaining to 

a contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time value of money. Where the effect of the 

time value of money is material, the best estimate of provision is determined by discounting the 

estimated future cash outflows.

24.	 Revenue

Revenue of the Group is primarily from the following business categories:

(1)	 Sales of textbooks and supplementary materials business. Textbooks and supplementary 

materials are mainly sold by taking orders from education system and primary and middle 

schools.

(2)	 Sales of general books business. General books are sold through wholesales as well as 

through direct channels toward the ultimate clients, such as retail stores and internet 

(including self-owned and third party electronic commercial platform), etc.

(3)	 Education informatized and equipment business where the Group purchases software and 

hardware primarily from the third party, and integrates them to provide digitalized solution 

for the schools.

(4)	 Printing service and supply of materials business, which mainly includes sales of all kinds 

of paper and small quantities of printing machinery.

(5)	 Concessionaire sales business. It mainly refers to the establishment of sales counters in 

the designated areas of the Group’s retail stores by commodity suppliers, and sales by the 

sales staff of the supplier or the business staff of the retail stores.

(6)	 Other operations are mainly logistics and warehousing services.
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24.	 Revenue (Continued)

The Group recognizes revenue based on the transaction price allocated to such performance 

obligation when a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services 

underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. A performance 

obligation represents the commitment that a good and service that is distinct shall be transferred 

by the Group to the customer. Transaction price refers to the consideration that the Group is 

expected to receive a consideration due to the transfer of goods or services to the customer, 

but it does not include payments received on behalf of third parties and amounts that the Group 

expects to return to the customer.

If one of the following criteria is met and it is a performance obligation performed over time, the 

Group recognizes the revenue within a certain period of time according to the progress of the 

performance: (1) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

Group’s performance as the Group performs; (2) the customer is able to control the goods under 

construction in the course of the Group’s performance; (3) the goods produced by the Group 

during the performance of the contract are irreplaceable and the Group has the right to charge for 

the accumulated part of the contract that has been performed so far during the whole contract 

period. Otherwise, the Group recognizes revenue at a certain point in time when “control” of the 

goods or services is transferred to the customer.

With respect to performance obligations performed overtime, the Group determines progress of 

performance by output method, i.e. determining the progress of performance in accordance with 

the value of merchandise or service already transferred to clients. Where the progress cannot be 

determined reasonably, the revenue is recognized based on the amount of cost that is expected 

to be compensated based on the cost already incurred, until the progress of performance is 

reasonably determined.

Where the contract includes two or more performance obligations, at contract inception, the Group 

allocates the transaction price to each single performance obligation according to the relative 

proportion of the stand-alone selling prices of the goods or services promised by each single 

performance obligation. However, where there is conclusive evidence that the contract discount 

or variable consideration is only related to one or more (not all) performance obligations in the 

contract, the Group shall allocate the contract discount or variable consideration to the relevant 

one or more performance obligations. The stand-alone selling price is the price at which the Group 

would sell a good or service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly 

observable, the Group shall consider all information that is reasonably available to the Group and 

maximize the use of observable inputs to estimate the stand-alone selling price.

The Group’s unconditional (i.e., depending on the passage of time only) right to receive 

consideration from the customer is separately presented as receivables.
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24.	 Revenue (Continued)

Variable consideration

If the contract includes variable consideration (such as sales rebate), the Group determines the best 

estimates of the variable consideration based on the expected value or the most likely amount. 

Transaction price comprising the variable consideration does not exceed the amount that it is 

highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur when relevant uncertainty is eliminated. 

At each balance sheet date, the Group re-estimates the amount of variable consideration which 

should be recognized in transaction price.

Additional purchase option

The additional purchase option of customers includes customer reward points. With respect to 

the additional purchase option with material rights provided to customers, the Group regards it as 

a single performance obligation, and recognizes relevant revenue upon obtaining the control over 

relevant goods or services by the customers who exercise the purchase option in future or upon 

lapse of such option. If a stand-alone selling price of the additional purchase option of customers 

is not directly observable, the Group shall consider all relevant information including the difference 

in discount obtained with and without the exercise of such option by customers and the possibility 

of exercising such option by customers during estimation.

The Group’s retail stores adopt a reward policy of membership loyalty cards for customers. For 

customers with consumption points exceeding a certain level, points can be converted into cash 

for purchase in the retail stores. The Group allocates sale consideration to the sold goods and 

issued points in accordance with corresponding respective selling prices. Sale consideration 

allocated to reward points is recognized as contract liabilities, and as revenue upon redemption.

Sales with sales return terms attached

For sales with sales return terms attached, as the customer obtains ownership of related goods, 

the Group recognizes revenue in accordance with the consideration (excluding expected refund 

amounts due to sales returns) that the Group is expected to receive due to the transfer of goods 

or services to the customer, and recognizes expected liabilities in accordance with expected refund 

amounts due to sales returns. The remaining amount, subsequent to deduction of expected costs 

from collecting the goods (including the decrease in value of the returned goods), is recognized 

as an asset (other current assets or other non-current assets) in accordance with the carrying 

value during the expected transfer of returned goods after deducting the costs of the above net 

assets carried forward.
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Significant financing component

If the contract includes significant financing component (including education informatized and 

equipment business), the Group determines the transaction price based on the amount payable 

under the assumption that the customer pays that amount payable in cash when control of the 

goods or services is obtained by the customer. The difference between the transaction price and 

the contract consideration shall be amortized within the contract period using effective interest rate. 

If the Group expects, at contract inception, that the period between when the Group transfers the 

good or service to a customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one 

year or less, the Group needs not to consider the significant financing component.

Sales with quality assurance terms attached

For sales with quality assurance terms, if the quality assurance provides a separate service to the 

customer other than ensuring that the goods or services sold meet the established standards, the 

quality assurance constitutes a single performance obligation. Otherwise, the Group will account 

for the quality assurance responsibility in accordance with the ASBE No. 13 – Contingencies.

Principal and agent

The Group determines whether it is a principal or an agent at the time of the transaction based 

on whether it owns the “control” of the goods or services before the transfer of such goods or 

services to the customer. The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service before 

that good or service is transferred to a customer, and the revenue shall be recognized based on 

the total consideration received or receivable; otherwise, the Group is an agent, and the revenue 

shall be recognized based on the amount of commission or handling fee that is expected to be 

charged, and such amount is determined based on the net amount of the total consideration 

received or receivable after deducting the prices payable to other related parties.

Contract liabilities

For receipt in advance from customers for the provision of goods or services, the amount 

shall initially be recognized as liability, and transferred into revenue when relevant performance 

obligations are satisfied. When it is unnecessary for the Group to return the receipt in advance 

and the customer may forfeit all or part of his/her contractual rights, and that the Group is entitled 

to the amount in respect of the contractual rights forfeited by the customer, such amount shall 

be recognized as revenue in proportion to the pattern of contractual rights exercised by the 

customer. Otherwise, the Group only recognizes such balance of the above liability as revenue 

when it becomes highly unlikely that the customer would demand the fulfilling of the remaining 

performance obligation.
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(III)	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
(Continued)

25.	 Contract costs

25.1	 Cost of contract acquisition

If the incremental cost incurred by the Group in order to obtain a contract (i.e. costs that 

would not occur without a contract) is expected to be recoverable, such cost is recognized 

as an asset. The above asset is amortized on the same basis as that used for the 

recognition of revenue from the goods or services relating to such asset, and is recognized 

in profit or loss for the period. Other expenditures incurred by the Group in order to obtain 

the contract shall be included in the profit or loss for the period when incurred, except 

those clearly to be borne by the customer.

25.2	 Cost of performance of contract

If the cost incurred by the Group for the performance of the contract does not fall within 

the scope of other ASBE other than the Standard – Revenue and meets the following 

conditions at the same time, it is recognized as an asset: (1) the cost is directly related to 

a current or expected contract; (2) the cost increases the resources that the Group will use 

to perform its obligations in the future; (3) the cost is expected to be recovered. The above 

asset is amortized on the same basis as that used for the recognition of revenue from the 

goods or services relating to such asset, and is recognized in profit or loss for the period.

26.	 Types and accounting method of government grants

Government grants are transfer of monetary assets and non-monetary assets from the government 

to the Group at no consideration. A government grant is recognized only when the Group can 

comply with the conditions attaching to the grant and the Group will receive the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it is measured at the amount 

received or receivable.

26.1	 Basis for determination and accounting method of asset-related government grant

Included in the Group’s government grants, as the government grants other than the 

book subsidy obtained by the Group are used in acquisition and construction of long-term 

assets, or to form long-term assets in other ways, such government grants are asset-related 

government grants.

A government grant related to an asset is recognized as deferred income, and amortized 

to profit or loss for the period over the useful life of the related asset using the straight-line 

method.
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26.	 Types and accounting method of government grants (Continued)

26.2	 Basis for determination and accounting method of income-related government grant

Included in the Group’s government grants, as the book subsidy is mainly used by the press 

to publish special books, such government grants are income-related government grants.

For a government grant related to income, if the grant is a compensation for related 

expenses or losses to be incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as 

deferred income, and recognized in profit or loss over the periods in which the related costs, 

expenses or losses are recognized. If the grant is a compensation for related expenses or 

losses already incurred, the grant is recognized immediately in profit or loss for the period.

Government grants related to the Group’s daily activities, based on the economic substance, 

are included in other income. Government grants not related to the Group’s daily activities 

are included in non-operating income.

27.	 Deferred income tax assets/deferred income tax liabilities

The income tax expenses include current income tax and deferred income tax.

27.1	 Current income tax

At the balance sheet date, current income tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior 

periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid (or recovered) according to the 

requirements of tax laws.

27.2	 Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

For temporary differences between the carrying amounts of certain assets or liabilities and 

their tax base, or for the temporary differences between the carrying amount of those items 

that are not recognized as assets or liabilities and their tax base that can be determined 

according to tax laws, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized using the 

balance sheet liability method.
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27.	 Deferred income tax assets/deferred income tax liabilities (Continued)

27.2	 Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred income tax is generally recognized for all temporary differences. Deferred income 

tax assets for deductible temporary differences are recognized to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary 

differences can be utilized. However, for temporary differences associated with the initial 

recognition of goodwill and the initial recognition of an asset or liability arising from a 

transaction (not a business combination) that affects neither the accounting profit nor 

taxable profits (or deductible losses) at the time of transaction, no deferred income tax 

asset or liability is recognized.

For deductible losses and tax credits that can be carried forward, deferred income tax 

assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 

available against which the deductible losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated 

with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except 

where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference 

and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred income tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with 

such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that 

there will be taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences 

and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

At the balance sheet date, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 

tax rates, according to tax laws, that are expected to apply in the period in which the asset 

is realised or the liability is settled.

Current and deferred income tax expenses or income are recognized in profit or loss for the 

period, except when they arise from transactions or events that are directly recognized in 

other comprehensive income or in shareholders equity, in which case they are recognized in 

other comprehensive income or in shareholders equity; and when they arise from business 

combinations, in which case they adjust the carrying amount of goodwill.

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed 

and reduced if it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the 

future to allow the benefit of deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Such reduction in 

amount is reversed when it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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27.	 Deferred income tax assets/deferred income tax liabilities (Continued)

27.3	 Offset of income tax

When the Group has a legal right to settle on a net basis and intends either to settle on a 

net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, current income tax 

assets and current income tax liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis.

When the Group has a legal right to settle current income tax assets and liabilities on a net 

basis, and deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities relate to income 

taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different 

taxable entities which intend either to settle current income tax assets and liabilities on 

a net basis or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in 

which significant amounts of deferred income tax assets or liabilities are expected to be 

reversed, deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset and 

presented on a net basis.

28.	 Lease

A lease refers to a contract assigning a lessor’s right to use an asset to a lessee for a certain 

period of time for consideration.

At the contract commencement date, the Group evaluates whether the contract is a lease or 

comprises a lease. The Group shall not reassess whether a contract is a lease or comprises a 

lease unless there are changes to the contract terms and conditions.
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28.	 Lease (Continued)

28.1	 The Group as lessee

28.1.1	Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases, the Group recognizes right-of-use assets for leases 

on the commencement date of lease term. The commencement date of lease term 

refers to the date from which a leased asset is provided by the lessor for the Group’s 

use. Right-of-use assets are initially measured by their costs. These costs include:

•	 The initially measured amount of lease liabilities;

•	 For lease payments on or prior to the commencement date of lease term 

with lease incentives, the related amount of lease incentives enjoyed shall be 

deducted;

•	 Initial and direct expenses incurred to the Group;

•	 The expected costs incurred to the Group to demolish and remove leased 

assets, restore the premises where the leased assets are located, or restore 

the leased assets to the conditions bound by the lease terms.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated in accordance with the depreciation 

provisions under the ASBE No. 4 – Fixed Assets. For a leased asset which the 

ownership can be reasonably determined at the expiry of the lease term, its right 

– of-use asset is depreciated over its remaining useful life. A leased asset which 

the ownership cannot be reasonably determined at the expiry of the lease term is 

depreciated utilizing the shorter period between the lease term and the remaining 

useful life of the leased asset.

The Group determines whether a right-of-use asset has been impaired in accordance 

with the provisions under the ASBE No. 8 – Impairment of Assets and applies 

accounting treatment to the impairment loss identified accordingly.
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28.	 Lease (Continued)

28.1	 The Group as lessee (Continued)

28.1.2	Lease liabilities

Except for short-term leases, the Group initially measures lease liabilities on the 

commencement date of lease term according to the present value of outstanding 

lease payments on that date. When calculating the present value of lease payments, 

the Group uses incremental borrowing rate as discount rate as the rate included in 

the lease cannot be determined.

Lease payments refer to the amount paid by the Group to a lessor which is related 

to the right to use lease assets during the lease term, including:

•	 Fixed payments and substantially fixed payments (deduct related lease 

incentive amount, if any);

•	 Variable lease payments which depend on an index or a rate;

•	 The exercise price of an option which the Group reasonably determines that 

the purchase option is to be exercised;

•	 The amount payable upon exercising an option to terminate a lease, provided 

that the exercising of such option by the Group can be reflected over the 

lease term;

•	 Estimated amount due based on the residual value of the guarantee provided 

by the Group.

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate are initially measured 

using the index or rate as at the commencement date of lease term. Variable lease 

payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities are accounted in profit 

or loss for the period or as relevant asset costs when actually incurred.

Upon commencement date of the lease term, the Group accounts for interest 

expenses of lease liabilities for each period during the lease term according to fixed 

periodic rates and includes the same in profit or loss for the period or the cost of 

relevant assets.
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28.	 Lease (Continued)

28.1	 The Group as lessee (Continued)

28.1.2	Lease liabilities (Continued)

For the following cases after the commencement date of lease term, the Group shall 

remeasure lease liabilities and adjust the right-of-use assets correspondingly. If the 

carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further 

reduction in the lease liability, the Group recognizes any difference in profit or loss 

for the period:

•	 If changes are caused by changes in lease term or assessment results of 

purchase option, the Group shall remeasure lease liabilities according to its 

present value calculated using the revised lease payments and discount rates;

•	 Should there be changes to the payable amounts estimated by residual value 

of the guarantee or the index or ratio used to determine lease payments, 

the Group shall remeasure lease liabilities according to its present value 

calculated using the revised lease payments and original discount rates.

28.1.3	Short-term leases

For short-term leases under office and operating buildings, the Group chooses 

not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Short-term leases refer 

to those with lease term under 12 months and without purchase option as of the 

commencement date of lease term. Lease payments of short-term leases are 

included in profit or loss for the period within each period during lease term using 

the straight-line method.

28.1.4	Lease modification

If modification of lease occurs and meets the following conditions, the Group will 

conduct accounting treatment for the modification of lease as a separate lease:

•	 The modification of lease expands the scope of lease by increasing the 

right-of-use of one or more leased assets;

•	 The increased consideration and the individual price of the expanded part of 

scope of lease are equivalent after adjustment is made in accordance with 

situation of the contract.
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28.	 Lease (Continued)

28.1	 The Group as lessee (Continued)

28.1.4	Lease modification (Continued)

If accounting treatment for the modification of lease as a separate lease is not 

conducted, the Group shall re-amortize the modified consideration of contract and 

redetermine the lease term on the effective date of modification of lease and discount 

the modified lease payments using the revised discount rate, in order to remeasure 

the lease liabilities.

If the modification of lease results in a narrower scope of lease or a shorter lease 

term, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets accordingly 

and recognizes the gains or losses relevant to the partial or complete termination of 

the leases in profit or loss for the period.

28.2	 The Group as lessor

28.2.1	Classification of leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers practically substantially all the 

risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset. Other leases which are 

not finance leases are operating leases.

28.2.2	The Group as lessor accounting for operating lease business

During each period of the lease term, the Group recognizes rents of operating leases 

as rental income using the straight-line method. Initial direct expenses related to 

operating leases are capitalized when incurred, and are amortized to profit or loss 

in the period over the lease term using the same basis as for the recognition of 

rental income.

For the variable lease payments not included in lease payments but related to 

operating lease, the Group recognizes the amount in profit or loss during the period 

it is actually incurred.
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29.	 Changes in significant accounting policies

29.1	 Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises Interpretation No.15

On 30 December 2021, the MoF issued the ASBE Interpretation No. 15 (“Interpretation 

No. 15”) under the document Cai Kuai [2021] No. 35. Interpretation No. 15 regulates the 

accounting treatment of external sales of products or by-products produced before the fixed 

assets are ready for their intended use or during the research and development process, 

as well as the judgment on onerous contracts, and is effective from 1 January 2022. The 

Group is of the view that the adoption of such provisions has no material effect on the 

Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.

29.2	 Accounting treatment requirements for rent concessions related to COVID-19 pandemic

On 19 May 2022, the MoF issued the “Notification on the Relevant Issues Concerning 

the Application of the ‘Provisions on the Accounting Treatment of COVID-19 Related Rent 

Concessions’” under the document Cai Kuai [2022] No. 13 (“Circular No. 13”). Circular 

No. 13 adjusts the applicable period of the “Provisions on the Accounting Treatment of 

COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions” issued by the MoF on 26 May 2021 under the 

document Cai Kuai [2021] No. 9 (“Circular No. 9”). Circular No. 13 adjusts the rent 

concession period applicable to the simplified method of Circular No. 9 to “For concessions 

of lease payments payable after 30 June 2022, lessees and lessors can still choose to 

continue to adopt the simplified method of accounting treatment as prescribed by Circular 

No. 9”. Such provisions have no material effect on the Group’s and the Company’s financial 

statements.

29.3	 Provisions on the Accounting Treatment of Asset Management Products

On 25 May 2022, the MoF issued the “Notification on Issuing the ‘Provisions on the 

Accounting Treatment of Asset Management Products’” under the document Cai Kuai [2022] 

No. 14 (“Circular No. 14”). Circular No. 14 regulates the accounting treatment, presentation 

and disclosure of asset management products. Such provisions have no material effect on 

the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.
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(IV)	 KEY ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES APPLIED IN ACCOUNTING 
ESTIMATES

In the application of accounting policies as set out in Note (III), the Group is required to make judgements, 

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of items in the financial statements that cannot 

be measured accurately, due to the internal uncertainties of the operating activities. These judgements, 

estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience of the Group’s management as well as 

other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates of the 

Group.

The aforementioned judgements, estimates and assumptions are reviewed regularly by the Group on a 

going concern basis. The effect of a change in accounting estimate is recognized in the period of the 

change, if the change affects that period only; or recognized in the period of the change and future 

periods, if the change affects both.

Key assumptions and uncertainties applied in accounting estimates

The following are the key assumptions and uncertainties in accounting estimates at the balance sheet 

date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in future periods:

Credit loss provision

The Group determines credit loss provision on the basis of ECL rate of accounts receivable. At the 

end of the reporting period, the Group made adjustments to the estimates of ECL rate and credit loss 

provision based on the historical data and forward-looking information of the existing customers. If the 

re-assessment results differ from the existing estimates, the difference shall affect carrying amount of 

accounts receivable and profit or loss for the period when estimates change.

Provisions for decline in value of inventories

The Group determines provisions for decline in value of inventories on the basis of the estimates of net 

realizable value of inventories. Judgements and estimates shall be applied in measuring provisions for 

decline in value of inventories. If the re-assessment results differ from the existing estimates, the difference 

shall affect carrying amount of inventories and profit or loss for the period when estimates change.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis and when circumstances 

indicate that goodwill may be impaired. This requires an estimation of the future cash flows that will be 

generated by the asset groups or groups of asset group to which the goodwill is allocated, and a choice 

of a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those future cash flows.
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(V)	 TAXES

1.	 Major categories of taxes and tax rates

Category of tax

Basis of tax 

calculation Tax rate
   

Value-added tax Note 13%,9%,6%,3%

City maintenance and  

construction tax Turnover tax paid 7%,5%

Education surcharges Turnover tax paid 3%

Local education surcharges Turnover tax paid 2%

Enterprise income tax Assessable income 25%,15%
   

Note:	 Value-added tax is calculated at the amount of output tax net of deductible input tax. Output tax is calculated on 

the basis of sales volume as per relevant tax laws.

2.	 Tax incentives and official approvals

Enterprise income tax

In accordance with Notice on Several Tax Policies for the Transformation of Operating Cultural 

Institutions into Enterprises for Continuous Implementation of Cultural System Reform (Cai Shui 

[2019] No. 16) issued by the Ministry of Finance, State Administration of Taxation and Publicity 

Department of the Chinese Communist Party, the Company and its subsidiaries Beijing Shuchuan 

Xinhua Bookstore Book Distribution Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Shuchuan”), Sichuan Xinhua Online 

Network Co., Ltd. (“Xinhua Online”), Sichuan Winshare Culture Communication Co., Ltd. 

(“Sichuan Culture Communication”) and the thirteen publishing houses under the Company 

enjoy enterprise income tax exemption for five years from 1 January 2019.
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(V)	 TAXES (Continued)

2.	 Tax incentives and official approvals (Continued)

Enterprise income tax (Continued)

As approved and confirmed by Chengdu Development and Reform Commission pursuant to 

its Administration Approval Letter [2016] No.38, the Company’s subsidiary, Sichuan Winshare 

Education Technology Co., Ltd. (“Winshare Education Technology”), which falls within the 

encouraged industries included in the Notice on Renewing the Enterprise Income Tax Policy for 

Great Western Development (Notice of the MoF [2020] No. 23) issued by the MoF, the State 

Administration of Taxation, and the National Development and Reform Commission, is subject to 

enterprise income tax calculated at the rate of 15% of the assessable income. Beijing Aerospace 

Cloud Education Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Aerospace Cloud”), a subsidiary of the Company, 

which obtained the high-tech enterprise certificate of No. GR201911008465 on 2 December 2019, 

is subject to enterprise income tax calculated at 15% of the assessable income.

Value-added tax

Pursuant to Notice on Persistently Promoting Cultural Value-added Tax Preferential Policies (Cai 

Shui [2021] No. 10) issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation: 

for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023, the Group’s publications of certain 

category specified in the notice during publishing phase are entitled to the preferential policies of 

100% reimbursement and 50% reimbursement respectively, and the Group’s book wholesale and 

retail business is entitled to the exemption from value-added tax.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.	 Cash and bank balances

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Amounts 

of the original 

currencies

Exchange 

rate Amount in RMB

Amounts 

of the original 

currencies

Exchange 

rate Amount in RMB
       

Cash on hand:

RMB 1,053,076.68 1.0000 1,053,076.68 1,482,033.90 1.0000 1,482,033.90

Bank balances:

RMB (Note 1) 6,283,988,131.15 1.0000 6,283,988,131.15 5,994,827,856.42 1.0000 5,994,827,856.42

USD 19,788.79 6.7114 132,810.49 18,348.27 6.3757 116,983.07

EUR 68.69 7.0084 481.41 85.27 7.2197 615.62

HKD 54,664.92 0.8552 46,749.44 95,946.49 0.8176 78,445.85

Other currency funds:

RMB (Note 2) 61,292,159.24 1.0000 61,292,159.24 43,523,343.86 1.0000 43,523,343.86
       

Total 6,346,513,408.41 6,040,029,278.72
       

Note 1:	 At the end of the Period, the bank balances include 3-month above time deposits and interests amounting to 

RMB3,330,000,000.00 (31 December 2021: RMB2,390,000,000.00) with an interest rate of 2.05%-4.07%. The 

management held the term deposits for the Period with the intention of flexible arrangement of funds and withdrew 

funds at any time depending on the capital needs.

Note 2:	 At the end of the Period, other currency funds include the balances with Alipay App account and WeChat App 

account of RMB2,577,267.31 (31 December 2021: RMB1,263,751.95), dividend deposited in the stock account of 

RMB21,168,145.00 (31 December 2021: Nil), and the remaining are restricted currency funds. Restricted currency 

funds are set out in Note (VI)55.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

2.	 Held-for-trading financial assets

RMB

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

Item Carrying amount Carrying amount
   

Financial assets at FVTPL (Note) 8,041.10 20,945.15

Including: �Investment in A-share listed  

  companies 8,041.10 20,945.15
   

Total 8,041.10 20,945.15
   

Note:	 At the end of the Period, the Group’s classification of financial assets at FVTPL is mainly composed of investment 

in A-share listed companies. The details of measurement of fair value are set out in Note (X).

3.	 Notes receivable

Categories of notes receivable

RMB

Category

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Commercial acceptances 7,467,785.57 10,545,962.27
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(Continued)

4.	 Accounts receivable

(1)	 Disclosure by aging

RMB

Aging

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Amount

Proportion 

(%)

Credit loss 

provision

Carrying 

amount Amount

Proportion 

(%)

Credit loss 

provision

Carrying 

amount
         

Within 1 year 1,748,032,569.60 73.27 241,374,010.18 1,506,658,559.42 1,623,399,614.62 76.27 198,507,069.96 1,424,892,544.66

More than 1 year but  

not exceeding 2 years 333,216,905.98 13.97 148,177,646.32 185,039,259.66 249,522,673.55 11.72 118,531,070.28 130,991,603.27

More than 2 years but  

not exceeding 3 years 121,108,938.43 5.08 121,108,938.43 – 127,972,595.20 6.01 127,972,595.20 –

More than 3 years 183,265,079.51 7.68 183,265,079.51 – 127,489,256.90 6.00 127,489,256.90 –
         

Total 2,385,623,493.52 100.00 693,925,674.44 1,691,697,819.08 2,128,384,140.27 100.00 572,499,992.34 1,555,884,147.93
         

The aging of accounts receivable above is based on the date of goods delivery.

(2)	 Credit loss provision made or reversed in the current period

See Note (IX) for details of recognition of credit loss.

(3)	 Accounts receivable actually written off for the current period

See Note (IX) for details of accounts receivable actually written off for the current period.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

4.	 Accounts receivable (Continued)

(4)	 Top five debtors with the largest balances of accounts receivable at the end of the Period

RMB

Name of entity

Relationship 

with the Group

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited) Aging

As a 

percentage 

of the total 

accounts 

receivable (%)

Credit loss 

provision as at 

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
      

Customer A Third party 116,515,715.06 Within 1 year, 1-2 years,  

2-3 years, more than  

3 years

4.88 72,368,129.77

Customer B Third party 91,493,252.00 Within 1 year 3.84 2,744,797.56

Customer C Third party 84,948,477.81 Within 1 year 3.56 2,530,972.92

Customer D Third party 80,476,625.18 Within 1 year, 1-2 years, 

2-3 years

3.37 11,975,815.22

Customer E Third party 46,938,025.22 Within 1 year, 1-2 years, 

2-3 years

1.97 9,256,542.26

      

Total 420,372,095.27 17.62 98,876,257.73
      

5.	 Financing receivables

(1)	 Classification of financing receivables

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Bank acceptance bills measured at fair 

value (Note 1) 4,827,529.91 5,132,438.00
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

5.	 Financing receivables (Continued)

(2)	 Notes receivables endorsed by the Group at the end of Period and not yet due as at the 

balance sheet date

RMB

Item

Amounts 

derecognized at 

the end of Period 

(Unaudited)

Amounts not yet 

derecognized at 

the end of Period 

(Unaudited)
   

Bank acceptance bills measured at fair value 

(Note 2) 13,683,027.36 –
   

Note 1:	 In the process of managing corporate liquidity, the Group would endorse the transfer of some of its bank acceptance 

bills before they are due, and derecognize endorsed bank acceptance bills given that substantially all risks and rewards 

have been transferred to the relevant counterparties. The business model of some of the Group’s subsidiaries in 

managing bank acceptance bills receivables aims at both receiving contract cash flows and selling the financial assets. 

Therefore, these bank acceptance bills receivables under this business model are classified as financial assets at 

FVTOCI. Please refer to Note (X)1 for the determination of fair value.

As at the end of Period, the Group has not provided credit impairment loss for its financing receivables.

Note 2:	 As at 30 June 2022, the Group had bank acceptance bills endorsed and not yet due of RMB13,683,027.36 (31 

December 2021: RMB13,333,989.22). As for the derecognition of bank acceptance bills endorsed by the Group and 

not yet due as at the balance sheet date, please refer to Note (IX)2 for details.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

6.	 Prepayments

(1)	 Aging analysis of prepayments

RMB

Aging

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Amount

Proportion 

(%) Amount

Proportion 

(%)
     

Within 1 year 46,204,754.83 60.79 54,008,181.32 68.09

More than 1 year but  

not exceeding 2 years 11,104,339.61 14.61 11,260,612.54 14.20

More than 2 years but  

not exceeding 3 years 9,302,991.96 12.24 5,789,810.75 7.30

More than 3 years 9,396,180.46 12.36 8,264,574.74 10.41
     

Total 76,008,266.86 100.00 79,323,179.35 100.00
     

The prepayment aged more than one year is mainly outstanding payments for goods 

prepaid to the supplier.

(2)	 Top five entities with the largest balances of prepayments at the end of the Period

RMB

Name of entity

Relationship 

with the 

Group

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited) Aging

As a 

percentage 

of the total 

prepayments 

(%)

Reasons for 

unsettlement
      

Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong) 

Limited

Third party 3,838,391.68 Within 1 year, 1-2 

years

5.05 Royalties not yet offset

Echo Publishing Co., Ltd. Third party 3,322,692.71 2-3 years, more than 

3 years

4.37 Royalties not yet offset

Shanghai Yihai Culture Dissemination 

Center (Limited Partnership)

Third party 3,167,682.00 Within 1 years, 1-2 

years

4.17 Royalties not yet offset

Shanghai Yining Culture Media Center Third party 2,835,310.00 2-3 years 3.73 Royalties not yet offset

Beijing Xindao Culture Communication 

Co., Ltd.

Third party 2,823,790.00 Within 1 years 3.72 Royalties not yet offset

      

Total 15,987,866.39 21.04
      



99Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

7.	 Other receivables

7.1	 Other receivables summary

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Dividend receivables 184,455.00 1,600,000.00

Other receivables 119,116,194.04 100,041,043.44
   

   

Total 119,300,649.04 101,641,043.44
   

7.2	 Dividend receivables

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

   

Bank of Chengdu Co., Ltd. 

(“Bank of Chengdu”) 163,800.00 –

Anhui Xinhua Media Co., Ltd. 

(“Wan Xin Media”) 20,655.00 –

Ren Min Eastern (Beijing) Book Industry 

Co., Ltd. (“Ren Min Eastern”) – 1,600,000.00
   

   

Total 184,455.00 1,600,000.00
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

7.	 Other receivables (Continued)

7.3	 Other receivables

(1)	 Other receivables by aging

RMB

Aging

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Amount

Proportion 

(%)

Credit loss 

provision

Carrying 

amount Amount

Proportion 

(%)

Credit loss 

provision

Carrying 

amount
         

Within 1 year 76,383,852.12 55.09 1,809,393.19 74,574,458.93 52,074,473.42 43.43 926,848.46 51,147,624.96

More than 1 year but  

not exceeding 2 years 19,767,895.87 14.26 96,721.70 19,671,174.17 26,453,427.25 22.06 223,865.01 26,229,562.24

More than 2 years but  

not exceeding 3 years 16,248,579.50 11.71 4,298,496.97 11,950,082.53 15,253,394.48 12.72 3,607,662.93 11,645,731.55

More than 3 years 26,265,002.53 18.94 13,344,524.12 12,920,478.41 26,128,373.92 21.79 15,110,249.23 11,018,124.69
         

Total 138,665,330.02 100.00 19,549,135.98 119,116,194.04 119,909,669.07 100.00 19,868,625.63 100,041,043.44
         

(2)	 Credit loss provision made or reversed in the current period

See Note (IX) for details of recognition of credit loss.

(3)	 Other accounts receivable actually written off in the current period

See Note (IX) for details of accounts receivable actually written off in the current 

period.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

7.	 Other receivables (Continued)

7.3	 Other receivables (Continued)

(4)	 Other receivables presented by nature

RMB

Nature of other receivables

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Amount due from related parties 486,996.37 578,150.22

Deposit/guarantee deposit 93,232,516.43 77,070,736.26

Petty cash 532,921.17 879,838.15

Others 44,412,896.05 41,380,944.44
   

Total 138,665,330.02 119,909,669.07
   

(5)	 Top five debtors with the largest balances of other receivables at the end of the 

Period

RMB

Name of entity Nature

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited) Aging

As a 

percentage 

of total other 

receivables (%)

Credit loss 

provision as at 

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
      

Higher Education Press Co., Ltd. Guarantee 

  deposit

30,000,000.00 Within 1 year 21.63 –

Anhui Sihe Digital Technology  

Development Co., Ltd.

Others 5,107,996.00 More than 3 years 3.68 5,107,996.00

Dazhou Peiwen Senior High 

School

Performance 

  security

3,158,938.20 1-2 years 2.28 –

Chengdu Zhonghang Real  

Estate Development Co., Ltd.

Deposit 3,020,214.00 More than 3 years 2.18 –

Education Department of  

Tibet Autonomous Region

Performance 

  security

2,830,000.00 1-2 years 2.04 –

      

Total 44,117,148.20 31.81 5,107,996.00
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

8.	 Inventories

(1)	 Categories of inventories

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Book balance

Provision for 

decline in value Carrying amount Book balance

Provision for 

decline in value Carrying amount
       

Goods on hand 2,385,401,654.18 268,805,291.35 2,116,596,362.83 2,742,623,091.17 257,113,472.93 2,485,509,618.24

Work-in-progress 75,354,110.08 – 75,354,110.08 202,673,827.36 – 202,673,827.36

Raw materials 31,367,928.65 3,337,396.06 28,030,532.59 57,312,377.30 3,337,396.06 53,974,981.24
       

Total 2,492,123,692.91 272,142,687.41 2,219,981,005.50 3,002,609,295.83 260,450,868.99 2,742,158,426.84
       

There were no inventories pledged or guaranteed as at the end of the Period.

(2)	 Provision for decline in value of inventories

RMB

Category of 

inventories 1 January 2022

Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

Reversal in the 

current period

Write-off in the 

current period
      

Goods on hand 257,113,472.93 19,347,328.54 – 7,655,510.12 268,805,291.35

Raw materials 3,337,396.06 – – – 3,337,396.06
      

Total 260,450,868.99 19,347,328.54 – 7,655,510.12 272,142,687.41
      

Note:	 As the expected net realizable value was lower than the cost of inventories at the end of the Period, a 

provision for decline in value of inventories amounting to RMB19,347,328.54 (2021: RMB48,395,369.07) was 

made during the current period. As the goods provided for the decline in value of inventories were sold, the 

provision for the decline in value of inventories amounting to RMB7,655,510.12 (2021: RMB14,319,562.18) 

was written off.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

9.	 Contract assets

(1)	 Details of contract assets

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Book balance

Provision for 

impairment Carrying amount Book balance

Provision for 

impairment Carrying amount
       

Contract assets arising from contracts 

with customers (Note) 27,856,608.49 – 27,856,608.49 34,660,471.53 – 34,660,471.53
       

Total 27,856,608.49 – 27,856,608.49 34,660,471.53 – 34,660,471.53
       

Note:	 Contract assets are security deposit recognized under contractual agreements that will expire in less than 

one year, and the Group presents contract assets that expire in more than one year as other non-current 

assets.

(2)	 Qualitative and quantitative analysis of contract assets

Contract assets refer to the rights to receive consideration for the transfer of goods by the 

Group to its customers, and that right depends on factors other than the passage of time. 

The Group’s unconditional right (only the passage of time is required) to consideration from 

customer is presented separately as receivables. The Group expects to recover contract 

assets within one year.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

10.	 Other current assets

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Refund costs receivable 101,657,903.19 89,691,547.73

VAT credit tax to be deducted and  

to be refunded (Note 1) 83,531,683.41 11,355,211.82

Term deposits (Note 2) 301,358,124.89 401,229,999.89

Refund tax receivable 6,672,713.23 –
   

Total 493,220,424.72 502,276,759.44
   

Note 1:	 The item represents VAT credit tax to be deducted and to be refunded by the Group within one year in the future.

Note 2:	 Term deposits are fixed deposits and accrued interests that are held for more than three months and due within one 

year and the Group does not intend to withdraw in advance, the rate of which is 2.05%-3.65% (31 December 2021: 

2.05%).
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

11.	 Long-term receivables

(1)	 Details of long-term receivables

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Book balance

Provision for 

impairment Carrying amount Book balance

Provision for 

impairment Carrying amount
       

Goods sold by instalments (Note) 318,417,028.46 49,259,969.26 269,157,059.20 372,822,149.55 57,048,505.53 315,773,644.02

Less: Long-term receivables  

included in non-current  

assets due within one year 195,173,228.26 30,181,224.50 164,992,003.76 202,851,573.83 30,557,055.72 172,294,518.11
       

Total 123,243,800.20 19,078,744.76 104,165,055.44 169,970,575.72 26,491,449.81 143,479,125.91
       

Note:	 Receivables of goods sold by instalments are the Group’s receivables for education informatized business, 

which shall be collected by instalments in accordance with the contract. The agreed period in the contract 

is 2-5 years and the Group has discounted the instalments at a discount rate of 4.75%-5%.

(2)	 Details of provisions of bad debts

See Note (IX) for details of recognition of credit loss.

12.	 Long-term equity investments

(1)	 Summary of long-term equity investments:

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Book balance of long-term equity 

investments 754,006,288.46 761,451,221.65

Less: �Provision for impairment of long- 

  term equity investments 6,647,345.57 6,647,345.57

Carrying amount of long-term equity 

investments 747,358,942.89 754,803,876.08
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

12.	 Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(3)	 Details of unrecognized investment losses are as follows:

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Unrecognized 

investment 

losses for the 

Period

Accumulated 

unrecognized 

investment 

losses

Unrecognized 

investment 

losses for 

the prior year

Accumulated 

unrecognized 

investment 

losses
     

Guizhou Winshare – 5,557,990.70 – 5,557,990.70

Sichuan Fudou  

Technology  

Co., Ltd. 356,533.42 3,246,233.66 324,454.42 2,889,700.24
     

Total 356,533.42 8,804,224.36 324,454.42 8,447,690.94
     

13.	 Other equity instrument investments

(1)	 Details of other equity instruments investments

Other equity instrument investments designated at FVTOCI:

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Wan Xin Media 602,011,200.00 646,881,600.00

Jiangsu Hagong Intelligent Robot Co.,  

Ltd. (“HGZN”) 995,911.41 814,470.06

Bank of Chengdu 1,326,400,000.00 960,000,000.00

Others 375,393.81 375,393.81
   

Total 1,929,782,505.22 1,608,071,463.87
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

13.	 Other equity instrument investments (Continued)

(2)	 Details of equity instruments investments not held for trading

RMB

Item

Dividend income 

recognized 

for the Period

Accumulated 

profits (losses)

Amount 

transferred 

from other 

comprehensive 

income (loss) to 

retained earnings 

during the Period

Reasons for 

equity instruments 

investments not held 

for trading designated 

at FVTOCI

Reasons 

for transfer 

from other 

comprehensive 

income to 

retained 

earnings 

for the Period
      

Wan Xin Media 21,188,800.00 415,595,872.00 – The investment is not  

held for the purpose of  

selling it in the near term  

for short-term gains.

N/A

HGZN – 159,265.93 – N/A

Bank of Chengdu 50,400,000.00 1,086,400,000.00 – N/A

Others – (1,646,699.35) – N/A
      

Total 71,588,800.00 1,500,508,438.58 –
      

Details of measurement of the above other equity instruments investments at fair value are 

set out in Note (X).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

14.	 Other non-current financial assets

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Citic M&A Investment Fund (Shenzhen)  

Partnership (Limited Partnership) (Note 1) 186,595,947.80 195,611,536.30

Winshare Hengxin (Shenzhen)  

Equity Investment Fund Partnership  

(Limited Partnership) (Note 2) 162,535,355.52 266,629,597.40

Qingdao Goldstone Zhixin Investment Center  

(Limited Partnership) (Note 3) 106,762,836.15 106,766,123.51

Ningbo Meishan Free Trade Port Winshare  

Dingsheng Equity Investment Partnership  

(Limited Partnership) (Note 4) 147,400,226.89 151,040,338.58

Xinhua Internet E-commerce Co., Ltd. 

(“Xinhua Internet”) 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00
   

Total 606,294,366.36 723,047,595.79
   

Note 1:	 Changes in fair value for the current period were gains of RMB10,453,860.42. The recovery of the exit money due 

to liquidation of investment project totalled RMB19,469,448.92.

Note 2:	 Changes in fair value for the current period were losses of RMB65,495,148.90. The recovery of the exit money due 

to liquidation of investment project totalled RMB38,599,092.98.

Note 3:	 Changes in fair value for the current period were losses of RMB3,287.36.

Note 4:	 During the current period, new investment cost amounted to RMB14,607,973.42, and changes in fair value were 

losses of RMB2,095,742.38. The recovery of the exit money due to liquidation of investment project totalled 

RMB16,152,342.73.

Details of measurement of the above non-current financial assets at fair value are set out in Note 

(X).
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

15.	 Investment properties

(1)	 Investment properties measured at cost

RMB

 Item Buildings
   

I. Cost

1.	 1 January 2022 120,530,065.89

2.	 Increase in the Period –

	 (1) Purchase –

3.	 Decrease in the Period 6,032,066.58

	 (1) Disposal 495,110.30

	 (2) Transfer to fixed assets 5,536,956.28

4.	 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 114,497,999.31

II. Accumulated depreciation  

1.	 1 January 2022 37,876,485.46

2.	 Increase in the Period 1,479,693.08

	 (1) Provision 1,479,693.08

3.	 Decrease in the Period 2,860,682.30

	 (1) Disposal 438,263.12

	 (2) Transfer to fixed assets 2,422,419.18

4.	 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 36,495,496.24

III. Carrying amount

1.	 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 78,002,503.07

2.	 1 January 2022 82,653,580.43
   

(2)	 Investment properties of which certificates of title have not been obtained as at the end 

of the Reporting Period

RMB

Item Net carrying amount

Reasons why 

certificates of title 

have not been 

obtained
   

Low-rise shops under “Renbei Shop 

Relocation” (人北遷返商舖) 34,791,540.23 In process
   

The above investment properties of which certificates of title have not been obtained have 

no significant influence on the Group’s operations.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

16.	 Fixed assets

(1)	 Fixed assets

RMB

Item Buildings

Machinery 

and equipment

Electronic 

equipment 

and others

Transportation 

vehicles Total
      

I.	 Cost

1.	 1 January 2022 2,487,640,245.98 329,413,289.92 192,355,595.09 113,064,079.85 3,122,473,210.84

2.	 Increase in the Period 178,957,519.38 6,833,319.28 14,410,833.01 7,069,277.26 207,270,948.93

(1)	 Acquisition 12,068,256.88 6,833,319.28 13,425,202.32 7,069,277.26 39,396,055.74

(2)	 Transfer from 

construction in progress 161,352,306.22 – 985,630.69 – 162,337,936.91

(3)	 Transfer from investment 

properties 5,536,956.28 – – – 5,536,956.28

3.	 Decrease in the Period 1,062,758.34 461,457.50 8,844,763.53 5,533,219.33 15,902,198.70

(1)	 Disposal 65,522.35 461,457.50 8,844,763.53 5,533,219.33 14,904,962.71

(2)	 Transfer to others 997,235.99 – – – 997,235.99

4.	 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 2,665,535,007.02 335,785,151.70 197,921,664.57 114,600,137.78 3,313,841,961.07

II.	 Accumulated depreciation     

1.	 1 January 2022 643,516,713.29 252,238,396.94 144,636,923.42 67,298,744.07 1,107,690,777.72

2.	 Increase in the Period 37,390,922.39 6,939,245.68 10,568,514.45 5,348,433.64 60,247,116.16

(1)	 Provision 34,968,503.21 6,939,245.68 10,568,514.45 5,348,433.64 57,824,696.98

(2)	 Transfer from investment  

properties 2,422,419.18 – – – 2,422,419.18

3.	 Decrease in the Period 63,330.35 432,245.34 8,699,200.25 5,366,627.76 14,561,403.70

(1)	 Disposal 63,330.35 432,245.34 8,699,200.25 5,366,627.76 14,561,403.70

4.	 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 680,844,305.33 258,745,397.28 146,506,237.62 67,280,549.95 1,153,376,490.18

III.	 Carrying amount     

1.	 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 1,984,690,701.69 77,039,754.42 51,415,426.95 47,319,587.83 2,160,465,470.89

2.	 1 January 2022 1,844,123,532.69 77,174,892.98 47,718,671.67 45,765,335.78 2,014,782,433.12
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

16.	 Fixed assets (Continued)

(2)	 Fixed assets of which certificates of title have not been obtained by the end of the current 

period

RMB

Item

Net carrying 

amount

Reasons why 

certificates of title 

have not been 

obtained
   

Office building (Beijing Branch) 56,034,345.67 Processing

Warehouse and office building (Sichuan Nanchong) 13,477,456.92 Processing

Warehouse and office building (Sichuan Longquan) 7,350,707.43 Processing

Warehouse and office building (Sichuan Peng’an) 4,479,361.88 Processing

Warehouse and office building (Sichuan Guang’an) 8,185,144.45 Processing

Warehouse and office building (Bazhong) 14,119,276.42 Processing

Warehouse and office building (Ziyang) 39,622,010.87 Processing

Warehouse and office building (Suining) 22,375,094.99 Processing

Warehouse (Zizhong) 11,942,545.87 Processing
   

Total 177,585,944.50
   

The above fixed assets of which certificates of title not yet obtained had no material impacts 

on the Group’s operations.

(3)	 There were no temporary idle fixed assets included in the Group’s major operational 

fixed assets at the end of the current period.



115Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

17.	 Construction in progress

(1)	 Details of construction in progress are as follows:

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Book balance

Provision for 

impairment

Carrying 

amount Book balance

Provision for 

impairment

Carrying 

amount
       

Publishing and Media Creativity Centre 

secondary installation project 18,253,924.51 – 18,253,924.51 143,391,674.06 – 143,391,674.06

Neijiang City Company Operation 

Headquarters and Teaching Material 

Logistics Distribution Center 9,822,670.22 – 9,822,670.22 1,248,831.02 – 1,248,831.02

Ziyang textbooks transfer station project 

fitting-out work 2,002,498.23 – 2,002,498.23 – – –

Others 73,917.97 – 73,917.97 154,259.82 – 154,259.82
       

Total 30,153,010.93 – 30,153,010.93 144,794,764.90 – 144,794,764.90
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

18.	 Right-of-use assets

(1)	 Details of right-of-use assets

RMB

Item Buildings
  

I.	 Cost:

1.	 1 January 2022 604,870,809.30

2.	 Increase in the Period 113,353,236.85

3.	 Decrease in the Period 21,574,386.36

4.	 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 696,649,659.79

II.	 Accumulated depreciation

1.	 1 January 2022 259,855,957.99

2.	 Increase in the Period 54,096,539.90

(1)	 Provision 54,096,539.90

3.	 Decrease in the Period 8,674,816.87

4.	 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 305,277,681.02

III.	 Carrying amount

1.	 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 391,371,978.77

2.	 1 January 2022 345,014,851.31
  

The lease term of buildings of the Group ranged from 1 to 15 years.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

18.	 Right-of-use assets (Continued)

(2)	 Amount recognized in the profit or loss

RMB

Buildings

Amount recognized 

in the current 

period (Unaudited)
  

Depreciation expense for right-of-use assets (Note 1) 54,096,539.90

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 2) 10,922,117.22

Short-term lease expenses 8,056,566.48

Variable lease payments not included in the  

measurement of lease liabilities 833,092.94
  

Note 1: There was no depreciation expense for right-of-use assets capitalized for the Period.

Note 2: There was no interest expense on lease liabilities capitalized for the Period.

(3)	 The total cash outflow for leases in the current period was RMB51,669,141.96 (the Same 

Period of Last Year: RMB52,861,079.69).
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

19.	 Intangible assets

(1)	 Intangible assets

RMB

Item Land use rights Patent Software

Distribution 

channel Others Total
       

I.	 Cost

1.	 1 January 2022 356,924,748.29 10,625,050.60 259,506,203.93 44,944,000.00 7,656,145.14 679,656,147.96

2.	 Increase in the Period – – 5,914,883.67 – – 5,914,883.67

(1)	 Acquisition – – 1,808,657.47 – – 1,808,657.47

(2)	 Transfer from 

development 

expenses – – 4,106,226.20 – – 4,106,226.20

3.	 Decrease in the Period 220,934.00 – – – – 220,934.00

(1)	 Disposal 220,934.00 – – – – 220,934.00

4.	 30 June 2022 

(Unaudited) 356,703,814.29 10,625,050.60 265,421,087.60 44,944,000.00 7,656,145.14 685,350,097.63

II.	 Accumulated amortization      

1.	 1 January 2022 109,014,889.29 7,198,450.26 135,208,862.85 32,944,000.00 3,814,754.31 288,180,956.71

2.	 Increase in the Period 4,195,759.91 612,958.29 15,406,688.80 – 219,676.91 20,435,083.91

(1)	 Provision 4,195,759.91 612,958.29 15,406,688.80 – 219,676.91 20,435,083.91

3.	 Decrease in the Period 78,474.94 – – – – 78,474.94

(1)	 Disposal 78,474.94 – – – – 78,474.94

4.	 30 June 2022 

(Unaudited) 113,132,174.26 7,811,408.55 150,615,551.65 32,944,000.00 4,034,431.22 308,537,565.68

III.	 Provision for impairment      

1.	 1 January 2022 – – – 12,000,000.00 – 12,000,000.00

2.	 30 June 2022 

(Unaudited) – – – 12,000,000.00 – 12,000,000.00

IV.	 Carrying amount

1.	 30 June 2022 

(Unaudited) 243,571,640.03 2,813,642.05 114,805,535.95 – 3,621,713.92 364,812,531.95

2.	 1 January 2022 247,909,859.00 3,426,600.34 124,297,341.08 – 3,841,390.83 379,475,191.25
       

At the end of Period, intangible assets developed as a result of internal research and 

development as a percentage of the balance of intangible assets were 18.15% (31 

December 2021: 19.89%).
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

20.	 Goodwill

(1)	 Cost of goodwill

RMB

Name of the investee or 

item resulting in goodwill

1 January 2022 Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the 

current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

Acquisitions of fifteen 

  publishing companies (Note) 500,571,581.14 – – 500,571,581.14

Others 3,851,606.53 – – 3,851,606.53
     

Total 504,423,187.67 – – 504,423,187.67
     

Note:	 Goodwill of RMB500,571,581.14 was generated from the Group’s acquisition of fifteen publishing companies 

on 31 August 2010, which has been distributed to related asset groups, including three of the fifteen 

publishing companies of the publication segment.

(2)	 Provision for impairment of goodwill

RMB

Name of the investee 

or item resulting in 

goodwill

1 January 2022 Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the 

current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

Others 3,851,606.53 – – 3,851,606.53
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

21.	 Long-term prepaid expenses

RMB

Item

1 January 2022 Increase in the 

current period

Amortization for 

the current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

Leasehold improvement 14,551,283.61 15,729,167.56 7,326,046.43 22,954,404.74

Others 709,616.75 1,860.48 205,882.21 505,595.02
     

Total 15,260,900.36 15,731,028.04 7,531,928.64 23,459,999.76
     

22.	 Deferred income tax assets/deferred income tax liabilities

(1)	 Deferred income tax assets

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Deductible 

temporary 

differences

Deferred tax 

assets

Deductible 

temporary 

differences

Deferred tax

 assets
     

Provision for impairment of 

assets 177,018,750.97 29,087,429.96 142,647,470.87 23,931,737.96
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

22.	 Deferred income tax assets/deferred income tax liabilities (Continued)

(2)	 Deferred income tax liabilities

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Taxable 

temporary 

differences

Deferred 

income tax 

liabilities

Taxable 

temporary 

differences

Deferred 

income tax 

liabilities
     

Differences between carrying amount 

and fair value in acquisitions of 

subsidiary 26,782,070.28 6,695,517.57 27,572,359.44 6,893,089.86

Changes in fair value of other equity 

instrument investments 696,644.10 174,161.03 515,202.75 128,800.69

Changes in fair value of other non-

current financial assets 37,855,127.38 9,463,781.85 103,351,909.48 25,837,977.37

Investment in associates accounted 

for using the equity method – – 49,658.76 12,414.69

Recognition for the revenue 

generated from instalment sales 26,384,683.96 3,957,702.59 – –
     

Total 91,718,525.72 20,291,163.04 131,489,130.43 32,872,282.61
     

The amount for offsetting of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities 

at the end of the Period is nil.

(3)	 The following deductible temporary difference and deductible taxable losses are not 

recognized as deferred income tax assets

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Deductible temporary differences 103,219,750.69 131,238,120.19

Deductible taxable losses 274,280,988.02 190,984,430.98
   

Total 377,500,738.71 322,222,551.17
   

The Group believes that it is not probable that taxable profits will be available in future 

periods to offset the aforementioned deductible losses, therefore, deferred income tax 

assets are not recognized on the above items.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

22.	 Deferred income tax assets/deferred income tax liabilities (Continued)

(4)	 Deductible losses, for which no deferred income tax assets are recognized, will expire 

in the following years

RMB

Year

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

2022 17,568,348.72 17,568,348.72

2023 22,660,076.82 22,660,076.82

2024 33,418,299.90 33,808,179.18

2025 36,405,925.03 36,405,925.03

2026 80,541,901.23 80,541,901.23

2027 83,686,436.32 –
   

Total 274,280,988.02 190,984,430.98
   

23.	 Other non-current assets

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Prepaid land funds 35,355,838.00 35,355,838.00

VAT input tax to be deducted (Note 1) – 68,477,191.12

Prepaid purchase price for property 29,904,991.14 29,043,520.00

Time deposits (Note 2) 670,509,997.12 658,653,810.14

Retention money 11,253,815.26 –
   

Total 747,024,641.52 791,530,359.26
   

Note 1:	 The VAT input tax to be deducted is the VAT input tax that the Group expects to deduct in the following year.

Note 2:	 Time deposits are fixed deposits that the Group is unable or does not intend to withdraw in advance within one year, 

the rate of which is 3.50% – 4.07%.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

24.	 Notes payable

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Commercial acceptance bills 14,984,812.23 30,772,300.00

Bank acceptance bills 1,300,000.00 14,513,299.60
   

Total 16,284,812.23 45,285,599.60
   

At the end of the Period, the Group’s deposit for the above-mentioned bank acceptance bills was 

RMB390,000.00 (31 December 2021: RMB4,487,927.88).

The Group’s bank acceptances bills will all be due within 3 months.

25.	 Accounts payable

Details of aging analysis of accounts payable are as follows:

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Within 1 year 3,626,789,484.21 4,137,818,371.49

More than 1 year but not exceeding 2 years 820,534,672.38 815,849,243.13

More than 2 years but not exceeding 3 years 227,583,597.09 254,492,255.24

More than 3 years 189,120,667.88 198,421,310.13
   

Total 4,864,028,421.56 5,406,581,179.99
   

The above aging analysis of accounts payable is carried out based on the time of purchasing 

goods or receiving services. Accounts payable aged more than one year are mainly payments 

due to the suppliers.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

26.	 Contract liabilities

(1)	 Presentation of contract liabilities:

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Advanced receipts for sold goods 532,720,235.07 539,851,504.56

Membership card points 2,536,984.19 2,234,909.60
   

Total 535,257,219.26 542,086,414.16
   

(2)	 During the current period, the Group recognized the carrying amount of contract liabilities 

at the beginning of the Period of RMB226,557,383.58, comprising contract liabilities of 

RMB226,554,252.17 arising from advanced receipts for sold goods, and contract liabilities 

of RMB3,131.41 arising from membership card points.

(3)	 Analysis on related contract liabilities

The Group’s receipts in advance for goods sold are mainly advanced receipts from books 

sold to customers such as students and presale of book purchase cards in retail stores, and 

these transaction funds are recognized as contract liabilities upon receipt. For advanced 

receipts from book sales, revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of related goods 

to customers.

The Group’s retail stores adopt a reward policy of membership loyalty cards for customers. 

For customers with consumption points reaching a certain level, points can be converted 

into cash for purchase in the retail stores. The Group allocates sale consideration to the 

sold goods and issued points in accordance with the respective stand-alone selling prices. 

Sale consideration allocated to reward points is recognized as contract liabilities, and as 

revenue upon redemption.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

27.	 Employee benefits payable

(1)	 Presentation of employee benefits payable

RMB

Item

1 January 2022 Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the 

current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

I.	 Short-term benefits 590,319,199.62 659,662,481.73 830,078,015.83 419,903,665.52

II.	Post-employment benefit  

– defined contribution plan 3,854,228.72 94,513,186.51 94,254,452.14 4,112,963.09

III.	Termination benefits – 1,551,279.23 1,551,279.23 –
     

Total 594,173,428.34 755,726,947.47 925,883,747.20 424,016,628.61
     

(2)	 Presentation of short-term benefits

RMB

Item

1 January 2022 Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the 

current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

I.	 Wages or salaries, bonuses, 

allowances and subsidies 500,202,888.13 552,883,268.20 731,381,416.14 321,704,740.19

II.	 Staff welfare – 7,154,089.14 7,146,789.14 7,300.00

III.	Social security contributions 219,740.03 34,483,145.22 34,422,019.87 280,865.38

    Including: Medical insurance 166,231.10 32,875,984.03 32,824,553.65 217,661.48

              Work injury insurance 32,573.36 1,299,476.32 1,296,106.56 35,943.12

              Maternity insurance 14,317.18 296,333.24 289,828.03 20,822.39

              Other insurances 6,618.39 11,351.63 11,531.63 6,438.39

IV.	Housing funds 958,571.97 44,754,914.57 44,509,600.93 1,203,885.61

V.	 Union running costs and 

employee education costs 88,844,647.96 19,272,661.74 11,503,786.80 96,613,522.90

VI.	Others 93,351.53 1,114,402.86 1,114,402.95 93,351.44
     

Total 590,319,199.62 659,662,481.73 830,078,015.83 419,903,665.52
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

27.	 Employee benefits payable (Continued)

(3)	 Defined contribution plan

RMB

Item

1 January 2022 Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the 

current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

I.	 Basic pension insurance 

expense 288,253.11 61,721,978.26 61,646,985.41 363,245.96

II.	 Unemployment 

insurance expense 42,038.16 2,329,174.10 2,325,327.44 45,884.82

III.	Enterprise annuity 3,523,937.45 30,462,034.15 30,282,139.29 3,703,832.31
     

Total 3,854,228.72 94,513,186.51 94,254,452.14 4,112,963.09
     

The Group participates in pension insurance and unemployment insurance plans established 

by government in accordance with the relevant requirements. According to the plans, the 

Group makes a monthly contribution equivalent to 16% and 0.6% of the employee’s monthly 

basic wage and performance-linked compensation, respectively, to the plans. Save as the 

monthly contribution above, the Group has not undertaken further payment obligation. 

The corresponding expenses are included in profit or loss for the period or the cost of the 

relevant asset when incurred.

During the Period, the Group’s contributions of RMB61,721,978.26 and RMB2,329,174.10 

(the Same Period of Last Year: RMB57,584,802.98 and RMB2,241,817.09) were payable 

to pension insurance and unemployment insurance plans respectively. As at 30 June 2022, 

the outstanding contributions of RMB363,245.96 and RMB45,884.82 (31 December 2021: 

RMB288,253.11 and RMB42,038.16) payable by the Group were contributions due during 

the Reporting Period and yet to be paid to the pension insurance and unemployment 

insurance plans. Such contributions payable were settled after the Reporting Period.



128 Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

28.	 Taxes payable

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Income tax 2,124,148.22 7,857,518.66

Value added tax 21,093,618.00 31,184,440.76

City construction and maintenance tax 455,720.78 630,660.15

Education surcharges 326,882.60 461,823.21

Individual income tax 3,374,362.55 4,348,165.13

Others 17,881,232.20 17,942,601.63
Others   

Total 45,255,964.35 62,425,209.54
   

29.	 Other payables

29.1	 Total other payables

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Amounts due to related parties 14,269,008.36 15,993,430.45

Security deposit/deposit/quality warranty/

performance security 75,255,524.98 73,913,820.63

Construction and infrastructure construction 

expenses 66,098,718.14 72,072,547.92

Amounts due to/from other entities 23,515,790.65 13,967,874.80

Dividend payables 141,987,307.06 –

Others 217,329,845.83 210,939,121.67
   

Total 538,456,195.02 386,886,795.47
   

Other payables aged more than one year are mainly security deposit and deposit.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

29.	 Other payables (Continued)

29.2	 Dividend payables

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Dividend payables – H Shareholders 141,419,872.00 –

Dividend payables – non-controlling interests of 

subsidiaries (Note) 567,435.06 –
   

Total 141,987,307.06 –
   

Note:	 The dividend payables represent the dividend payables by Sichuan Times English Cultural Communication Co., Ltd. 

to Sichuan Yangguang Didai Technology Co., Ltd.

30.	 Other current liabilities

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Government grants (Note 1) 94,602,428.71 96,896,634.17

Expected sales returns (Note 2) 113,821,784.37 100,371,095.77

Output tax to be transferred 4,742,844.68 4,231,176.10
   

Total 213,167,057.76 201,498,906.04
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

30.	 Other current liabilities (Continued)

Note 1:	 Item involving government subsidies:

RMB

Item 1 January 2022

New grants 

for the 

current period

Amount 

recognized 

in other income 

for the current 

period

Decrease 

in others

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

Related to 

an asset/related 

to income
       

Books 

subsidies 96,896,634.17 2,839,055.89 5,008,293.08 124,968.27 94,602,428.71 Related to income
       

For the publication of certain topics, the publishing units of the Group will receive various forms of government 

subsidies. When the relevant publications are completed, the corresponding government subsidies will be included 

in the other income, and the government subsidies that have been acquired but not yet implemented of the relevant 

issuing business will be shown under other current liabilities.

Note 2: Expected sales returns are related to the customer’s right of refund subsequent to purchase of books. On the basis 

of accumulated historical experiences, the Group assesses the quantity of sales returns using the expected-value 

method on an organization level.

31.	 Lease liabilities

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Rents 431,237,890.61 361,300,533.93

Less: Lease liabilities included in non-current  

      liabilities due within one year 85,565,471.91 101,706,168.70
   

Total 345,672,418.70 259,594,365.23
   

32.	 Deferred income

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Government grants 28,544,452.24 31,146,881.78
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

32.	 Deferred income (Continued)

Items related to government grants:

RMB

Item

1 January 2022

New grants 

for the 

current 

period

Amount 

charged 

to other 

income 

for the 

current 

period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

Related 

to an asset/

related to

 income
      

Copyright protection of audio and video cloud application system 769,308.89 – 74,449.25 694,859.64 Related to an asset

Western Culture Logistics and Distribution Base 676,339.48 – 128,030.17 548,309.31 Related to an asset

Special funds for technological transformation 3,863,855.79 – 1,113,210.87 2,750,644.92 Related to an asset

Research and development and industrialization project of rich 

media digital resources online edit system 1,682,562.99 – 317,664.79 1,364,898.20 Related to an asset

Wisdom Bookstore Project 1,129,346.29 – 459,796.41 669,549.88 Related to an asset

Special fund for Stackway 2,053,534.25 – 215,130.78 1,838,403.47 Related to an asset

Network Construction of Shuxiang Tianfu, Wisdom Xinhua 

Physical Bookstore 736,298.11 991,860.00 100,718.96 1,627,439.15 Related to an asset

Digital Media Education Service System Construction 431,144.88 – 80,839.68 350,305.20 Related to an asset

Digital Evaluation Platform 1,686,024.06 – 163,163.62 1,522,860.44 Related to an asset

Establishment of Big data based Math Analysis Model which is 

published on demand and Key Technology Research Project 2,461,348.11 – 314,214.65 2,147,133.46 Related to an asset

Model project of semantics-based content resources linking 

technology and education compound application system 

research and development and application 322,943.16 – 41,226.79 281,716.37 Related to an asset

Education and media convergence projects 344,312.40 – – 344,312.40 Related to an asset

Unified content-based media distribution service platform for 

culture and education 866,324.00 – 366,403.30 499,920.70 Related to an asset

Research and development and industrial application of key 

technologies of digital education public service platform 428,616.34 – 88,679.24 339,937.10 Related to an asset

Provincial special funds (Tibetan, Qiang and Yi cultural corridor) 4,435,291.77 – 16,028.82 4,419,262.95 Related to an asset

Application and demonstration of a digital cloud interpretation 

service platform for local culture based on 5G technology 

integrated with cultural tourism development – 1,000,000.00 500,000.00 500,000.00 Related to income

2022 municipal special funds for cultural industry development – 600,000.00 600,000.00 – Related to income

Others 9,259,631.26 – 614,732.21 8,644,899.05 Related to an asset
      

Total 31,146,881.78 2,591,860.00 5,194,289.54 28,544,452.24
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33.	 Share capital

For the current period

RMB

Item

1 January 2022 Changes for the Period 30 June 2022

 (Unaudited)
 

Issue of 

new shares

Bonus 

issue

Capitalization 

of surplus 

reserve Others Subtotal
        

Total number of shares 1,233,841,000.00 – – – – – 1,233,841,000.00
        

For the Same Period of Last Year

RMB

Item

1 January 2021 Changes for the period 30 June 2021 

(Unaudited)
 

Issue of 

new shares

Bonus 

issue

Capitalization 

of surplus 

reserve Others Subtotal
        

Total number of shares 1,233,841,000.00 – – – – – 1,233,841,000.00
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

34.	 Capital reserve

For the current period

RMB

Item 1 January 2022

Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the 

current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

Share capital premium 2,540,421,521.70 – – 2,540,421,521.70

Including: Capital contributed by investors 2,623,214,037.85 – – 2,623,214,037.85

Differences arising from business 

combination involving enterprises 

under common control (24,511,900.00) – – (24,511,900.00)

Difference arising from acquisition 

or disposal of non-controlling 

shareholders (58,280,616.15) – – (58,280,616.15)

Other capital reserve 32,103,244.62 – – 32,103,244.62

Including: Transfer from capital  

  reserve under the  

  previous accounting  

  system 23,281,007.10 – – 23,281,007.10

Treasury shares (998,378.51) – – (998,378.51)

Others 9,820,616.03 – – 9,820,616.03
     

Total 2,572,524,766.32 – – 2,572,524,766.32
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34.	 Capital reserve (Continued)

For the Same Period of Last Year

RMB

Item 1 January 2021

Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the 

current period

30 June 2021 

(Unaudited)
     

Share capital premium 2,540,421,521.70 – – 2,540,421,521.70

Including: Capital contributed by investors 2,623,214,037.85 – – 2,623,214,037.85

Differences arising from business 

combination involving enterprises 

under common control (24,511,900.00) – – (24,511,900.00)

Difference arising from acquisition 

or disposal of non-controlling 

shareholders (58,280,616.15) – – (58,280,616.15)

Other capital reserve 32,103,244.62 – – 32,103,244.62

Including: Transfer from capital reserve under 

            the previous accounting system 23,281,007.10 – – 23,281,007.10

Treasury shares (998,378.51) – – (998,378.51)

Others 9,820,616.03 – – 9,820,616.03
     

Total 2,572,524,766.32 – – 2,572,524,766.32
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35.	 Other comprehensive income

For the current period

RMB

Item

1 January 2022 Changes for the current period 30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
 

Amount before 

income tax for 

the current 

period

Less:

 Income 

tax expenses

Post-tax 

amount 

attributable 

to the owner 

of the parent

Post-tax 

amount 

attributable 

to the non-

controlling 

shareholders

Less: Other 

comprehensive 

income 

(loss) in the 

prior period 

that is 

transferred 

to retained 

earnings
        

Other comprehensive income that cannot be 

reclassified into profit or loss 1,178,842,757.57 321,711,041.35 45,360.34 321,665,681.01 – – 1,500,508,438.58

Changes in fair value of other equity 

instrument investments 1,178,842,757.57 321,711,041.35 45,360.34 321,665,681.01 – – 1,500,508,438.58
        

For the Same Period of Last Year

RMB

Item

1 January 2021 Changes for the current period 30 June 2021 

(Unaudited)
 

Amount before 

income tax for 

the current 

period

Less: 

Income 

tax expenses

Post-tax 

amount 

attributable

 to the owner 

of the parent

Post-tax 

amount 

attributable 

to the non-

controlling 

shareholders

Less: Other 

comprehensive 

income 

(loss) in the 

prior period 

that is 

transferred to 

retained earnings
        

Other comprehensive income that cannot be 

reclassified into profit or loss 1,016,266,307.50 153,945,472.63 21,168.16 153,924,304.47 – (1,311,665.90) 1,171,502,277.87

Changes in fair value of other equity 

instrument investments 1,016,266,307.50 153,945,472.63 21,168.16 153,924,304.47 – (1,311,665.90) 1,171,502,277.87
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(Continued)

36.	 Surplus reserve

For the current period

RMB

Item 1 January 2022

Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the 

current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

Statutory surplus reserve 1,009,210,479.29 – – 1,009,210,479.29
     

For the Same Period of Last Year

RMB

Item 1 January 2021

Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the 

current period

30 June 2021 

(Unaudited)
     

Statutory surplus reserve 897,647,684.81 – – 897,647,684.81
     

37.	 Undistributed profits

RMB

Item

Current period 

(Unaudited) Prior year

Proportion of 

appropriation 

or distribution
    

Undistributed profits at the 

beginning of the Period/year 5,227,141,020.57 4,416,564,721.94

Add: Net profit attributable to 

      shareholders of the 

      parent company for 

      the period 717,795,048.76 1,305,941,469.01

Less: Appropriation to statutory 

      surplus reserve – 111,562,794.48 (1)

   Distribution of dividends 

     on ordinary shares 394,829,120.00 382,490,710.00 (2)

   Internal carry-over within 

     equity – 1,311,665.90

Undistributed profits at the end 

of the Period/year 5,550,106,949.33 5,227,141,020.57
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37.	 Undistributed profits (Continued)

(1)	 Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve

According to the Articles of Association, the Company is required to transfer 10% of its 

net profit to the statutory surplus reserve. The transfer may be ceased if the balance 

of the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the Company’s registered capital. 

The statutory surplus reserve can be used to offset the loss of the Company, expanding 

production and operation or transferring to paid-in capital, but the retained statutory surplus 

reserve shall not be lower than 25% of the registered capital.

(2)	 Cash dividends approved in shareholders’ meeting

On 24 May 2022, the resolution regarding the Company’s 2021 Annual Profit Distribution 

Proposal was approved at 2021 annual general meeting of the Company. The profit 

distribution was based on the Company’s total share capital of 1,233,841,000 shares 

before the implementation of the proposal. The cash dividend per share was RMB0.32 

(tax-inclusive) (prior year: RMB0.31 (tax-inclusive)) and the total cash dividends of 

RMB394,829,120.00 (tax-inclusive) (prior year: RMB382,490,710.00 (tax-inclusive)) was 

distributed.

(3)	 Appropriation to surplus reserve by subsidiaries

At the end of the current period, the balance of the Group’s undistributed profits included 

appropriation to surplus reserve by subsidiaries amounting to RMB173,988,205.30 (31 

December 2021: RMB173,988,205.30).

38.	 Operating income and operating costs

(1)	 Classification

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Principal operating income 4,903,342,824.87 4,590,180,519.45

Other operating income (Note) 76,462,186.05 71,400,533.19

Total income 4,979,805,010.92 4,661,581,052.64

Principal operating cost 3,078,347,754.03 2,747,235,415.21

Other operating cost 5,144,633.23 5,787,651.26

Total costs 3,083,492,387.26 2,753,023,066.47
   

Note:	 Included in other operating income was net income from concessionaire sales of RMB16,064,238.54. Among 

which, revenue from concessionaire sales was RMB104,817,805.68 and cost from concessionaire sales was 

RMB88,753,567.14. (Same Period of Last Year: net income from concessionaire sales of RMB17,629,292.42. 

Among which, revenue from concessionaire sales was RMB122,810,748.24 and cost from concessionaire 

sales was RMB105,181,455.82.)
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38.	 Operating income and operating costs (Continued)

(2)	 Details of income from contracts:

Description of income from principal contracts:

RMB

Principal operating income Principal operating costs

Product

Current period 

(Unaudited)

Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)

Current period 

(Unaudited)

Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
     

I. Publication segment

Textbooks and supplementary materials 639,859,479.08 676,989,621.67 365,568,169.04 370,190,563.56

General book 335,709,777.32 356,961,935.82 263,061,978.04 263,713,874.06

Printing and supplies 93,537,050.78 127,173,871.19 73,922,083.11 106,284,119.46

Newspapers and journals 24,964,504.11 18,817,359.57 13,580,371.31 10,185,809.54

Others 5,542,208.21 6,533,958.44 3,546,640.87 5,468,598.16
     

Subtotal 1,099,613,019.50 1,186,476,746.69 719,679,242.37 755,842,964.78
     

II. Distribution segment

Textbooks and supplementary materials 2,685,805,125.31 2,491,797,710.34 1,568,698,598.06 1,407,030,876.94

General book 1,521,714,759.48 1,429,633,665.75 1,297,799,958.35 1,174,583,059.90

Education informatized and 

  equipment businesses 175,876,779.62 99,938,290.90 149,112,558.15 82,019,621.24

Others 11,255,106.67 48,399,510.87 8,879,445.08 32,774,511.33
     

Subtotal 4,394,651,771.08 4,069,769,177.86 3,024,490,559.64 2,696,408,069.41
     

III. Others 205,514,584.65 176,810,547.10 191,699,058.64 163,866,109.53

Less: Inter-segment elimination 796,436,550.36 842,875,952.20 857,521,106.62 868,881,728.51
     

Total 4,903,342,824.87 4,590,180,519.45 3,078,347,754.03 2,747,235,415.21
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38.	 Operating income and operating costs (Continued)

(2)	 Details of income from contracts: (Continued)

Description of income from principal contracts: (Continued)

RMB

Principle operating income Principle operating costs

Channel

Current period 

(Unaudited)

Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)

Current period 

(Unaudited)

Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
     

I. Publication segment 1,099,613,019.50 1,186,476,746.69 719,679,242.37 755,842,964.78
     

II. Distribution segment

Education services 2,872,937,011.60 2,640,135,512.11 1,726,690,601.29 1,521,825,009.51

Online sales 1,164,728,571.78 1,046,457,802.39 1,068,416,889.57 910,505,241.47

Store sales 295,429,235.68 277,028,887.86 187,343,604.10 173,858,917.66

Others 61,556,952.02 106,146,975.50 42,039,464.68 90,218,900.77
     

Subtotal 4,394,651,771.08 4,069,769,177.86 3,024,490,559.64 2,696,408,069.41
     

II. Others 205,514,584.65 176,810,547.10 191,699,058.64 163,866,109.53

Including: Logistics services 203,537,072.94 171,051,884.32 190,226,343.28 161,346,777.98

Less: Inter-segment elimination 796,436,550.36 842,875,952.20 857,521,106.62 868,881,728.51
     

Total 4,903,342,824.87 4,590,180,519.45 3,078,347,754.03 2,747,235,415.21
     

Division of publication segment and distribution segment and other details are set out in 

Note (XV)2.
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39.	 Taxes and surcharges

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

City construction and maintenance tax 2,341,413.97 2,490,827.25

Education surcharges 1,683,606.14 1,780,354.39

Property tax 12,388,926.13 10,901,253.58

Urban land use tax 1,908,083.97 1,639,629.71

Vessel and vehicle tax 143,806.50 89,675.32

Stamp duty 1,587,431.11 1,564,374.02

Others 49,215.94 4,441.49
   

Total 20,102,483.76 18,470,555.76
   

40.	 Selling expenses

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Wages and other labor costs 366,384,171.21 332,083,455.84

Transportation costs (Note) 52,783,933.81 145,988,550.82

Entrusted logistics fees (Note) 42,131,432.11 53,591,299.94

Business conference fees 10,453,230.67 26,438,363.63

Vehicle fees 7,715,258.58 8,395,249.02

Travel expenses 7,044,255.31 10,110,756.86

Advertising and promotion fees 69,174,228.16 45,818,370.05

Distribution commission 5,447,807.08 21,921,241.02

Packing expenses 14,492,019.75 10,190,709.33

E-commerce platform service fees 36,780,637.85 23,590,809.06

Others 16,801,499.35 21,311,012.14
   

Total 629,208,473.88 699,439,817.71
   

Note:	 During the current period, the Group has analyzed and sorted out the expenses related to contract performance 

costs in accordance with the Standard – Revenue, and the transportation fees and logistics fees arising from the 

performance of contract obligations were included in the operating cost accounting as contract performance costs, 

and the transportation fees and logistics fees not arising from the performance of contract obligations were included 

in the selling expenses.
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41.	 Administrative expenses

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Wages and other labor costs 348,027,637.47 309,632,836.27

Business entertainment fees 24,499,500.12 66,465,432.29

Lease payments 8,846,572.76 7,704,767.53

Depreciation and amortization expenses 121,951,737.75 114,603,700.07

Conference fees 5,071,095.47 8,641,763.18

Property management fees 28,251,112.78 20,443,366.00

Travel expenses 2,718,152.03 4,874,729.94

Energy costs 8,124,620.28 7,792,827.63

Office expenses 3,968,554.01 3,545,459.40

Repair charges 4,834,978.32 9,528,766.91

Audit and other non-audit service fees 720,000.00 720,000.00

Others 38,282,334.64 42,664,874.87
   

Total 595,296,295.63 596,618,524.09
   

42.	 Finance expenses

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Interest expense 17,489.21 15,003.44

Interest expense on lease liabilities 10,922,117.22 10,953,699.23

Interest income (Note 1) (77,068,916.61) (41,822,203.98)

Interest income of long-term receivables (6,759,766.57) (6,560,521.63)

Exchange gains or losses and others 3,774,236.53 4,708,067.72
   

Total (69,114,840.22) (32,705,955.22)
   

Note 1:	 The total interest income generated from time deposits shown as other current and non-current assets under the 

effective interest rate method for the current period was RMB17,484,311.87 (incurred in the Same Period of Last 

Year: RMB7,278,674.33).
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43.	 Other income

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Book publishing subsidies 5,008,293.08 7,206,821.78

VAT first levied then returned 36,791,018.44 24,747,690.97

Other financial subsidies 9,060,267.68 6,649,941.88
   

Total 50,859,579.20 38,604,454.63
   

44.	 Investment income

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Income from long-term equity investments

Including: �Income from investments under  

  equity method (6,544,933.19) 9,149,573.22

Investment income during the holding of 

  other non-current financial assets – 693,948.50

Dividend income during the holding of other 

  equity instrument investments 71,588,800.00 56,742,400.00

Investment income from disposal of 

  held-for-trading financial assets 24,772,049.54 2,578,353.34

Others – 1,407,398.19
   

Total 89,815,916.35 70,571,673.25
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45.	 Losses from fair value change

RMB

Source of gains from fair value change

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Financial assets at FVTPL (57,143,903.32) (36,891,522.25)

Including: Other non-current financial assets (57,140,318.22) (36,892,451.26)

          Held-for-trading financial assets (3,585.10) 929.01
   

Total (57,143,903.32) (36,891,522.25)
   

46.	 Losses on credit impairment

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Credit impairment losses of accounts receivable (113,637,145.83) (61,330,345.36)

Credit impairment gains of other receivables 319,489.65 594,008.08
   

Total (113,317,656.18) (60,736,337.28)
   

47.	 Impairment losses of assets

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Losses from decline in value for inventories (19,347,328.54) (35,461,604.56)
   

Total (19,347,328.54) (35,461,604.56)
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48.	 Gains on asset disposal

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 
in the 

current period 
(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 
in the Same Period 

of Last Year 
(Unaudited)

   

Gains on disposal of non-current assets 38,196,475.59 1,958,767.70
Others 2,146,125.85 69,091.98

   

Total 40,342,601.44 2,027,859.68
   

49.	 Non-operating income

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 
in the 

current period 
(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 
in the Same Period 

of Last Year 
(Unaudited)

Amount included 
in non-recurring 
profit or loss for 

the current period
    

Total gains on disposal of 
  non-current assets 268,484.87 173,290.05 268,484.87
Including: gains on disposal 
  of fixed assets 268,484.87 173,290.05 268,484.87
Others 2,873,840.89 2,603,551.15 2,873,840.89

    

Total 3,142,325.76 2,776,841.20 3,142,325.76
    

50.	 Non-operating expenses

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 
in the 

current period 
(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 
in the Same Period 

of Last Year 
(Unaudited)

Amount included 
in non-recurring 
profit or loss for 

the current period
    

Total losses on disposal of 
  non-current assets 112,807.06 249,306.40 112,807.06
Including: losses on disposal 
  of fixed assets 112,807.06 249,306.40 112,807.06
Donations 10,797,653.27 15,618,669.80 10,797,653.27
Penalties 1,031.83 28,144.82 1,031.83
Others 759,205.29 198,002.88 759,205.29

    

Total 11,670,697.45 16,094,123.90 11,670,697.45
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51.	 Income tax expenses

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Current income tax calculated according to 

  tax laws and relevant requirements 3,162,187.44 1,805,449.44

Adjustment to impact of income tax of  

  past periods 870,252.91 (3,590,230.26)

Deferred income tax expenses (17,782,171.91) (7,810,117.47)
   

Total (13,749,731.56) (9,594,898.29)
   

Reconciliation of income tax expenses to the accounting profit is as follows:

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Accounting profit 701,178,931.84 590,222,698.19

Income tax expenses calculated at 25% 175,294,732.96 147,555,674.55

Tax concessions (199,039,546.32) (170,278,685.16)

Effect of expenses that are not deductible for 

  tax purposes 13,202,482.01 19,865,006.01

Effect of tax-free income (17,897,200.00) (14,185,600.00)

Effect of utilization of deductible losses for which

   no deferred income tax asset was recognized 

  in the prior period (97,469.82) (3,025,544.34)

Effect of utilization of deductible temporary 

  differences for which no deferred income

  tax asset was recognized in the prior period (10,926,166.54) (873,979.23)

Effect of deductible temporary differences or 

  deductible losses for which no deferred 

  income tax asset was recognized 

  during the current period 24,843,183.24 14,938,460.14

Adjustment to impact of income tax of 

  past periods 870,252.91 (3,590,230.26)
   

Total (13,749,731.56) (9,594,898.29)
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52.	 Calculation process of basic earnings per share

For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, net profit for the current period attributable 

to ordinary shareholders is as follows:

RMB

Current period 

(Unaudited)

Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Net profit for the current period attributable to 

  ordinary shareholders 717,795,048.76 602,909,289.93

Including: Net profit from continuing operations 717,795,048.76 602,909,289.93
   

For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, the denominator is the weighted average 

number of outstanding ordinary shares and its calculation process is as follows:

Number of shares

Current period 

(Unaudited)

Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Number of ordinary shares outstanding 

  at the beginning of the period 1,233,841,000.00 1,233,841,000.00

Weighted number of ordinary shares outstanding 

  at the end of the period 1,233,841,000.00 1,233,841,000.00
   

Earnings per share:

RMB

Current period 

(Unaudited)

Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Net profit for the current period attributable 

  to ordinary shareholders divided 

  by weighted number of ordinary shares 

  outstanding at the end of period 0.58 0.49

Net profit for the current period attributable 

  to ordinary shareholders and attributable to 

  continuing operation divided by weighted 

  number of ordinary shares outstanding 

  at the end of period 0.58 0.49
   

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

53.	 Notes to items in the cash flow statement

(1)	 Other cash receipts relating to operating activities

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 
in the 

current period 
(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 
in the Same Period 

of Last Year 
(Unaudited)

   

Interests 59,584,604.74 34,543,529.65
Government grants 9,296,894.03 7,755,872.84
Receipt of amounts due to/from 
  other entities 19,663,804.09 36,322,135.65
Others 18,646,098.84 37,879,944.03

   

Total 107,191,401.70 116,501,482.17
   

(2)	 Other cash payments relating to operating activities

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 
in the 

current period 
(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 
in the Same Period 

of Last Year 
(Unaudited)

   

Selling expenses 262,714,424.82 366,168,715.66
Including: Transportation costs 52,783,933.81 145,988,550.82

Advertising and promotion fees 69,174,228.16 45,818,370.05
Entrusted logistics fees 42,131,432.11 53,591,299.94
Business conference fees 10,453,230.67 26,438,363.63
Distribution commission 5,447,807.08 21,921,241.02
Travel expenses 7,044,255.31 10,110,756.86
Vehicles fees 7,715,258.58 8,395,249.02
E-commerce platform service 
  fees 36,780,637.85 23,590,809.06

Administrative expenses 125,316,920.41 225,749,910.24
Including: Lease payment 8,846,572.76 7,704,767.53

Business entertainment fees 24,499,500.12 66,465,432.29
Property management fees 28,251,112.78 20,443,366.00
Conference fees 5,071,095.47 8,641,763.18
Energy costs 8,124,620.28 7,792,827.63
Repair charges 4,834,978.32 9,528,766.91

Others 47,694,273.75 20,913,189.16
   

Total 435,725,618.98 612,831,815.06
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

53.	 Notes to items in the cash flow statement (Continued)

(3)	 Other cash receipts relating to investing activities

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Receipt of time deposit over 3 months 400,000,000.00 –

Recovery of interest from time deposit 5,499,999.89 –
   

Total 405,499,999.89 –
   

(4)	 Other cash payments relating to investing activities

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Increase of time deposit over 3 months 300,000,000.00 700,000,000.00
   

(5)	 Other cash payments relating to financing activities

RMB

Item

Amount incurred 

in the 

current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 

in the Same Period 

of Last Year 

(Unaudited)
   

Payment for lease payments 42,779,482.54 45,156,312.16
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

54.	 Supplementary information to the cash flow statement

(1)	 Supplementary information to the cash flow statement

RMB

Supplementary information

Amount incurred 
in the 

current period 
(Unaudited)

Amount incurred 
in the Same Period 

of Last Year 
(Unaudited)

   

1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash
  flow from operating activities:
   Net profit 714,928,663.40 599,817,596.48
   Add: Impairment losses of assets 19,347,328.54 35,461,604.56

Loss on credit impairment 113,317,656.18 60,736,337.28
Depreciation of fixed assets 57,824,696.98 52,669,580.22
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 54,096,539.90 60,716,647.21
Depreciation of investment properties 1,479,693.08 1,805,043.73
Amortization of intangible assets 20,435,083.91 16,351,958.44
Amortization of long-term prepaid 
  expenses 7,531,928.64 6,153,724.32
Asset disposal gains (40,342,601.44) (2,027,859.68)
Losses from fair value changes 57,143,903.32 36,891,522.25
Finance expenses (6,544,705.44) 3,690,028.34
Investment income (89,815,916.35) (69,171,673.25)
(Gains)/losses on retirement of assets (155,677.81) 76,016.35
Increase in deferred income tax assets (5,155,692.00) (1,971,249.47)
Decrease in deferred income tax 
  liabilities (12,626,479.91) (5,838,868.00)
Decrease (increase) in inventories 502,830,092.80 (122,654,877.69)
Increase in receivables from operating 
  activities (223,620,971.51) (255,926,973.20)
(Decrease) increase in payables from 
  operating activities (749,949,105.41) 54,360,088.30

Net cash flow from operating activities 420,724,436.88 471,138,646.19
2. Material investment and financing 
 activities not involving cash 
 receipts and payments:
  Right-of-use assets recognized for 
    leased fixed assets 113,353,236.85 9,679,141.90
3. Net changes in cash and cash 
 equivalents:
  Closing balance of cash and cash 
    equivalent for the period 6,308,966,661.48 4,877,464,989.83
  Less: Opening balance of cash and 
          cash equivalent for the period 5,997,769,686.81 5,740,841,068.18
  Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
    cash equivalents 311,196,974.67 (863,376,078.35)
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

54.	 Supplementary information to the cash flow statement (Continued)

(2)	 Cash and cash equivalents

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Cash 6,308,966,661.48 5,997,769,686.81

Including: Cash on hand 1,053,076.68 1,482,033.90

Bank deposits readily available 

  for payment 6,284,168,172.49 5,995,023,900.96

Other cash and bank balances 

  readily available for payment 23,745,412.31 1,263,751.95
   

Balance of cash and cash equivalents 6,308,966,661.48 5,997,769,686.81
   

55.	 Assets with restricted ownership

RMB

Assets with restricted ownership

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Cash and bank balances (Note) 37,546,746.93 42,259,591.91
   

Note:	 At the end of the Period, the Group’s cash and bank balances with restricted ownership consist of security 

deposit for the issuance of bank acceptance bills of RMB390,000.00 (31 December 2021: RMB4,487,927.88), 

security deposit placed in bank for the issuance of guarantee letter of RMB11,125,903.00 (31 December 2021: 

RMB8,087,289.68), the special fund for housing reform and housing repair of RMB24,787,507.93 (31 December 

2021: RMB24,770,900.35), security deposit for travel service quality of Sichuan Winshare Xingzhi Study Tour Travel 

Agency Co., Ltd. (“Xingzhi Study Tour Travel Agency”), a subsidiary of the Group, of RMB1,100,000.00 (31 

December 2021: RMB1,100,000.00) and bank deposits frozen as a result of the litigation of Sichuan Xinhua Printing 

Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, of RMB143,336.00 (31 December 2021: RMB3,813,474.00).
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(VI)	 NOTES TO ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued)

56.	 Net current assets

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Current assets 11,151,873,542.44 11,243,967,170.78

Less: Current liabilities 6,722,031,770.70 7,340,643,701.84
   

Net current assets 4,429,841,771.74 3,903,323,468.94
   

57.	 Total assets less current liabilities

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Total assets 18,867,426,153.45 18,773,945,790.88

Less: Current liabilities 6,722,031,770.70 7,340,643,701.84
   

Total assets less current liabilities 12,145,394,382.75 11,433,302,089.04
   

(VII)	CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATION SCOPE

1.	 Change of scope of consolidation due to other reasons

There is no change in the scope of consolidation for the Period.
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(VIII)	 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES
1.	 Subsidiaries:

(1)	 Subsidiaries incorporated by investments

RMB

Full name of subsidiary
Type of the
subsidiary

Principal place
of business
and place of
incorporation

Nature of
business

Registered
capital Business scope

Proportion
of ownership
interests (%)

Proportion
of voting

power (%)

Consolidated
statements
or not

         

Sichuan Xinhua Winshare 
Media Co., Ltd. (“Winshare 
Media”)

LLC Chengdu Periodicals 3,990,000.00 Sales of books and 
periodicals, etc.

100.00 100.00 Y

Winshare Education Technology LLC Chengdu Technical 
Services

330,000,000.00 Software development 
and sales of electronic 
equipment

100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Wenchuan Logistics 
Co., Ltd. (“Wenchuan 
Logistics”)

LLC Chengdu Storage and 
distribution

350,000,000.00 Storage and distribution of 
goods

100.00 100.00 Y

Xinhua Winshare Commercial 
Chain (Beijing) Co., Ltd. 
(“Beijing Winshare 
Commercial”)

LLC Beijing Sales of 
publications

180,000,000.00 Sales of books, newspaper 
and periodicals

51.00 51.00 Y

Sichuan Winshare Arts 
Investment and Management 
Co., Ltd. (“Arts Investment”)

LLC Chengdu Exhibition of 
artwork

20,000,000.00 Project investment and 
management, exhibition 
of artwork

100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Winshare Online 
E-commerce Co., Ltd. 
(“Winshare Online”)

LLC Chengdu Sales of 
publications

60,000,000.00 Online sales of various 
products

75.00 75.00 Y

Sichuan Watch Panda  
Magazine Co., Ltd.  
(“Watch Panda”)

LLC Chengdu Periodicals 2,000,000.00 Sales of periodicals 100.00 100.00 Y

Winshare Investment Co., Ltd. 
(“Winshare Investment”)

LLC Chengdu Investment 300,000,000.00 Ven tu re  i n ves tmen t , 
business investment

100.00 100.00 Y

Winshare International Cultural 
Communication Co., Ltd. 
(“Winshare International”)

LLC Chengdu Business 
advisory 
services

50,000,000.00 Organization and planning of 
cultural and art exchange 
act i v i t i es ,  bus iness 
consulting, conference 
and exhibition services

100.00 100.00 Y

Xingzhi Study Tour Travel 
Agency

LLC Chengdu Business 
services

5,000,000.00 Travel agency and related 
services, study tour event 
planning, conference, 
exhibition and related 
services

100.00 100.00 Y
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(VIII)	 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

1.	 Subsidiaries: (Continued)

(1)	 Subsidiaries incorporated by investments (Continued)

RMB

Full name of subsidiary
Type of the
subsidiary

Principal place
of business
and place of
incorporation

Nature of
business

Registered
capital Business scope

Proportion
of ownership
interests (%)

Proportion
of voting

power (%)

Consolidated
statements
or not

         

Winshare Quan Media (Beijing) 
Culture Communication 
Co., Ltd. (“Winshare Quan 
Media”)

LLC Beijing Business 
advisory 
services

10,000,000.00 Organization of cultural and 
art exchange activities

100.00 100.00 Y

Beijing Aerospace Cloud LLC Beijing Technical 
Services

41,783,300.00 C o m p u t e r  s o f t w a r e 
development and system 
services

70.00 70.00 Y

Beijing Huaxia Shengxuan 
Book Co., Ltd. (“Huaxia 
Shengxuan”)

LLC Beijing Sales of 
publications

15,000,000.00 Sales of publications, etc. 100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Winshare Xuankehui 
Cultural Development Co., 
Ltd. (“Stackway”)

LLC Chengdu Wholesale and 
retail

50,000,000.00 Book wholesale and retail 100.00 100.00 Y

Chengdu Cangqiong Online 
Technology Co., Ltd.

LLC Chengdu Technical 
Services

30,000.00 Computer system services; 
manufacturing, agency, 
etc.

100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Moyuan Cultural 
Communication Co., Ltd.

LLC Chengdu Sales 1,000,000.00 Sales of books 75.00 75.00 Y

Sichuan Xinyaxuan Cultural 
Communication Co., Ltd.

LLC Chengdu Sales 1,000,000.00 Sales of books 75.00 75.00 Y

Sichuan Aiyuecheng Cultural 
Communication Co., Ltd.

LLC Chengdu Sales 1,000,000.00 Sales of publications 75.00 75.00 Y

Sichuan Xingyueyue Cultural 
Communication Co., Ltd.

LLC Chengdu Sales 1,000,000.00 Sales of publications 75.00 75.00 Y

Sichuan Tianyuge Cultural 
Communication Co., Ltd.

LLC Chengdu Sales 1,000,000.00 Sales of publications 75.00 75.00 Y

Sichuan Xuehaizhizhou Cultural 
Communication Co., Ltd.

LLC Chengdu Sales 1,000,000.00 Sales of publications 75.00 75.00 Y
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(VIII)	 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

1.	 Subsidiaries: (Continued)

(2)	 Subsidiaries acquired in business combination involving enterprises under common 
control

RMB

Full name of subsidiary
Type of the
subsidiary

Principal place
of business
and place of
incorporation

Nature of
business

Registered
capital Business scope

Proportion
of ownership
interests (%)

Proportion
of voting

power (%)

Consolidated
statements
or not

         

Xinhua Online LLC Chengdu Sales of 
publications

50,000,000.00 Internet publishing, 
wholesale and retail of 
goods

100.00 100.00 Y

Beijing Shuchuan LLC Beijing Sales of 
publications

2,000,000.00 Sales of publications 100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Culture 
  Communication

LLC Chengdu Advertising 
agency and 
leasing

20,523,700.00 Advertising agency and 
leasing

100.00 100.00 Y

         

(3)	 Subsidiaries acquired in business combination not involving enterprises under common 
control

RMB

Full name of subsidiary
Type of the
subsidiary

Principal place
of business
and place of
incorporation

Nature of
business

Registered
capital Business scope

Proportion
of ownership
interests (%)

Proportion
of voting

power (%)

Consolidated
statements
or not

         

Sichuan Xinhua Shang Paper 
Co., Ltd. (“Xinhua Shang”)

LLC Chengdu Paper sales 15,000,000.00 Sales of pulp, paper and 
paper products

51.00 51.00 Y

Winshare Sports Cultural 
Development Co., Ltd. 
(“Winshare Sports”)

LLC Chengdu Venue rental 100,000,000.00 Venue management 
services, advertising, 
self-owned housing rental

100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan People’s Publishing 
House Co., Ltd. (“People’s 
Publishing House”)

LLC Chengdu Publication 34,000,000.00 Publication of books 100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Publication Printing 
Co., Ltd. (“Publication 
Printing”)

LLC Chengdu Publication 50,000,000.00 Plate-leased printing and 
supply of textbooks

100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Education Publishing 
House Co., Ltd. (“Education 
Publishing House”)

LLC Chengdu Publication 10,000,000.00 Publication and distribution 
of books

100.00 100.00 Y
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(VIII)	 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

1.	 Subsidiaries: (Continued)

(3)	 Subsidiaries acquired in business combination not involving enterprises under common 

control (Continued)

RMB

Full name of subsidiary

Type of the 

subsidiary

Principal place 

of business 

and place of 

incorporation

Nature of 

business

Registered 

capital Business scope

Proportion

of ownership

interests (%)

Proportion

of voting

power (%)

Consolidated 

statements

or not
         

Youth and Children’s Publishing 

House

LLC Chengdu Publication 110,000,000.00 Publication of books and 

periodicals

100.00 100.00 Y

 

Sichuan Science & Technology 

Publishing House Co., Ltd. 

(“Science & Technology 

Publishing House”)

LLC Chengdu Publication 4,000,000.00 Publication of books 100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Discovery of Nature 

Magazine Press Co., Ltd.

LLC Chengdu Publication 300,000.00 Publication of periodicals 100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Fine Arts Publishing 

House Co., Ltd. (“Fine Arts 

Publishing House”)

LLC Chengdu Publication 16,250,000.00 Sales of arts and crafts and 

publication of books

100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Lexicographical 

Publishing House Co., 

Ltd. (“Lexicographical 

Publishing House”)

LLC Chengdu Publication 20,000,000.00 Publication of books 100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Literature & Art 

Publishing House Co., 

Ltd. (“Literature & Art 

Publishing House”)

LLC Chengdu Publication 45,000,000.00 Publication of books 100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Tiandi Publishing 

House Co., Ltd. (“Tiandi 

Publishing House”)

LLC Chengdu Publication 230,634,700.00 Publication of books 100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Times English Cultural 

Communication Co., Ltd.

LLC Chengdu Publication 600,000.00 Publication of domestic 

books, newspapers and 

periodicals

51.00 51.00 Y

Sichuan Bashu Publishing 

House Co., Ltd. (“Bashu 

Publishing House”)

LLC Chengdu Publication 42,000,000.00 Publication of books 100.00 100.00 Y
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(VIII)	 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

1.	 Subsidiaries: (Continued)

(3)	 Subsidiaries acquired in business combination not involving enterprises under common 

control (Continued)

RMB

Full name of subsidiary

Type of the 

subsidiary

Principal place 

of business 

and place of 

incorporation

Nature of 

business

Registered 

capital Business scope

Proportion

of ownership

interests (%)

Proportion

of voting

power (%)

Consolidated 

statements

or not
         

Sichuan Printing Materials Co., 

Ltd. (“Printing Materials”)

LLC Chengdu Wholesale and 

retail

30,000,000.00 Wholesale and retail of 

goods

100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Digital Publishing Co., 

Ltd. (“Digital Publishing”)

LLC Chengdu Publication 10,000,000.00 Publication of audio and 

video product, Internet 

publishing

100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Reader’s Journal Press 

Co., Ltd. (“Reader’s Journal 

Press”)

LLC Chengdu Publication 1,500,000.00 Reader’s Journal Press-

related publishing, 

advertising, wholesale 

and retail of goods, 

software and information 

technology services

100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Pictorial Co., Ltd. 

(“Pictorial”)

LLC Chengdu Publication 1,500,000.00 Publication of periodicals 100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Xinhua Printing LLC Chengdu Publication 100,160,000.00 Printing of publications 100.00 100.00 Y

Sichuan Yunhan Internet and 

Media Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan 

Yunhan”)

LLC Chengdu Wholesale 50,000,000.00 Wholesale of publications 75.00 75.00 Y
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(VIII)	 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

2.	 Key financial information of the Group’s significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries is as 

follows:

RMB

Full name of subsidiary

Proportion

of ownership

interests held by

non-controlling

shareholders (%)

Proportion of

voting power held

by non-controlling

shareholders (%)

Losses attributable to 

non-controlling shareholders Non-controlling interests

Current period

(Unaudited)

Same Period of

Last Year

(Unaudited)

30 June 2022

(Unaudited) 31 December 2021
       

Beijing Winshare  

Commercial 49.00 49.00 (2,785,366.32) (2,886,471.88) (91,613,119.68) (88,827,753.36)

Winshare Online 25.00 25.00 425,674.22 301,714.86 (22,394,450.35) (22,820,124.57)
       

a.	 Beijing Winshare Commercial

RMB

30 June 2022

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Current assets 52,676,320.32 65,510,672.02

Non-current assets 483,314.28 658,105.95

Current liabilities 187,355,797.23 194,680,519.53

Non-current liabilities – –
   

RMB

Amount incurred in

the current period

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in

the Same Period

of Last Year

(Unaudited)
   

Operating income 15,808,763.54 37,683,727.40

Operating costs and expenses 21,493,184.61 43,574,486.33

Total amount of loss, net loss (5,684,421.07) (5,890,758.93)

Net cash flow from operating activities 1,395,135.40 3,215,505.02

Net cash flow from investing activities 11,037.00 34,241.11

Net cash flow from financing activities (22,614.21) (85,769.79)
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(VIII)	 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

2.	 Key financial information of the Group’s significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries is as 

follows: (Continued)

b.	 Winshare Online

RMB

30 June 2022
(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Current assets 2,722,319,313.51 2,687,818,854.97
Non-current assets 212,255,239.25 209,106,038.25
Current liabilities 3,023,423,354.12 2,987,476,391.47
Non-current liabilities 729,000.00 729,000.00

   

RMB

Amount incurred in
the current period

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in
the Same Period

of Last Year
(Unaudited)

   

Operating income 1,410,243,921.55 1,257,187,454.14
Operating costs and expenses 1,408,541,224.66 1,255,980,594.72
Total amount of profit, net profit 1,702,696.89 1,206,859.42
Net cash flow from operating activities (6,785,180.05) 63,208,926.85
Net cash flow from investing activities 155,068,250.65 (490,846,820.61)

   

3.	 Interests in joint ventures or associates

(1)	 Significant joint venture or associates

RMB

Name of joint venture or 
associates

Principal place 
of operation 
and place of 
incorporation Nature of business

Proportion
of ownership

interests in
investee (%)

Accounting 
method used 
for investment 
in joint
venture or 
associates

     

Joint venture
Hainan Publishing House Haikou Publication 50 Equity method
Associates
Ren Min Eastern Beijing Wholesale of books, 

periodicals, 
newspapers and 
electronic publications

20 Equity method

Ming Bo Education Beijing Publication of internet 
education

20.4 Equity method

Winshare BLOGIS Chengdu Logistics transportation 45 Equity method
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(VIII)	 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

3.	 Interests in joint ventures or associates (Continued)

(2)	 Key financial information of significant joint venture

a.	 Hainan Publishing House

RMB

30 June 2022/

Amount incurred

in the current period

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021/

Amount incurred

in the Same Period

of Last Year

(Unaudited) 
   

Current assets 560,461,264.37 495,265,503.43

Including: Cash and cash equivalents 26,435,453.10 21,197,517.06

Non-current assets 158,014,860.87 158,337,086.51

Total assets 718,476,125.24 653,602,589.94
   

Current liabilities 268,094,288.96 228,961,671.25

Non-current liabilities 20,890,000.00 20,230,000.00

Total liabilities 288,984,288.96 249,191,671.25
   

Equity attributable to the parent 

company’s shareholders 424,758,185.22 403,774,867.22

Non-controlling interests 4,733,651.06 636,051.47
   

Net assets calculated on pro-rata basis 

of shareholding 212,379,092.61 201,887,433.61

Goodwill 30,735,530.98 30,735,530.98

Carrying amount of equity investments 

in joint venture 243,114,623.59 232,622,964.59
   

Operating income 104,874,785.39 104,353,183.78

Net profit and total comprehensive 

income 25,080,917.59 20,854,598.05

Non-controlling interests 4,097,599.59 (6,152,354.83)

Interest income 39,499.96 437,620.90

Income tax 120,053.32 6,555.66
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(VIII)	 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

3.	 Interests in joint ventures or associates (Continued)

(3)	 Key financial information of significant associates

a.	 Ren Min Eastern

RMB

30 June 2022/

Amount incurred

in the current period

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021/

Amount incurred

in the Same Period

of Last Year

(Unaudited)
   

Current assets 74,461,802.42 93,160,635.12

Non-current assets 6,199,565.89 6,791,628.72

Total assets 80,661,368.31 99,952,263.84
   

Current liabilities 34,251,047.75 51,267,032.86

Non-current liabilities – 30,111.54

Total liabilities 34,251,047.75 51,297,144.40
   

Net assets calculated on pro-rata basis 

of shareholding 9,282,064.11 9,731,023.89

Carrying amount of equity investments 

in associate 9,282,064.11 9,731,023.89
   

Operating income 7,322,206.48 9,259,141.64

Net loss and total comprehensive 

income (2,244,798.88) (6,139,629.86)

Dividend receipts from associate for 

the current period 1,600,000.00 –
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(VIII)	 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

3.	 Interests in joint ventures or associates (Continued)

(3)	 Key financial information of significant associates (Continued)

b.	 Ming Bo Education

RMB

30 June 2022/

Amount incurred

in the current period

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021/

Amount incurred

in the Same Period

of Last Year

(Unaudited)
   

Current assets 91,273,832.12 137,756,640.15

Non-current assets 25,334,449.52 36,861,370.20

Total assets 116,608,281.64 174,618,010.35
   

Current liabilities 23,447,787.66 34,052,602.67

Non-current liabilities 963,357.07 2,091,565.42

Total liabilities 24,411,144.73 36,144,168.09
   

Equity attributable to the parent 

company’s shareholders 92,201,418.39 138,478,134.19

Non-controlling interests (4,281.48) (4,291.93)
   

Net assets calculated on pro-rata 

basis of shareholding 18,809,089.35 28,249,539.37

Carrying amount of equity 

investments in associate 18,809,089.35 28,249,539.37
   

Operating income 4,755,376.32 36,586,587.59

Net loss and total comprehensive 

income (46,276,705.35) (9,898,399.18)

Non-controlling interests 10.45 (3,240.51)
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(VIII)	 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

3.	 Interests in joint ventures or associates (Continued)

(3)	 Key financial information of significant associates (Continued)

c.	 Winshare BLOGIS

RMB

30 June 2022/

Amount incurred

in the current period

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021/

Amount incurred

in the Same Period

of Last Year

(Unaudited)
   

Current assets 416,591,662.02 374,641,795.91

Non-current assets 9,878,791.52 11,647,054.55

Total assets 426,470,453.54 386,288,850.46
   

Current liabilities 324,720,147.86 283,545,393.44

Total liabilities 324,720,147.86 283,545,393.44
   

Equity attributable to the parent 

company’s shareholders 101,750,305.68 102,743,457.02
   

Net assets calculated on pro-rata basis 

of shareholding 45,787,637.56 46,234,555.66

Carrying amount of equity investments 

in associate 45,787,637.56 46,234,555.66
   

Operating income 714,621,317.14 1,132,349,582.36

Net profit and total comprehensive 

income 1,006,848.66 2,146,956.53

Non-controlling interests – (138,240.27)

Dividends received from associate for 

the current period 900,000.00 –
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(VIII)	 INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

3.	 Interests in joint ventures or associates (Continued)

(4)	 Summarized financial information of insignificant joint ventures and associates

RMB

30 June 2022/

Amount incurred

in the current period

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021/

Amount incurred

in the Same Period

of Last Year

(Unaudited)
   

Insignificant joint ventures

Total carrying amount of investments 31,937,852.30 32,559,271.39

Sum of net (loss) profit and total 

comprehensive income calculated according 

to proportion of investment (621,419.09) (570,024.83)

Insignificant associates

Total carrying amount of investments 398,427,675.98 405,406,521.18

Sum of net (loss) profit and total 

comprehensive income calculated according 

to proportion of investment (6,978,845.20) (1,565,678.61)
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(IX)	 RISK EXPOSURES ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s major financial instruments consist of financial assets measured at amortized cost, financing 

receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, other equity instrument investments, notes payable, accounts 

payable and other payables. Risk exposures associated with these financial instruments and the risk 

management strategy adopted by the Group to reduce the risk is set out below. The management of 

the Group manages and monitors the risk exposures to ensure the risks are controlled at a certain level.

The Group adopts sensitivity analysis method to analyze the potential impact of reasonable and possible 

changes in risk variables on current profit and loss or on the owners’ equity. As a risk variable seldom 

changes alone and correlation between variables greatly accounts for the final amount influenced by 

changes of a certain risk variable, the following content is based on the assumption that changes of each 

variable are independent of each other’s.

1.	 Risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s risk management objectives are to achieve a proper balance between risks and yield, 

minimize the adverse impacts of risks on the Group’s operation performance, and maximize the 

benefits of the shareholders. Based on these risk management objectives, the Group’s basic risk 

management strategy is to identify and analyze the Group’s exposure to various risks, establish 

an appropriate maximum tolerance to risk, implement risk management, and monitor regularly and 

effectively these exposures to ensure the risks are monitored at a certain level.

1.1	 Market risk

1.1.1	 Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, and the sales and purchases of the Group 

are mainly denominated and settled in RMB. At each balance sheet date, the 

balance of the Group’s assets and liabilities are both denominated in RMB except 

that the assets and liabilities set out below. The management believes that the 

RMB exchange rates may have no significant impact on the net profit and the 

shareholders’ equity of the Group.

RMB

Item

30 June 2022

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Cash and bank balances

USD 132,810.49 116,983.07

EUR 481.41 615.62

HKD 46,749.44 78,445.85
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(IX)	 RISK EXPOSURES ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
(Continued)

1.	 Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.1	 Market risk (Continued)

1.1.2	 Interest rate risk

The Group had no interest-bearing borrowings at the end of the Period. As the 

impact of changes in the amount of lease liabilities and in the statement of profit or 

loss as a result of changes in interest rate was relatively small, the Group was not 

exposed to material interest rate risk.

1.1.3	 Other price risk

The Group measured the investment in listed shares of Wan Xin Media, HGZN and 

Bank of Chengdu at fair value, which was exposed to the stock price risk as the 

fair value is determined based on the quoted prices from the active market (Note 

(VI)13). The directors of the Company regularly monitor the share prices of Wan 

Xin Media, HGZN and Bank of Chengdu. For the current period, the Group’s direct 

investments in Wan Xin Media, HGZN and Bank of Chengdu equity recognized in 

other comprehensive income resulted in a loss of RMB44,870,400.00, a gain of 

RMB181,441.35 and a gain of RMB366,400,000.00, respectively.

Assuming that other variables remain constant, the pre-tax effects of other reasonable 

changes in stock prices in other comprehensive income and shareholders’ equity 

during the period are as follows:

RMB

Effects (before tax) on other

comprehensive income and

shareholders’ equity

Item Price fluctuation

Current period

(Unaudited)

Same period

of last year

(Unaudited)
    

Other equity instrument 

  investments

  Wan Xin Media Stock prices rise 5% 30,100,560.00 29,415,040.00

  HGZN Stock prices rise 5% 49,795.57 43,411.52

  Bank of Chengdu Stock prices rise 5% 66,320,000.00 50,560,000.00

Other equity instrument 

  investments

  Wan Xin Media Stock prices fall 5% (30,100,560.00) (29,415,040.00)

  HGZN Stock prices fall 5% (49,795.57) (43,411.52)

  Bank of Chengdu Stock prices fall 5% (66,320,000.00) (50,560,000.00)
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(IX)	 RISK EXPOSURES ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
(Continued)

1.	 Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2	 Credit risk

As at 30 June 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a 

financial loss to the Group is due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties, 

including: the carrying amounts of financial assets such as cash and bank balances, 

accounts receivable, notes receivable, financing receivables, other receivables, contract 

assets, long-term receivables, other current assets (time deposits), other non-current assets 

(time deposits), etc.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Group has established 

policies to ensure that sales are only limited to customers with a good credit history 

and has continually examined the credit risk exposures. The Group also sets up a team 

responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals as well as execution of other 

monitoring procedures to ensure the overdue debts are able to be collected by necessary 

actions. Therefore, the management of the Group considers that the Group’s credit risk is 

significantly reduced.

Details such as the Group’s specific method of assessing credit risk since initial recognition, 

evidence for determination of credit impairment of financial assets, method of assessing 

expected credit loss on the basis of categorization, and accounting policies on direct write-

down of financial instrument are set out in Note (III)10.2.

As the Group’s cash and bank balances, other current assets (time deposits) and other 

non-current assets (time deposits) are deposited with banks with high credit ratings, and 

the Group’s financing receivables are bank acceptance bills due from banks with high credit 

ratings, the management considers the credit risk on these financial assets is limited.
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(IX)	 RISK EXPOSURES ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
(Continued)

1.	 Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2	 Credit risk (Continued)

The following table shows the exposure to credit risk of the Group’s financial assets:

RMB

Item Future 12-month/full lifetime ECL

Carrying amount

30 June 2022

(Unaudited)
   

Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

Cash and bank balances Future 12-month ECL 6,346,513,408.41

Contract assets Full lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 27,856,608.49

Full lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) –

Accounts receivable Full lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 1,748,032,569.60

Full lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 637,590,923.92

Notes receivable Full lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 7,467,785.57

Full lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) –

Other receivables Future 12-month ECL 120,928,036.86

Full lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) –

Full lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 17,921,748.16

Long-term receivables (including 

those expected to be recovered 

within one year)

Full lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 141,304,301.68

Full lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 177,112,726.78

Other current assets – time 

deposits

Future 12-month ECL 301,358,124.89

Other non-current assets – time 

deposits

Future 12-month ECL 670,509,997.12

Financial assets at FVTOCI:

Financing receivables – bank 

acceptance bills

Full lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 4,827,529.91
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(IX)	 RISK EXPOSURES ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
(Continued)

1.	 Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2	 Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable

As part of the Group’s credit risk asset management, the Group adopts the aging analysis 

to assess impairment losses of accounts receivable arising from the Group’s operations. 

The Group’s operations involve a large number of small customers with the same risk 

characteristics. Aging information may reflect these customers’ solvency in regard of such 

accounts receivable.

As at 30 June 2022 and 31 December 2021, description of credits risks and expected 

credit losses of accounts receivable of the Group’s operations is as follows:

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Aging

Expected

average

loss rate

Amount

RMB

Credit loss

provision

RMB

Expected

average

loss rate

Amount

RMB

Credit loss

provision

RMB
       

Within 1 year 13.81% 1,748,032,569.60 241,374,010.18 12.23% 1,623,399,614.62 198,507,069.96

1 – 2 years 44.47% 333,216,905.98 148,177,646.32 47.50% 249,522,673.55 118,531,070.28

2 – 3 years 100.00% 121,108,938.43 121,108,938.43 100.00% 127,972,595.20 127,972,595.20

More than 3 years 100.00% 183,265,079.51 183,265,079.51 100.00% 127,489,256.90 127,489,256.90
       

Total 29.09% 2,385,623,493.52 693,925,674.44 26.90% 2,128,384,140.27 572,499,992.34
       

The expected average rate of loss is based on historical rate of bad debt, and takes into 

account of current circumstances and projections on future economic conditions. For 

the current period, the Group’s assessment method and significant assumptions did not 

change.
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(IX)	 RISK EXPOSURES ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
(Continued)

1.	 Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2	 Credit risk (Continued)

Accounts receivable (Continued)

Changes in credit loss provision for accounts receivable:

RMB

Credit loss provision

Full lifetime

expected credit

losses (not

credit-impaired)

Full lifetime

expected credit

losses

(credit-impaired) Total
    

1 January 2022 198,507,069.96 373,992,922.38 572,499,992.34

Provision for the current period 

– by combination 42,866,940.22 36,882,217.78 79,749,158.00

Provision for the current period 

– by single items – 33,887,987.83 33,887,987.83

Other changes – 7,788,536.27 7,788,536.27

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 241,374,010.18 452,551,664.26 693,925,674.44
    

Other receivables

Credit loss provision for other receivables:

RMB

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Credit loss provision

Future

12-month

expected credit

losses

Full lifetime

expected

credit losses (not

credit-impaired)

Full lifetime

expected credit

losses (credit-

impaired) Total
     

Balance as at 1 January 2022 926,848.46 – 18,941,777.17 19,868,625.63

Provision for the current period 882,544.73 – – 882,544.73

Reversal for the current period – – (1,202,034.38) (1,202,034.38)

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 1,809,393.19 – 17,739,742.79 19,549,135.98
 1,809,393.19 – 17,739,742.79 19,549,135.98
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(IX)	 RISK EXPOSURES ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
(Continued)

1.	 Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2	 Credit risk (Continued)

Long-term receivables (including those expected to be recovered within one year)

The Group’s balances of long-term receivables (including those expected to be recovered 
within one year) are receivables from governmental institutions and schools. The 
management performs risk assessment on each customer and makes allowance for credit 
losses. Credit loss provision for long-term receivables is as follows:

RMB

Credit loss provision

Full lifetime
expected credit

losses (not
credit-impaired)

Full lifetime
expected credit

losses (credit-
impaired) (Note) Total

    

Balance as at 1 January 2022 – 57,048,505.53 57,048,505.53
Provision for the current period 

– by single items – – –
Other changes – (7,788,536.27) (7,788,536.27)
30 June 2022 (Unaudited) – 49,259,969.26 49,259,969.26

    

Note:	 For the long-term receivables of education informatized business, the Group adopts the method of provision 
for credit losses on individual assets. If the customer defaults the principal at the point in time of contract 
payment, it indicates that the long-term receivables have been credit-impaired.

1.3	 Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash 
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s 
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group aims at maintaining a balance between capital return and flexibility through 
operating activities and the issuance of other interest-bearing borrowings as the main 
source of funding. The Group manages the financing activities by maintaining adequate 
cash so as to finance the Group’s operations. The Group also ensures that bank credit 
facilities are available to meet any short-term funding needs.

The following is the maturity analysis for financial liabilities and lease liabilities held by the 
Group which is based on undiscounted remaining contractual obligations:

End of the current period (Unaudited)

RMB

Item Within 1 year 1 to 5 years
More than

5 years Total
     

Notes payable 16,284,812.23 – – 16,284,812.23
Accounts payable 4,864,028,421.56 – – 4,864,028,421.56
Other payables 538,456,195.02 – – 538,456,195.02
Lease liabilities 103,561,399.90 294,835,284.21 97,576,750.04 495,973,434.15

     

Total 5,522,330,828.71 294,835,284.21 97,576,750.04 5,914,742,862.96
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(IX)	 RISK EXPOSURES ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
(Continued)

1.	 Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.3	 Liquidity risk (Continued)

End of the prior year

RMB

Item Within 1 year 1 to 5 years

More than

5 years Total
     

Notes payable 45,285,599.60 – – 45,285,599.60

Accounts payable 5,406,581,179.99 – – 5,406,581,179.99

Other payables 386,886,795.47 – – 386,886,795.47

Lease liabilities 116,688,823.47 239,712,817.85 52,352,967.92 408,754,609.24
     

Total 5,955,442,398.53 239,712,817.85 52,352,967.92 6,247,508,184.30
     

2.	 Transfer of financial assets

At the end of the Period, the amount of bank acceptance bills that the Group had endorsed but 

not yet due was RMB13,683,027.36 (31 December 2021: RMB13,333,989.22), which was the 

accounts payable to the suppliers. The Group believes that substantially all the risks and rewards 

of the endorsed notes receivable have been transferred to the suppliers. Therefore, these endorsed 

notes receivable were derecognized. In the event that the accepting bank fails to accept the notes 

due, the Group is jointly and severally liable for the notes receivable in accordance with the relevant 

PRC laws and regulations. The Group considers that the accepting bank is of sound reputation 

and the risk of non-payment by the accepting bank on due date is remote.

At the end of the Period, if the accepting bank fails to accept the notes due, the maximum loss 

which may be incurred by the Group is equivalent to the same amount payable by the Group to 

the suppliers for such endorsed notes.

At the end of the Period, all notes receivable endorsed to suppliers will be due within seven months 

from the end of the Reporting Period.



172 Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(X

)	
D

IS
C

L
O

S
U

R
E

 O
F

 F
A

IR
 V

A
L

U
E

1.
	

F
a

ir
 v

a
lu

e

1.
1	

F
in

an
ci

al
 a

ss
et

s 
m

ea
su

re
d

 a
t 

fa
ir

 v
al

ue
 o

n 
a 

re
cu

rr
in

g
 b

as
is

Th
e 

G
ro

up
’s

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

of
 e

q
ui

ty
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 in
 li

st
ed

 c
om

p
an

y,
 u

nl
is

te
d

 p
riv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, 

b
an

k 
w

ea
lth

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

p
ro

d
uc

ts
 

an
d

 f
in

an
ci

ng
 r

ec
ei

va
b

le
s 

ar
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

t 
fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

at
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
ea

ch
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

ye
ar

. 
Th

e 
fa

ir 
va

lu
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 f

or
 s

uc
h 

fin
an

ci
al

 

as
se

ts
 a

re
 d

et
ai

le
d

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

R
M

B

Fin
an

cia
l a

ss
et

s

Fa
ir 

va
lue

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f

ea
ch

 re
po

rti
ng

 ye
ar

Fa
ir 

va
lue

hie
ra

rc
hy

Va
lua

tio
n 

m
et

ho
d

an
d 

inp
ut

s

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt

un
ob

se
rv

ab
le 

inp
ut

s

Re
lat

io
ns

hip
 b

et
we

en

un
ob

se
rv

ab
le 

inp
ut

s a
nd

fa
ir 

va
lue

30
 J

un
e 

20
22

31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
1

(U
na

ud
ite

d)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

He
ld-

for
-tr

ad
ing

 fin
an

cia
l a

ss
ets

 – 
sh

are
s o

f A
 

sh
are

 lis
ted

 co
mp

an
ies

8,0
41

.10
20

,94
5.1

5
Le

ve
l 1

Qu
ote

d 
pr

ice
s i

n a
cti

ve
 

ma
rke

ts

N/
A

N/
A

Ot
he

r e
qu

ity
 in

str
um

en
t in

ve
stm

en
ts 

– s
ha

res
 

of 
A 

sh
are

 lis
ted

 co
mp

an
y –

 W
an

 X
in 

Me
dia

60
2,0

11
,20

0.0
0

64
6,8

81
,60

0.0
0

Le
ve

l 1
Qu

ote
d 

pr
ice

s i
n a

cti
ve

 

ma
rke

ts

N/
A

N/
A

Ot
he

r e
qu

ity
 in

str
um

en
t in

ve
stm

en
ts 

– s
ha

res
 

of 
A 

sh
are

 lis
ted

 co
mp

an
y –

 H
GZ

N

99
5,9

11
.41

81
4,4

70
.06

Le
ve

l 1
Qu

ote
d 

pr
ice

s i
n a

cti
ve

 

ma
rke

ts

N/
A

N/
A

Ot
he

r e
qu

ity
 in

str
um

en
t in

ve
stm

en
ts 

– s
ha

res
 

of 
A 

sh
are

 lis
ted

 co
mp

an
y –

 B
an

k o
f 

Ch
en

gd
u

1,3
26

,40
0,0

00
.00

96
0,0

00
,00

0.0
0

Le
ve

l 1
Qu

ote
d 

pr
ice

s i
n a

cti
ve

 

ma
rke

ts

N/
A

N/
A

Fin
an

cin
g 

rec
eiv

ab
les

 – 
ba

nk
 ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 b
ills

4,8
27

,52
9.9

1
5,1

32
,43

8.0
0

Le
ve

l 3
Di

sc
ou

nte
d 

ca
sh

 flo
w.

 Fu
tur

e 

ca
sh

 flo
w 

is 
es

tim
ate

d 

ba
se

d 
on

 ex
pe

cte
d 

rec
ov

era
ble

 am
ou

nt 

an
d 

dis
co

un
ted

 at
 th

e 

rat
e d

ete
rm

ine
d 

by
 th

e 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 

be
st 

es
tim

ate
 o

f e
xp

ec
ted

 

fut
ure

 ris
k l

ev
el.

•	
Ex

pe
cte

d 
rec

ov
era

ble
 

am
ou

nt

•	
Di

sc
ou

nt 
rat

e i
n l

ine
 

wi
th 

ex
pe

cte
d 

ris
k l

ev
el

•	
Th

e h
igh

er 
the

 ex
pe

cte
d 

rec
ov

era
ble

 am
ou

nt,
 th

e 

hig
he

r t
he

 fa
ir v

alu
e

•	
Th

e l
ow

er 
the

 d
isc

ou
nt 

rat
e, 

the
 hi

gh
er 

the
 fa

ir 

va
lue



173Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

R
M

B

Fin
an

cia
l a

ss
et

s

Fa
ir 

va
lue

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f

ea
ch

 re
po

rti
ng

 ye
ar

Fa
ir 

va
lue

hie
ra

rc
hy

Va
lua

tio
n 

m
et

ho
d

an
d 

inp
ut

s

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt

un
ob

se
rv

ab
le 

inp
ut

s

Re
lat

io
ns

hip
 b

et
we

en

un
ob

se
rv

ab
le 

inp
ut

s a
nd

fa
ir 

va
lue

30
 J

un
e 

20
22

31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
1

(U
na

ud
ite

d)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ot
he

r e
qu

ity
 in

str
um

en
t in

ve
stm

en
ts 

– o
the

rs
37

5,3
93

.81
37

5,3
93

.81
Le

ve
l 3

Di
sc

ou
nte

d 
ca

sh
 flo

w.
 Fu

tur
e 

ca
sh

 flo
w 

is 
es

tim
ate

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 ex

pe
cte

d 
rec

ov
era

ble
 am

ou
nt 

an
d 

dis
co

un
ted

 at
 th

e 
rat

e d
ete

rm
ine

d 
by

 th
e 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
be

st 
es

tim
ate

 o
f e

xp
ec

ted
 

fut
ure

 ris
k l

ev
el.

•	
Ex

pe
cte

d 
rec

ov
era

ble
 

am
ou

nt
•	

Di
sc

ou
nt 

rat
e i

n l
ine

 
wi

th 
ex

pe
cte

d 
ris

k l
ev

el

•	
Th

e h
igh

er 
the

 ex
pe

cte
d 

rec
ov

era
ble

 am
ou

nt,
 th

e 
hig

he
r t

he
 fa

ir v
alu

e
•	

Th
e l

ow
er 

the
 d

isc
ou

nt 
rat

e, 
the

 hi
gh

er 
the

 fa
ir 

va
lue

Ot
he

r n
on

-c
urr

en
t f

ina
nc

ial
 as

se
ts 

– C
ITI

C 
Bu

yo
ut 

Inv
es

tm
en

t F
un

d 
(S

he
nz

he
n) 

 
(Li

mi
ted

 P
art

ne
rsh

ip)

18
6,5

95
,94

7.8
0

19
5,6

11
,53

6.3
0

Le
ve

l 3
Ma

rke
t a

pp
ro

ac
h

Me
tho

d 
of 

dis
co

un
ted

 fu
tur

e 
ca

sh
 flo

w

•	
Pr

ice
 ea

rn
ing

s r
ati

o, 
pr

ice
 sa

les
 ra

tio
, 

liq
uid

ity
 d

isc
ou

nt
•	

Di
sc

ou
nt 

rat
e i

n l
ine

 
wi

th 
ex

pe
cte

d 
ris

k l
ev

el

•	
Th

e h
igh

er 
the

 p
ric

e 
ea

rn
ing

s r
ati

o 
an

d 
pr

ice
 

sa
les

 ra
tio

, t
he

 hi
gh

er 
the

 fa
ir v

alu
e

•	
Th

e l
ow

er 
the

 liq
uid

ity
 

dis
co

un
t, 

the
 hi

gh
er 

the
 

fai
r v

alu
e

•	
Th

e l
ow

er 
the

 d
isc

ou
nt 

rat
e, 

the
 hi

gh
er 

the
 fa

ir 
va

lue
Ot

he
r n

on
-c

urr
en

t f
ina

nc
ial

 as
se

ts 
– W

ins
ha

re 
He

ng
xin

 (S
he

nz
he

n) 
Eq

uit
y I

nv
es

tm
en

t F
un

d 
(Li

mi
ted

 P
art

ne
rsh

ip)

16
2,5

35
,35

5.5
2

26
6,6

29
,59

7.4
0

Le
ve

l 3
Ad

jus
ted

 q
uo

ted
 p

ric
es

 in
 

ac
tiv

e m
ark

ets
Me

tho
d 

of 
dis

co
un

ted
 fu

tur
e 

ca
sh

 flo
w

•	
Liq

uid
ity

 d
isc

ou
nt

•	
Di

sc
ou

nt 
rat

e i
n l

ine
 

wi
th 

ex
pe

cte
d 

ris
k l

ev
el

•	
Th

e l
ow

er 
the

 liq
uid

ity
 

dis
co

un
t, 

the
 hi

gh
er 

the
 

fai
r v

alu
e

•	
Th

e l
ow

er 
the

 d
isc

ou
nt 

rat
e, 

the
 hi

gh
er 

the
 fa

ir 
va

lue

(X
)	

D
IS

C
L

O
S

U
R

E
 O

F
 F

A
IR

 V
A

L
U

E
 (C

o
nt

in
ue

d
)

1.
	

F
a

ir
 v

a
lu

e
 (

C
o

nt
in

ue
d

)

1.
1	

F
in

an
ci

al
 a

ss
et

s 
m

ea
su

re
d

 a
t 

fa
ir

 v
al

ue
 o

n 
a 

re
cu

rr
in

g
 b

as
is

 (
C

o
nt

in
ue

d
)



174 Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

R
M

B

Fin
an

cia
l a

ss
et

s

Fa
ir 

va
lue

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f

ea
ch

 re
po

rti
ng

 ye
ar

Fa
ir 

va
lue

hie
ra

rc
hy

Va
lua

tio
n 

m
et

ho
d

an
d 

inp
ut

s

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt

un
ob

se
rv

ab
le 

inp
ut

s

Re
lat

io
ns

hip
 b

et
we

en

un
ob

se
rv

ab
le 

inp
ut

s a
nd

fa
ir 

va
lue

30
 J

un
e 

20
22

31
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
1

(U
na

ud
ite

d)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ot
he

r n
on

-c
urr

en
t f

ina
nc

ial
 as

se
ts 

– Q
ing

da
o 

Go
lds

ton
e Z

hix
in 

Inv
es

tm
en

t C
en

ter
 (L

im
ite

d 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
)

10
6,7

62
,83

6.1
5

10
6,7

66
,12

3.5
1

Le
ve

l 3
Di

sc
ou

nte
d 

ca
sh

 flo
w.

 Fu
tur

e 
ca

sh
 flo

w 
is 

es
tim

ate
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 ex
pe

cte
d 

rec
ov

era
ble

 am
ou

nt 
an

d 
dis

co
un

ted
 at

 th
e 

rat
e d

ete
rm

ine
d 

by
 th

e 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

be
st 

es
tim

ate
 o

f e
xp

ec
ted

 
fut

ure
 ris

k l
ev

el.

•	
Ex

pe
cte

d 
rec

ov
era

ble
 

am
ou

nt
•	

Di
sc

ou
nt 

rat
e i

n l
ine

 
wi

th 
ex

pe
cte

d 
ris

k l
ev

el

•	
Th

e h
igh

er 
the

 ex
pe

cte
d 

rec
ov

era
ble

 am
ou

nt,
 th

e 
hig

he
r t

he
 fa

ir v
alu

e
•	

Th
e l

ow
er 

the
 d

isc
ou

nt 
rat

e, 
the

 hi
gh

er 
the

 fa
ir 

va
lue

Ot
he

r n
on

-c
urr

en
t f

ina
nc

ial
 as

se
ts 

– N
ing

bo
 

Me
ish

an
 Fr

ee
 Tr

ad
e P

or
t W

ins
ha

re 
Di

ng
sh

en
g 

Eq
uit

y I
nv

es
tm

en
t P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

(Li
mi

ted
 P

art
ne

rsh
ip)

14
7,4

00
,22

6.8
9

15
1,0

40
,33

8.5
8

Le
ve

l 3
Ad

jus
ted

 q
uo

ted
 p

ric
es

 in
 

ac
tiv

e m
ark

ets
Me

tho
d 

of 
dis

co
un

ted
 fu

tur
e 

ca
sh

 flo
w

•	
Liq

uid
ity

 d
isc

ou
nt

•	
Di

sc
ou

nt 
rat

e i
n l

ine
 

wi
th 

ex
pe

cte
d 

ris
k l

ev
el

•	
Th

e l
ow

er 
the

 liq
uid

ity
 

dis
co

un
t, 

the
 hi

gh
er 

the
 

fai
r v

alu
e

•	
Th

e l
ow

er 
the

 d
isc

ou
nt 

rat
e, 

the
 hi

gh
er 

the
 fa

ir 
va

lue
Ot

he
r n

on
-c

urr
en

t f
ina

nc
ial

 as
se

ts 
– X

inh
ua

 
Int

ern
et

3,0
00

,00
0.0

0
3,0

00
,00

0.0
0

Le
ve

l 3
Di

sc
ou

nte
d 

ca
sh

 flo
w.

 Fu
tur

e 
ca

sh
 flo

w 
is 

es
tim

ate
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 ex
pe

cte
d 

rec
ov

era
ble

 am
ou

nt 
an

d 
dis

co
un

ted
 at

 th
e 

rat
e d

ete
rm

ine
d 

by
 th

e 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

be
st 

es
tim

ate
 o

f e
xp

ec
ted

 
fut

ure
 ris

k l
ev

el.

•	
Ex

pe
cte

d 
rec

ov
era

ble
 

am
ou

nt
•	

Di
sc

ou
nt 

rat
e i

n l
ine

 
wi

th 
ex

pe
cte

d 
ris

k l
ev

el

•	
Th

e h
igh

er 
the

 ex
pe

cte
d 

rec
ov

era
ble

 am
ou

nt,
 th

e 
hig

he
r t

he
 fa

ir v
alu

e
•	

Th
e l

ow
er 

the
 d

isc
ou

nt 
rat

e, 
the

 hi
gh

er 
the

 fa
ir 

va
lue

(X
)	

D
IS

C
L

O
S

U
R

E
 O

F
 F

A
IR

 V
A

L
U

E
 (C

o
nt

in
ue

d
)

1.
	

F
a

ir
 v

a
lu

e
 (

C
o

nt
in

ue
d

)

1.
1	

F
in

an
ci

al
 a

ss
et

s 
m

ea
su

re
d

 a
t 

fa
ir

 v
al

ue
 o

n 
a 

re
cu

rr
in

g
 b

as
is

 (
C

o
nt

in
ue

d
)



175Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(X)	 DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (Continued)

1.	 Fair value (Continued)

1.1	 Financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

1.1.1	 Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

RMB

Current period Prior year

(Unaudited)
   

1 January 728,555,427.60 681,256,012.07

Included in gains or losses  

on fair value change in the  

current period (57,140,318.22) 71,683,305.72

Purchases in the current period 14,607,973.42 18,954,697.15

Disposals in the current period (74,525,792.72) (43,338,587.34)

End of period (Unaudited)/year end 611,497,290.08 728,555,427.60
   

1.2	 Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The management of the Group considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets 

and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost in the financial statements approximate 

their fair values.

(XI)	 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

1.	 Parent company of the Company

RMB0’000

Name of the parent 

company

Type of

the entity

Place of 

incorporation

Legal 

representative Nature of business

Registered

capital

Proportion of

the Company’s

ownership

interest held

by the

parent (%)

Proportion of

the Company’s

voting power

held by the

parent (%)

Ultimate

controlling

party of the

Company

Organization

registration

code

certificate
          

Sichuan Xinhua Publishing 

and Distribution Group

LLC Chengdu Luo Yong Goods wholesale and  

  retail, house lease,  

  real estate, project  

  investment

59,382.20 55.40 (Note) 55.40 (Note) SASAC of Sichuan 70892370-8

Note:	 Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group holds 592,809,525 promoter’s shares of the Company, accounting 

for 48.05% of the total share capital of the Company, and holds 90,780,000 H shares of the Company, accounting 

for 7.36% of the total share capital of the Company, resulting in an aggregate shareholding of 55.40% of the total 

share capital of the Company (the deviation in the odd percentage is due to rounding).

2.	 Subsidiaries of the Company

Please refer to Notes (VIII) Interests in Other Entities for details of the subsidiaries of the Company.
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(XI)	 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.	 Joint ventures and associates of the Company

Please refer to Notes (VIII) for details of the significant joint ventures or associates of the Company.

Information of other joint ventures or associates which have had balances through related party 

transactions with the Group for the current period or for the Same Period of Last Year is as follows:

Name of joint ventures or associates Relationship with the Company
  

The Commercial Press Associate
Shanghai Jingjie Associate
Winshare Equity Investment Fund Associate
Ren Min Eastern Associate
Ming Bo Education Associate
Xinhua Yingxuan Associate
Tianxi Zhongda Associate
Winshare BLOGIS Associate
Hainan Phoenix Associate
Winshare Yinshi Associate
Hainan Publishing House Joint venture
Liangshan Xinhua Winshare Joint venture

4.	 Other related party relationships

Name of other related parties Relationship between other related 
parties and the Company

  

Sichuan Xinhua International Hotel Co., Ltd. 
(“Xinhua International Hotel”)

Controlling shareholder’s subsidiary

Sichuan Guanghan Sanxingdui Qushanyuan  
Cultural Ltd. (“Sanxingdui Qushanyuan 
Cultural”)

Controlling shareholder’s subsidiary

Sichuan Xinhua Cultural Property Service Co., Ltd. 
(“Xinhua Cultural”)

Controlling shareholder’s subsidiary

Sichuan Xinhua Haiyi Cultural Development Co., 
Ltd. (“Xinhua Haiyi”)

Controlling shareholder’s subsidiary

Sichuan Xinhua Haiyi Hotel Co., Ltd. (“Haiyi Hotel”) Controlling shareholder’s subsidiary
Sichuan Xinhua Fanyue Culture Media Co., Ltd. 

(“Xinhua Fanyue”)
Controlling shareholder’s subsidiary

Sichuan Xinhua Wanyun Technology Co., Ltd. 
(“Xinhua Wanyun”)

Controlling shareholder’s subsidiary

Sichuan Xinhua Cultural Land Group Co., Ltd. 
(“Cultural Land”)

Controlling shareholder’s subsidiary

Sichuan Minzu Publishing House Controlling shareholder’s subsidiary
Sichuan Cultural Investment Group Shareholder which exerts significant 

  influence on the Company
Sichuan Cultural Investment Hengxi Property 

Management Co., Ltd. (“Hengxi Property”)
Subsidiary of shareholder which exerts 
  significant influence on the Company

Bank of Chengdu Other enterprise over which the senior 
management of the Company has  
  significant influence
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(XI)	 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.	 Related party transactions

(1)	 Sales and purchase of goods, provision and receipt of services

Purchase of goods/receipt of services

RMB

Related party

Type of 

related party 

transaction

Details of related

party transaction

Pricing and decision-

making procedures 

of related party 

transactions

Amount

incurred in the

current period

(Unaudited)

Amount

incurred in the

Same Period

of Last Year

(Unaudited)
      

Sichuan Minzu Publishing House 

(Note)

Purchase 

  of goods

Purchase of books Price negotiated by both 

  parties

33,115,199.73 N/A

Tianxi Zhongda Purchase 

  of goods

Purchase of books Price negotiated by both 

  parties

13,277,745.94 11,576,939.03

The Commercial Press Purchase 

  of goods

Purchase of books Price negotiated by both 

  parties

9,501,974.33 10,877,152.39

Ming Bo Education Purchase 

  of goods

Purchase of software and 

  hardware

Price negotiated by both 

  parties

4,873,973.69 11,110,776.94

Hainan Publishing House Purchase 

  of goods

Purchase of books Price negotiated by both 

  parties

2,395,883.30 5,944,850.49

Ren Min Eastern Purchase 

  of goods

Purchase of books Price negotiated by both 

  parties

1,462,618.48 1,332,404.11

Xinhua Cultural Receipt of 

  services

Receipt of property 

  management services

Price negotiated by both 

  parties

12,912,016.28 5,215,193.86

Hengxi Property Receipt of 

  services

Receipt of property 

  management services

Price negotiated by both 

  parties

981,530.45 1,661,246.68

Winshare Yinshi Receipt of 

  services

Receipt of drafting 

  services

Price negotiated by both 

  parties

550,000.00 –

Xinhua Haiyi Receipt of 

  services

Receipt of hotel and 

  conference service

Price negotiated by both 

  parties

85,528.30 82,467.92

Xinhua International Hotel Receipt of 

  services

Receipt of hotel and 

  conference service

Price negotiated by both 

  parties

41,607.89 133,039.12

Haiyi Hotel Receipt of 

  services

Receipt of hotel and 

  conference service

Price negotiated by both 

  parties

8,992.00 –

Winshare BLOGIS Receipt of 

  services

Receipt of printing 

  service

Price negotiated by both 

  parties

2,362.83 3,560.00

Sanxingdui Qushanyuan Cultural Receipt of 

  services

Receipt of hotel and 

conference service

Price negotiated by both 

  parties

– 91,355.66

      

Total 79,209,433.22 48,028,986.20
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(XI)	 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.	 Related party transactions (Continued)

(1)	 Sales and purchase of goods, provision and receipt of services (Continued)

Sales of goods/provision of services

RMB

Related party

Type of 

related party 

transaction

Details of related

party transaction

Pricing and decision-

making procedures 

of related party 

transactions

Amount

incurred in the

current period

(Unaudited)

Amount

incurred in the

Same Period

of Last Year

(Unaudited)
      

Sichuan Minzu Publishing House 

(Note)

Sales of goods Sales of paper Price negotiated by both  

  parties 4,502,921.44 N/A

Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and 

Distribution Group

Sales of goods Sales of publications and 

  provision of services

Price negotiated by both  

  parties 196,566.69 406,178.21

Hainan Phoenix Sales of goods Sales of books Price negotiated by both  

  parties 93,872.30 –

Sichuan Cultural Investment Group Sales of goods Sales of goods Price negotiated by both  

  parties 607.71 –

Xinhua Fanyu Sales of goods Sales of goods Price negotiated by both  

  parties – 1,183.49

Liangshan Xinhua Winshare Sales of goods Sales of books Price negotiated by both  

  parties – 3,708.80

Tianxi Zhongda Sales of goods Sales of books Price negotiated by both  

  parties – 8,147.17

Xinhua Wanyun Provision of 

  services

Provision of design 

  services

Price negotiated by both  

  parties 3,163.61 –

Cultural Land Provision of 

  services

Provision of design 

  services

Price negotiated by both  

  parties 233.96 830.19
      

Total 4,797,365.71 420,047.86
      

Note:	 Sichuan Minzu Publishing House became a subsidiary of Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and Distribution Group 

and a related party of the Group on 14 December 2021.



179Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(XI)	 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.	 Related party transactions (Continued)

(2)	 Leases with related parties

The Group as lessor:

RMB

Name of

lessor Name of lessee

Type of 

leased 

assets

Commencement 

date of leases

Expiration date 

of leases

Basis of determining the 

lease income

Amount

incurred in the

current period

(Unaudited)

Amount

incurred in the

Same Period

of Last Year

(Unaudited)
        

The Company Sichuan Xinhua 

Publishing and 

Distribution Group

Buildings 2022.1.1 2022.12.31 Contractual price negotiated  

  by both parties

639,787.89 639,787.89

The Company Sichuan Xinhua 

Publishing and 

Distribution Group

Buildings 2020.11.1 2023.12.31 Contractual price negotiated  

  by both parties

651,243.43 651,243.43

The Company Xinhua Yingxuan Buildings 2019.3.1 2021.2.28 Contractual price negotiated  

  by both parties

– 66,985.03

The Company Xinhua Yingxuan Buildings 2021.3.1 2022.12.31 Contractual price negotiated  

  by both parties

211,002.85 133,970.07

        

Total 1,502,034.17 1,491,986.42
        



180 Xinhua Winshare Publishing and Media Co., Ltd.     Interim Report 2022

For the period from 1 January to 30 June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(XI)	 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.	 Related party transactions (Continued)

(2)	 Leases with related parties (Continued)

The Group as lessee:

RMB

Name of

lessor

Name of

lessee

Type of 

leased 

assets

Commencement 

date of leases

Expiration date 

of leases

Basis of determining

the lease income

Lease payment

in the

current period

(Unaudited)

Lease payment

in the prior

period

(Unaudited)
        

Sichuan Xinhua 

Publishing and 

Distribution Group 

(Note 1)

The Company Buildings 2022.1.1 2027.12.31 Contractual price negotiated 

by both parties

– –

Sichuan Xinhua 

Publishing and 

Distribution Group 

(Note 2)

The Group Buildings 2022.1.1 2022.12.31 Contractual price negotiated 

by both parties

53,905.71 194,064.00

Sichuan Xinhua 

Publishing and 

Distribution Group 

(Note 3)

The Group Buildings 2022.1.1 2022.12.31 Contractual price negotiated 

by both parties

62,133.00 –

Sichuan Cultural 

Investment Group 

(Note 4)

The Company Buildings 2020.1.1 2022.12.31 Contractual price negotiated 

by both parties

3,490,057.34 6,249,229.74

Winshare Equity 

Investment Fund 

(Note 5)

The Group Buildings 2020.6.1 2023.5.31 Contractual price negotiated 

by both parties

408,679.20 408,679.20

        

Total 4,014,775.25 6,851,972.94
        

Note 1: During the current period, the Company as lessee rented buildings from Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and 
Distribution Group. Right-of-use assets amounting to RMB88,872,955.25 were increased as a result of 
lease changes, while depreciation of right-of-use assets amounting to RMB16,012,270.99 was recognized 
during the current period. As agreed in the contract, the rent was payable in a lump sum within the third 
quarter of each year.

Note 2: During the current period, the Group as lessee rented buildings from Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and 
Distribution Group, and the lease contract was short-term lease. Lease expense amounting to RMB53,905.71 
was recognized during the current period.

Note 3: During the current period, the Group as lessee rented buildings from Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and 
Distribution Group, and the lease contract was short-term lease. Lease expense amounting to RMB62,133.00 
was recognized during the current period.

Note 4: During the current period, the Company as lessee rented buildings from Sichuan Cultural Investment Group. 
Right-of-use assets amounting to RMB5,904,343.01 were reduced as a result of lease changes, while 
depreciation of right-of-use assets amounting to RMB4,723,358.18 was recognized during the current period.

Note 5: During the current period, the Group rented buildings from Winshare Equity Investment Fund. Depreciation 
of right-of-use assets amounting to RMB383,210.22 was recognized during the current period.
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(XI)	 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.	 Related party transactions (Continued)

(3)	 Advance payments from a related party

RMB

Amount incurred in the

current period

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in the

Same Period of Last Year

(Unaudited)

Name of entity

Advance 

payments

Interest 

expense

Advance 

payments

Interest

expense
     

Winshare BLOGIS 

(Note) 1,049,692.40 17,489.21 2,051,612.27 15,003.44
     

Note:	 Interest expenses incurred during the current period amounted to RMB17,489.21, which was attributable 

to the advance payment of RMB1,049,692.40 by Winshare BLOGIS, a related party, for Beijing Winshare 

Commercial.

(4)	 Compensation for key management personnel

RMB

Item

Amount incurred

in the current period

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred

in the Same Period

of Last Year

(Unaudited)
   

Compensation for key management 

personnel 3,121,426.96 2,318,610.28
   

Key management personnel are those personnel having the authority and responsibility for 

planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including director, supervisor 

and other personnel who perform similar strategic functions. Compensation for key 

management personnel includes basic salaries, bonuses and various subsidies.
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(XI)	 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

6.	 Amount due to/from related parties

RMB

Item Related party
30 June 2022

(Unaudited)
31 December 2021

    

Accounts receivable Sichuan Minzu Publishing House 22,313,381.37 25,923,965.20
Winshare Yinshi 944,788.32 944,788.32
Liangshan Xinhua Winshare 200,000.00 200,000.00
Shanghai Jinjie 195,984.00 195,984.00
Hainan Phoenix 93,872.30 –
Xinhua Wanyun – 140,000.00

    

Total 23,748,025.99 27,404,737.52
    

Prepayments Ming Bo Education – 179,459.35
    

Total – 179,459.35
    

Other receivables Xinhua Yingxuan 351,671.42 351,671.42
Sichuan Minzu Publishing House 108,846.15 200,000.00
Shanghai Jinjie 26,478.80 26,478.80

    

Total 486,996.37 578,150.22
    

Accounts payable Sichuan Minzu Publishing House 77,494,962.01 66,925,196.27
Tianxi Zhongda 34,887,369.33 30,680,807.36
The Commercial Press 14,623,179.60 13,059,402.86
Liangshan Xinhua Winshare 2,038,599.35 2,038,599.35
Ren Min Eastern 1,563,902.87 2,512,349.38
Hanan Publishing House 156,028.16 156,028.16
Ming Bo Education 154,290.03 –
Winshare BLOGIS 1,969.36 1,632.16

Xinhua Wanyun – 1,715.66
    

Total 130,920,300.71 115,375,731.20
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(XI)	 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

6.	 Amount due to/from related parties (Continued)

RMB

Item Related party
30 June 2022

(Unaudited)
31 December 2021

    

Contract liabilities Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and 
  Distribution Group 36,283.19 –

    

Total 36,283.19 –
    

Other payables Ming Bo Education 13,440,862.08 13,440,862.08

Xinhua Cultural 825,146.28 2,549,568.37

Winshare BLOGIS 3,000.00 3,000.00
    

Total 14,269,008.36 15,993,430.45
    

Non-current liabilities 
  due within one year

Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and  
  Distribution Group 30,496,750.74 35,628,544.63
Sichuan Cultural Investment Group 511,696.56 11,659,581.46
Winshare Equity Investment Fund 601,057.05 787,320.65

    

Total 31,609,504.35 48,075,446.74
    

Lease liabilities Sichuan Xinhua Publishing and  

  Distribution Group 175,370,532.31 76,530,128.56

Winshare Equity Investment Fund – 202,731.47
    

Total 175,370,532.31 76,732,860.03
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(XI)	 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

7.	 Transactions with Bank of Chengdu and closing balance of the Period

On 24 January 2022, Mr. You Zugang retired as the secretary to the Board of the Company. 

As he concurrently served as a senior management of the Company and a director of Bank of 

Chengdu within the past 12 months of the reporting date, Bank of Chengdu is a related party of 

the Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on Shanghai Stock Exchange. The 

Group’s transactions with Bank of Chengdu within the Reporting Period and the closing balance 

are detailed as follows:

(1)	 Dividend income

RMB

Current period (Unaudited) Same Period of Last Year (Unaudited)

Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
    

50,400,000.00 56.11 36,800,000.00 52.15
    

The shown proportion is the proportion of the amount of the transaction to total investment 

income in the current period.

(2)	 Interest income

RMB

Current period (Unaudited) Same Period of Last Year (Unaudited)

Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
    

8,124,424.81 10.56 5,312,375.79 12.70
    

The shown proportion is the proportion of the amount of the transaction to total amount 

of similar transactions in the current period.

(3)	 Handling fee expenses

RMB

Current period (Unaudited) Same Period of Last Year (Unaudited)

Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
    

402,086.10 10.94 56,412.83 1.68
    

The shown proportion is the proportion of the amount of the transaction to total amount 

of similar transactions in the current period.
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(XI)	 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

7.	 Transactions with Bank of Chengdu and closing balance of the Period (Continued)

(4)	 Amount due to/from

RMB

30 June 2022 31 December 2021

Item (Unaudited)
   

Bank balances 536,794,953.95 432,944,487.76
   

During the current period, the Company purchased the time deposit products of Bank 

of Chengdu, the principal and interest of which were accounted for as other non-current 

assets item.

(XII)	CONTINGENCIES

At the balance sheet date, the Group had no significant contingencies of which disclosure was required.

(XIII)	COMMITMENTS

Capital and other commitments

RMB

30 June 2022 31 December 2021

(Unaudited)
   

Commitment for acquisition and construction of 

long-term assets that are contracted but not yet 

recognized in the financial statements 86,880,349.59 60,306,402.21

Subscribed capital contribution commitments for 

investments in partnership 28,420,265.77 43,028,239.19
   

Total 115,300,615.36 103,334,641.40
   

(XIV)	EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group had no significant event.
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(XV)	OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1.	 Capital management

The Group manages its capital principally aiming to secure the Group as going concern and 

achieve maximum income for shareholders through optimizing the combination structure of equity 

financing and debt financing. The Group’s capital comprises the following components:

•	 Cash and cash equivalents;

•	 Paid-in capital, capital reserve, surplus reserve and undistributed profit.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure according to the interim or annual 

financial statements. During the review, the management considers the capital cost and risks 

associated with various type of capital. The Group optimizes the overall capital structure through 

issuing additional shares or borrowing or repayment of borrowings based on the choice of the 

management.

2.	 Segment reporting

Based on the Group’s internal organization structure, management requirements and internal 

reporting system, the operations of the Group are classified into two reporting segments, namely 

publication segment and distribution segment. The reporting segments are determined based 

on the Company’s business type. The Group’s management periodically evaluates the operating 

results of these reporting segments to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the 

segments and assess their performance.

Major products and services delivered or provided by each of the reporting segments of the 

Group are:

Publication: Publishing of publications like books, journals, audio-visual products and digital 

products; provision of printing services and supply of printing materials;

Distribution: Distribution of textbooks and supplementary materials to schools, teachers and 

students and supply of education informatized and equipment services for secondary 

and primary school education; retailing, distribution and online sales of publications;

Other segment of the Group covers provision of capital operations, logistic service, advertising 

service, etc. However, these operating businesses do not separately satisfy the definition of 

reporting segment. The relevant financial information of such operating businesses is consolidated 

and presented as “others” in the following table.

Segment reporting information is disclosed in accordance with the accounting policies and 

measurement criteria adopted by each segment when reporting to management. The measurement 

criteria are consistent with the accounting and measurement criteria in the preparation of the 

financial statements.
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(XV)	OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

2.	 Segment reporting (Continued)

(1)	 Segment reporting information

For the current period (Unaudited)

RMB

Publication 

segment

Distribution

 segment Others

Unallocated 

items

Inter-segment 

eliminations Total
       

External revenue 377,520,262.56 4,452,837,776.81 149,446,971.55 – – 4,979,805,010.92

Inter-segment revenue 734,063,991.44 2,261,472.95 63,034,851.82 – (799,360,316.21) –
       

Total operating income 1,111,584,254.00 4,455,099,249.76 212,481,823.37 – (799,360,316.21) 4,979,805,010.92
       

Operating profit 285,797,069.64 424,121,363.09 (89,901,418.12) 23,561,909.41 66,128,379.51 709,707,303.53

Non-operating income 874,633.27 2,064,541.84 203,150.65 – – 3,142,325.76

Non-operating expenses 384,617.72 11,286,077.94 1.79 – – 11,670,697.45
       

Total profit 286,287,085.19 414,899,826.99 (89,698,269.26) 23,561,909.41 66,128,379.51 701,178,931.84
       

Total assets 7,853,397,826.66 11,756,647,285.05 1,213,574,281.98 2,147,094,577.77 (4,103,287,818.01) 18,867,426,153.45
       

Total liabilities 2,938,791,301.68 7,487,794,172.67 520,960,570.70 186,447,452.68 (4,017,453,693.05) 7,116,539,804.68
       

Supplementary information

Depreciation 6,882,914.09 95,538,081.14 10,979,934.73 – – 113,400,929.96

Amortization 2,364,576.67 24,292,162.12 1,310,273.76 – – 27,967,012.55

Interest income 314,415.50 82,951,531.07 562,736.61 – – 83,828,683.18

Loss on credit impairment recognized 

in the current period 15,750,856.63 98,614,729.68 (1,047,930.13) – – 113,317,656.18

Impairment losses of assets 

recognized in the current period 15,442,481.40 3,904,847.14 – – – 19,347,328.54

Investment income (loss) recognized 

from long-term equity investment 

under equity method 16,978.12 6,880,786.52 (13,442,697.83) – – (6,544,933.19)

Long-term equity investment balances 

under equity method 21,579,515.62 626,065,036.50 99,714,390.77 – – 747,358,942.89

Capital expenditure 3,044,688.79 81,658,323.57 8,745,544.38 – – 93,448,556.74

Including: Construction in progress 101,274.04 47,594,908.90 – – – 47,696,182.94

Expenditure arising from 

purchase of fixed assets 2,640,065.23 28,101,596.57 8,654,393.94 – – 39,396,055.74

Expenditure arising from 

purchase of intangible 

assets – 1,717,507.03 91,150.44 – – 1,808,657.47

Development expenditure 303,349.52 4,244,311.07 – – – 4,547,660.59
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(XV)	OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

2.	 Segment reporting (Continued)

(1)	 Segment reporting information (Continued)

For the Same Period of Last Year (Unaudited)
RMB

Publication

segment

Distribution

segment Others

Unallocated

items

Inter-segment

eliminations Total
       

External revenue 411,315,159.14 4,122,078,366.54 128,187,526.96 – – 4,661,581,052.64

Inter-segment revenue 787,759,148.66 4,370,417.82 54,401,107.38 – (846,530,673.86) –
       

Total operating income 1,199,074,307.80 4,126,448,784.36 182,588,634.34 – (846,530,673.86) 4,661,581,052.64
       

Operating profit 290,800,994.12 320,120,927.54 (34,810,136.54) (2,587,346.94) 30,015,542.71 603,539,980.89

Non-operating income 250,722.94 2,085,574.81 440,543.45 – – 2,776,841.20

Non-operating expenses 137,566.72 15,956,496.88 60.30 – – 16,094,123.90
       

Total profit 290,914,150.34 306,250,005.47 (34,369,653.39) (2,587,346.94) 30,015,542.71 590,222,698.19
       

Total assets 7,216,326,906.79 10,925,424,615.27 1,302,434,460.97 1,806,260,616.22 (4,044,556,735.98) 17,205,889,863.27
       

Total liabilities 2,620,175,007.36 7,428,643,786.64 514,552,161.27 200,369,469.49 (3,956,734,975.81) 6,807,005,448.95
       

Supplementary information

Depreciation 9,514,966.51 92,791,814.03 12,884,490.62 – – 115,191,271.16

Amortization 2,190,477.84 19,005,992.60 1,309,212.32 – – 22,505,682.76

Interest income 455,150.79 47,377,448.01 550,126.81 – – 48,382,725.61

Loss on credit impairment recognized 

in the current period 11,724,246.48 51,081,307.21 (2,069,216.41) – – 60,736,337.28

Impairment losses of assets 

recognized in the current period 16,909,245.48 18,552,359.08 – – – 35,461,604.56

Investment income (loss) recognized 

from long-term equity investment 

under equity method 926,447.28 11,583,846.70 (3,360,720.76) – – 9,149,573.22

Long-term equity investment balances 

under equity method 21,876,204.64 600,302,581.41 98,134,008.45 – – 720,312,794.50

Capital expenditure 821,510.24 102,435,279.91 266,446.48 – – 103,523,236.63

Including: Construction in progress 20,423.01 26,359,897.23 – – – 26,380,320.24

Expenditure arising from 

  purchase of fixed assets 796,662.45 58,792,331.99 266,446.48 – – 59,855,440.92

Expenditure arising from 

  purchase of intangible 

  assets 4,424.78 4,830,303.95 – – – 4,834,728.73

Development expenditure – 12,452,746.74 – – – 12,452,746.74
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(XV)	OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

2.	 Segment reporting (Continued)

(2)	 External revenue by geographical area of source and non-current assets by geographical 

location

More than 99% of the Group’s income is sourced from the PRC customers and most of 

the Group’s assets are located in the PRC. Therefore, the regional data are not disclosed.

(3)	 Concentration on major customers

The Group’s revenue from its single largest customer for the current period is 

RMB483,911,769.99 (Same Period of Last Year: RMB481,615,423.00), which is attributable 

to the distribution segment. Apart from the aforesaid single largest customer, the Group 

has no external customer from which the revenue accounts for 10% or more of the total 

revenue in the current period and the Same Period of Last Year.

Inter-segment transfers are measured on the basis of prices negotiated between different 

segment entities. Segment revenue and segment expenses are determined on the basis of 

actual revenue and expenses of each segment. Segment assets and liabilities are allocated 

according to the attributable assets employed by a segment in its operating activities and 

the attributable liabilities resulting from the operating activities of a segment.
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(XVI)	NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
PARENT COMPANY

1.	 Cash and bank balances

RMB

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Item

Amount in the 

original currency

Exchange 

rate Amount in RMB

Amount in the 

original currency

Exchange

rate Amount in RMB
       

Cash:

RMB 878,777.03 1.0000 878,777.03 1,231,520.24 1.0000 1,231,520.24
       

Bank balances:

RMB (Note 1) 5,039,668,876.38 1.0000 5,039,668,876.38 4,811,424,005.37 1.0000 4,811,424,005.37

USD 4,500.23 6.7114 30,202.84 4,500.00 6.3757 28,690.65

HKD 54,664.92 0.8552 46,749.44 95,946.49 0.8176 78,445.85
       

Other cash and bank 

  balances:

RMB (Note 2) 32,442,139.11 1.0000 32,442,139.11 7,853,039.52 1.0000 7,853,039.52
       

Total 5,073,066,744.80 4,820,615,701.63
       

Note 1:	 At the end of the current period, the bank balances include 3-month above term deposits and accrued interests 

amounting to RMB3,330,000,000.00 (31 December 2021: RMB2,390,000,000.00) with an interest rate of 2.05%-

4.07%. During the current period, the management held the term deposits with the intention of flexible arrangement 

of funds and withdrew funds at any time depending on the capital needs.

Note 2:	 At the end of the current period, other cash and bank balances include the balances with Alipay App account and 

WeChat App account of RMB606,895.09 (31 December 2021: RMB161,005.64), dividend deposited in the stock 

account of RMB21,168,145.00 (31 December 2021: Nil), and the rest are restricted currency funds. Restricted 

currency funds are set out in Note (XVI)37.
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(XVI)	NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

2.	 Accounts receivable

(1)	 Accounts receivable by aging:

RMB

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Aging Amount
Proportion

(%)
Credit loss

provision
Carrying
amount Amount

Proportion
(%)

Credit loss
provision

Carrying
amount

         

Within 1 year 1,093,724,809.31 89.81 173,288,167.77 920,436,641.54 915,177,925.12 90.62 133,880,110.32 781,297,814.80
More than 1 year but not 

exceeding 2 years 56,572,334.32 4.65 44,110,324.12 12,462,010.20 43,744,660.65 4.33 35,190,004.94 8,554,655.71
More than 2 years but not 

exceeding 3 years 25,172,799.31 2.07 25,172,799.31 – 8,917,953.15 0.88 8,917,953.15 –
More than 3 years 42,341,795.88 3.47 42,341,795.88 – 42,045,619.32 4.17 42,045,619.32 –

         

Total 1,217,811,738.82 100.00 284,913,087.08 932,898,651.74 1,009,886,158.24 100.00 220,033,687.73 789,852,470.51
         

(2)	 Credit loss provision made or reversed in the current period

During the current period, the credit loss provision was RMB63,166,252.91, and the amount 
transferred to others was RMB1,713,146.44. The total additional credit loss provision for 
the current period was RMB64,879,399.35.

(3)	 Accounts receivable actually written off in the current period

No accounts receivable was actually written off in the current period.

(4)	 Top five debtors with the largest balances of accounts receivable at the end of the Period

RMB

Name of entity

Relationship
with the
Company

30 June 2022
(Unaudited) Aging

As a
percentage
of the total

accounts
receivable

(%)

Credit loss
provision as

at 30 June 2022
(Unaudited)

      

Customer F Subsidiary 248,670,932.58 Within 1 year, 
1-2 years, 2-3 
years, more 
than 3 years

20.42 –

Customer B Third party 91,493,252.00 Within 1 year 7.51 2,744,797.56
Customer H Subsidiary 70,954,650.57 Within 1 year, 1-2 

years
5.83 –

Customer I Third party 39,837,797.00 Within 1 year, 
1-2 years, 2-3 
years, more 
than 3 years

3.27 28,415,138.25

Customer D Third party 26,433,678.42 Within 1 year, 1-2 
years, 2-3 years

2.17 3,192,659.03

      

Total 477,390,310.57 39.20 34,352,594.84
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(XVI)	NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

3.	 Prepayments

(1)	 Aging analysis of prepayments:

RMB

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Aging Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
     

Within 1 year 25,867,119.28 92.56 11,580,434.81 95.50

1-2 years 1,865,834.79 6.68 13,276.25 0.11

2-3 years – – 92,161.64 0.76

More than 3 years 213,386.92 0.76 440,099.86 3.63
     

Total 27,946,340.99 100.00 12,125,972.56 100.00
     

Prepayment amounts aged more than one year are mainly prepayments for goods that are 

not settled by the suppliers.

(2)	 Top five entities with the largest closing balances of prepayments by subjects of 

prepayment

RMB

Name of entity

Relationship 

with the 

Company

30 June 2022

(Unaudited) Aging

Proportion

to total

prepayments

(%)

Reasons for

unsettlement
      

Wenchuan Logistics Subsidiary 10,000,000.00 Within 1 year 35.78 Logistic service not 

yet accepted

Sichuan Shibi Construction Engineering 

Co., Ltd.

Third party 2,122,935.79 Within 1 year 7.60 Goods not yet 

received

Howbon Construction Group Co., Ltd. Third party 1,119,266.08 Within 1 year; 1-2 

years

4.01 Goods not yet 

received

Sichuan Kehua Display Equipment Co., 

Ltd.

Third party 951,052.20 Within 1 year 3.40 Goods not yet 

received

Kejie Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. Third party 848,991.60 Within 1 year 3.04 Goods not yet 

received
      

Total 15,042,245.67 53.83
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(XVI)	NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

4.	 Other receivables

4.1	 Other receivables summary

(1)	 Other receivables by categories

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Dividend receivables 184,455.00 431,600,000.00

Other receivables 556,494,324.30 488,935,846.37
   

Total 556,678,779.30 920,535,846.37
   

4.2	 Dividend receivables

(1)	 Dividend receivables

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Bank of Chengdu 163,800.00 –

Wan Xin Media 20,655.00 –

Education Publishing House – 350,000,000.00

Publication Printing – 80,000,000.00

Ren Min Eastern – 1,600,000.00
   

Total 184,455.00 431,600,000.00
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(XVI)	NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

4.	 Other receivables (Continued)

4.3	 Other receivables

(1)	 Other receivables by aging

RMB

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Aging Amount

Proportion

(%)

Credit loss

provision

Carrying

amount Amount

Proportion

(%)

Credit loss

provision

Carrying

amount
         

Within 1 year 387,380,180.19 68.86 178,505.98 387,201,674.21 349,246,172.17 70.55 114.00 349,246,058.17

More than 1 year but not 

exceeding 2 years 45,056,837.55 8.00 1,900.00 45,054,937.55 29,854,651.54 6.03 229,183.14 29,625,468.40

More than 2 years but not 

exceeding 3 years 70,295,523.68 12.50 67,393.36 70,228,130.32 72,158,788.27 14.58 – 72,158,788.27

More than 3 years 59,854,636.25 10.64 5,845,054.03 54,009,582.22 43,750,585.56 8.84 5,845,054.03 37,905,531.53
         

Total 562,587,177.67 100.00 6,092,853.37 556,494,324.30 495,010,197.54 100.00 6,074,351.17 488,935,846.37
         

(2)	 Credit loss provision made or reversed in the current period

The amount of credit loss provision for the current period was RMB178,391.98, 

and the amount of credit loss provision reversed for the current period was 

RMB159,889.78.

(3)	 Other receivables actually written off in the current period

There were no other receivables actually written off in the current period.
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(XVI)	NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

4.	 Other receivables (Continued)

4.3	 Other receivables (Continued)

(4)	 Other receivables by their nature

RMB

Nature of other receivables

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Receivables from related parties 470,114,428.18 434,746,597.68

Deposit/security deposit 61,813,459.16 45,383,838.42

Petty cash 264,828.00 826,146.49

Others 30,394,462.33 14,053,614.95
   

Total 562,587,177.67 495,010,197.54
   

(5)	 Top five entities with the largest balances of other receivables at the end of the 

Period

RMB

Name of entity Nature

30 June 2022

(Unaudited) Aging

As a

percentage of

the total other

receivables (%)

Credit loss

provision as at

30 June 2022

(Unaudited)
      

Printing Materials Receivables from 

  subsidiaries

179,641,625.00 1-2 years, more than 

3 years

31.93 –

Winshare Education 

Technology

Receivables from 

  subsidiaries

85,668,375.02 Within 1 year, 1-2 years, 

2-3 years, more than 

3 years

15.23 –

Reader’s Journal Press Receivables from 

  subsidiaries

38,860,648.33 Within 1 year, 1-2 years, 

2-3 years, more than 

3 years

6.91 –

Winshare Online Receivables from 

  subsidiaries

35,305,088.67 Within 1 year 6.28 –

Wenchuan Logistics Receivables from 

  subsidiaries

30,537,000.00 Within 1 year, 1-2 years, 

2-3 years, more than 

3 years

5.43 –

      

Total 370,012,737.02 65.78 –
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(XVI)	NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

5.	 Inventories

(1)	 Categories of inventories

RMB

30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 31 December 2021

Item

Gross carrying

amount

Provision for

decline in value

Carrying

amount

Gross carrying

amount

Provision for

decline in value

Carrying

amount
       

Goods on hand 362,655,496.16 113,331,321.71 249,324,174.45 883,700,819.18 106,926,742.54 776,774,076.64

Raw materials 9,207,744.84 – 9,207,744.84 5,714,134.02 – 5,714,134.02
       

Total 371,863,241.00 113,331,321.71 258,531,919.29 889,414,953.20 106,926,742.54 782,488,210.66
       

The Group had no inventories pledged as collaterals at the end of the Period.

(2)	 Provision for decline in value of inventories

RMB

Category of inventories

1 January

 2022

Increase in the 

current period Decrease in the current period 30 June 2022

(Unaudited)Reversals Write-off
      

Goods on hand 106,926,742.54 6,404,579.17 – – 113,331,321.71
      

6.	 Other current assets

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Receivables from cost of sales returns 74,842,577.79 67,458,100.40

VAT credit tax to be deducted  

and to be refunded 74,774,830.28 7,670,997.06

Time deposits 50,000,000.00 –
   

Total 199,617,408.07 75,129,097.46
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(XVI)	NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

7.	 Long-term equity investment

(1)	 Long-term equity investment

RMB

Item

30 June 2022

(unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Book balance of long-term equity 

investments 4,054,849,374.55 4,033,968,588.03

Less: �Provision for impairment of long- 

  term equity investments 57,072,032.00 57,072,032.00

Carrying amount of long-term equity 

investments 3,997,777,342.55 3,976,896,556.03
   

(2)	 Classification of long-term equity investments is as follows:

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Investment in subsidiaries 3,371,712,306.06 3,357,712,306.06

Investment in associates or joint ventures 626,065,036.49 619,184,249.97
   

Total 3,997,777,342.55 3,976,896,556.03
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(XVI)	NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

7.	 Long-term equity investment (Continued)

(3)	 Investment in subsidiaries

RMB

Change for the current period

30 June 2022

 (Unaudited)

Provision for 

impairment as at 

30 June 2022

 

Investee 1 January 2022

Addition in 

investment

Reduction in 

investment

Provision for 

impairment
       

Xinhua Online 40,000,000.00 – – – 40,000,000.00 (2,072,032.00)

Winshare Media 3,990,000.00 – – – 3,990,000.00 –

Winshare Sports 124,915,135.82 – – – 124,915,135.82 –

Winshare Education 

Technology 333,840,776.30 – – – 333,840,776.30 –

Xinhua Shang 12,396,162.00 – – – 12,396,162.00 –

Arts Investment 20,680,000.00 – – – 20,680,000.00 –

Winshare Online 45,000,000.00 – – – 45,000,000.00 –

Beijing Winshare Commercial 36,800,000.00 – – – 36,800,000.00 (55,000,000.00)

Wenchuan Logistics 350,000,000.00 – – – 350,000,000.00 –

Watch Panda 2,000,000.00 – – – 2,000,000.00 –

Publication Printing 598,185,830.79 – – – 598,185,830.79 –

Printing Materials 40,944,463.95 – – – 40,944,463.95 –

People’s Publishing House 42,189,167.92 – – – 42,189,167.92 –

Education Publishing House 211,321,291.49 – – – 211,321,291.49 –

Youth and Children’s 

Publishing House 361,878,541.53 – – – 361,878,541.53 –

Digital Publishing 5,605,427.63 – – – 5,605,427.63 –

Literature & Art Publishing 

House 60,731,819.65 – – – 60,731,819.65 –

Fine Arts Publishing House 17,559,756.46 – – – 17,559,756.46 –

Science & Technology 

Publishing House 24,294,897.94 – – – 24,294,897.94 –

Lexicographical Publishing 

House 27,809,021.68 – – – 27,809,021.68 –

Bashu Publishing House 45,244,860.20 – – – 45,244,860.20 –

Tiandi Publishing House 239,379,050.03 – – – 239,379,050.03 –

Reader’s Journal Press 866,830.73 – – – 866,830.73 –

Pictorial 7,521,475.38 – – – 7,521,475.38 –
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(XVI)	NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

7.	 Long-term equity investment (Continued)

(3)	 Investment in subsidiaries (Continued)

RMB

Change for the current period

30 June 2022

 (Unaudited)

Provision for 

impairment as at 

30 June 2022

 

Investee 1 January 2022

Addition in 

investment

Reduction in 

investment

Provision for 

impairment
       

Winshare Investment 300,000,000.00 – – – 300,000,000.00 –

Sichuan Xinhua Printing 248,599,490.28 – – – 248,599,490.28 –

Beijing Aerospace Cloud 29,248,300.00 – – – 29,248,300.00 –

Winshare International 36,000,000.00 14,000,000.00 – – 50,000,000.00 –

Winshare Quan Media 10,000,000.00 – – – 10,000,000.00 –

Sichuan Culture 

Communication 30,710,006.28 – – – 30,710,006.28 –

Stackway 50,000,000.00 – – – 50,000,000.00 –
       

Total 3,357,712,306.06 14,000,000.00 – – 3,371,712,306.06 (57,072,032.00)
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(XVI)	NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

7.	 Long-term equity investment (Continued)

(4)	 Investment in joint ventures or associates

RMB

Changes for the Period
 

Investee 1 January 2022

Increase in 

investment

Decrease in 

investment

Investment 

profit or loss 

recognized 

under equity 

method

Adjustment 

of other 

comprehensive 

income

Changes in

 other equity

Distribution 

of cash 

dividends 

or profits 

declared

Provision for 

impairment

 loss Others

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

Provision for 

impairment 

as at 

30 June 2022
            

Joint Ventures

Hainan Publishing House 232,622,964.59 – – 10,491,659.00 – – – – – 243,114,623.59 –

Liangshan Xinhua Winshare 20,048,975.48 – – (431,760.19) – – – – – 19,617,215.29 –
            

Subtotal 252,671,940.07 – – 10,059,898.81 – – – – – 262,731,838.88 –
            

Associates

The Commercial Press (Chengdu) 

Co., Ltd. 3,720,175.58 – – 15,685.73 – – – – – 3,735,861.31 –

Ren Min Eastern 9,731,023.89 – – (448,959.78) – – – – – 9,282,064.11 –

Ming Bo Education 28,249,539.37 – – (9,440,450.02) – – – – – 18,809,089.35 –

Preschool Education 5,373,638.40 – – 2,483,923.50 – – – – – 7,857,561.90 –

Xinhua Yingxuan 955,363.79 – – (590,963.70) – – – – – 364,400.09 –

Winshare Yinshi 278,750.32 – – 9,127.03 – – – – – 287,877.35 –

Hainan Phoenix 317,571,337.71 – – 5,330,233.70 – – – – – 322,901,571.41 –

Cuiya Education 632,480.84 – – (537,708.75) – – – – – 94,772.09 –
            

Subtotal 366,512,309.90 – – (3,179,112.29) – – – – – 363,333,197.61 –
            

Total 619,184,249.97 – – 6,880,786.52 – – – – – 626,065,036.49 –
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(XVI)	NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

8.	 Investment properties

Investment properties measured at cost

RMB

Item Buildings
  

I.	 Cost

  1. 1 January 2022 33,651,290.75

  2. Increase in the Period –

    (1) Purchase –

  3. Decrease in the Period 5,536,956.28

    (1) Transfer to other fixed assets 5,536,956.28

  4. 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 28,114,334.47

II.	Accumulated depreciation

  1. 1 January 2022 15,563,161.53

  2. Increase in the Period 415,489.03

    (1) Provision 415,489.03

  3. Decrease in the Period 2,422,419.18

    (1) Transfer to other fixed assets 2,422,419.18

  4. 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 13,556,231.38

III. Carrying amount

  1. 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 14,558,103.09

  2. 1 January 2022 18,088,129.22
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9.	 Fixed assets

RMB

Item Buildings

Machinery and 

equipment

Electronic 

equipment and 

others

Transportation 

vehicles Total
      

I.	 Cost

1. 1 January 2022 2,026,405,279.35 123,849,100.80 158,941,482.86 89,315,033.96 2,398,510,896.97

2. Increase in the Period 178,957,519.38 1,990,390.96 11,795,089.63 1,011,354.11 193,754,354.08

(1) Acquisition 12,068,256.88 1,990,390.96 10,995,688.73 1,011,354.11 26,065,690.68

(2) �Transfer from construction in 

progress 161,352,306.22 – 799,400.90 – 162,151,707.12

(3) �Transfer from investment 

properties 5,536,956.28 – – – 5,536,956.28

3. Decrease in the Period 997,235.99 387,836.13 5,692,686.36 5,492,219.33 12,569,977.81

(1) Disposal – 387,836.13 5,692,686.36 5,492,219.33 11,572,741.82

(2) Transfer to others 997,235.99 – – – 997,235.99

4. 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 2,204,365,562.74 125,451,655.63 165,043,886.13 84,834,168.74 2,579,695,273.24

II.	 Accumulated depreciation

1. 1 January 2022 513,123,743.30 82,024,306.44 116,642,658.09 50,899,867.58 762,690,575.41

2. Increase in the Period 31,395,076.73 3,176,920.70 8,405,402.03 4,063,499.27 47,040,898.73

(1) Provision 28,972,657.55 3,176,920.70 8,405,402.03 4,063,499.27 44,618,479.55

(2) �Transfer from investment 

properties 2,422,419.18 – – – 2,422,419.18

3. Decrease in the Period – 364,425.34 5,612,675.44 5,327,452.76 11,304,553.54

(1) Disposal – 364,425.34 5,612,675.44 5,327,452.76 11,304,553.54

4. 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 544,518,820.03 84,836,801.80 119,435,384.68 49,635,914.09 798,426,920.60

III.	Carrying amount

1. 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 1,659,846,742.71 40,614,853.83 45,608,501.45 35,198,254.65 1,781,268,352.64

2. 1 January 2022 1,513,281,536.05 41,824,794.36 42,298,824.77 38,415,166.38 1,635,820,321.56
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10.	 Right-of-use assets

(1)	 Presentation of right-of-use assets

RMB

Item Buildings
  

I.	 Cost:

1. 1 January 2022 561,080,195.91

2. Increase in the Period 106,322,421.94

3. Decrease in the Period 14,166,023.28

4. 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 653,236,594.57

II.	 Accumulated depreciation

1. 1 January 2022 238,503,126.10

2. Increase in the Period 47,841,233.76

(1) Provision 47,841,233.76

3. Decrease in the Period 6,507,592.27

4. 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 279,836,767.59

III.	 Carrying amount

1. 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 373,399,826.98

2. 1 January 2022 322,577,069.81
  

The lease term of buildings of the Company ranged from one to fifteen years.

(2)	 Amount recognized in the profit or loss

RMB

Building

Amount recognized 

in the current period 

(Unaudited)
  

Depreciation expense for right-of-use assets (Note 1) 47,841,233.76

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 2) 10,406,291.18

Short-term lease expenses 7,081,298.45

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of 

  lease liabilities 833,092.94

Income from sublease of right-of-use assets 2,261,776.38
  

Note 1:   During the current period, there was no depreciation expense for right-of-use assets capitalized.

Note 2:   During the current period, there was no interest expense on lease liabilities capitalized.

(3)	 The total cash outflow for leases in the current period was RMB45,945,197.14 (the Same 

Period of Last Year: RMB45,007,332.21).
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11.	 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are as follows:

RMB

Item Land use rights Software Others Total
     

I.	 Cost

1. 1 January 2022 188,822,066.00 99,589,293.40 167,700.00 288,579,059.40

2. Increase in the Period – 1,425,471.63 – 1,425,471.63

(1) Acquisition – 1,425,471.63 – 1,425,471.63

3. 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 188,822,066.00 101,014,765.03 167,700.00 290,004,531.03

II.	 Accumulated amortization

1. 1 January 2022 78,406,676.14 66,440,332.81 167,700.00 145,014,708.95

2. Increase in the Period 2,498,037.01 3,235,500.38 – 5,733,537.39

(1) Provision 2,498,037.01 3,235,500.38 – 5,733,537.39

3. 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 80,904,713.15 69,675,833.19 167,700.00 150,748,246.34

III.	 Carrying amount

1. 30 June 2022 (Unaudited) 107,917,352.85 31,338,931.84 – 139,256,284.69

2. 1 January 2022 110,415,389.86 33,148,960.59 – 143,564,350.45
     

12.	 Long-term prepaid expenses

RMB

Increase amount 

in the current 

period

Amortization 

amount in the 

current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

1 January 2022

Item
     

Leasehold improvement 7,028,613.56 7,347,123.33 4,487,355.09 9,888,381.80

Others 641,431.92 1,860.48 194,518.03 448,774.37
     

Total 7,670,045.48 7,348,983.81 4,681,873.12 10,337,156.17
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PARENT COMPANY (Continued)

13.	 Other non-current assets

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Receivables from subsidiaries 601,000,000.00 601,000,000.00

VAT input tax to be deducted – 68,477,191.12

Prepaid purchase price for property 29,904,991.14 29,043,520.00

Time deposits (Note) 462,560,205.45 454,460,268.47

Quality warranty 7,428,535.16 –
   

Total 1,100,893,731.75 1,152,980,979.59
   

Note:	 Time deposits are fixed deposits that the Company is unable or does not intend to withdraw in advance within one 

year, the rate of which is 3.50% – 4.07%.

14.	 Accounts payable

Details of aging analysis of accounts payable are as follows:

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Within 1 year 3,191,035,460.28 3,957,784,477.45

1-2 years 243,437,354.59 203,938,255.64

2-3 years 141,596,188.96 127,349,067.15

More than 3 years 165,680,575.86 120,048,430.12
   

Total 3,741,749,579.69 4,409,120,230.36
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15.	 Contract liabilities

(1)	 Presentation of contract liabilities:

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Advanced receipts for sold goods 355,308,964.16 354,773,804.42

Membership card points 2,536,984.19 2,234,909.60
   

Total 357,845,948.35 357,008,714.02
   

(2)	 During the current period, the Company’s recognized revenue of RMB102,910,621.01 was 

included in the carrying amount of contract liabilities at the beginning of the year. It included 

contract liabilities of RMB102,907,489.60 arising from advanced receipts for sold goods, 

and contract liabilities of RMB3,131.41 arising from membership card points.

16.	 Employee benefits payable

(1)	 Presentation of employee benefits payable

RMB

Item

1 January 2022 Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the 

current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

I.	 Short-term benefits 400,841,655.14 432,900,984.28 569,246,619.19 264,496,020.23

II.	 Post-employment 

benefits – defined 

contribution plan 3,647,028.76 71,235,871.71 70,989,841.81 3,893,058.66

III.	Termination benefits – 602,577.52 602,577.52 –
     

Total 404,488,683.90 504,739,433.51 640,839,038.52 268,389,078.89
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16.	 Employee benefits payable (Continued)

(2)	 Presentation of short-term benefits

RMB

Item

1 January 2022 Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the 

current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

I.	 Wages or salaries, bonuses, 

allowance and subsidies 340,802,766.63 361,333,848.16 504,089,067.67 198,047,547.12

II.	 Staff welfare – 3,361,890.32 3,354,590.32 7,300.00

III.	 Social security contributions 61,075.35 23,744,887.65 23,695,249.18 110,713.82

Including: Medical insurance 47,490.02 22,504,179.16 22,458,149.61 93,519.57

            Work-related injury  

              insurance 10,231.47 1,095,652.93 1,092,044.01 13,840.39

            Maternity insurance 3,353.86 142,838.06 142,838.06 3,353.86

            Other insurances – 2,217.50 2,217.50 –

IV.	 Housing funds 653,538.53 30,722,618.59 30,437,830.55 938,326.57

V.	 Union running costs and 

employee education costs 59,230,923.10 12,659,208.44 6,591,350.26 65,298,781.28

VI.	Others 93,351.53 1,078,531.12 1,078,531.21 93,351.44
     

Total 400,841,655.14 432,900,984.28 569,246,619.19 264,496,020.23
     

(3)	 Defined contribution plan

RMB

Item

1 January 2022 Increase in the 

current period

Decrease in the 

current period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

I. Basic pension insurance 117,974.21 42,817,760.41 42,754,144.12 181,590.50

II. Unemployment insurance 5,117.10 1,654,415.59 1,651,896.84 7,635.85

III. Enterprise annuity 3,523,937.45 26,763,695.71 26,583,800.85 3,703,832.31
     

Total 3,647,028.76 71,235,871.71 70,989,841.81 3,893,058.66
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17.	 Taxes payable

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Individual income tax 1,099,878.57 1,366,338.87

Others 17,482,866.56 17,541,283.60
   

Total 18,582,745.13 18,907,622.47
   

18.	 Other payables

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Amounts due to related parties 830,033,223.94 882,596,097.44

Security deposit/deposit/quality warranty/

performance security 29,450,178.96 28,539,510.37

Construction and infrastructure construction 

expenses 65,916,162.01 71,602,549.71

Dividend payables 141,419,872.00 –

Others 98,457,160.94 42,866,060.57
   

Total 1,165,276,597.85 1,025,604,218.09
   

Other payables of large amounts and aged more than 1 year were mainly amounts due to related 

parties.
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19.	 Lease liabilities

RMB

Item
30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
31 December 2021

   

Rents 412,962,233.87 341,479,058.63
Less: Lease liabilities included in non-current 
        liabilities due within one year 80,216,349.51 93,824,087.70

   

Total 332,745,884.36 247,654,970.93
   

20.	 Capital reserve

Current period

RMB

Item 1 January 2022

Increase in 
the current 

period

Decrease in 
the current 

period
30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

Share capital premium 2,607,708,268.43 – – 2,607,708,268.43

Including: Capital contributed by investors 2,622,033,862.15 – – 2,622,033,862.15
     �     Differences arising from  

  business combination  
  involving enterprises under  
  common control (14,325,593.72) – – (14,325,593.72)

Other capital reserve 23,349,059.67 23,349,059.67
Including: �Transfer from capital reserve  

  under the previous  
  accounting system 23,349,059.67 – – 23,349,059.67

     

Total 2,631,057,328.10 – – 2,631,057,328.10
     

Same Period of Last Year

RMB

Item 1 January 2021

Increase in 
the current 

period

Decrease in 
the current 

period
30 June 2021 

(Unaudited)
     

Share capital premium 2,607,708,268.43 – – 2,607,708,268.43
Including: Capital contributed by investors 2,622,033,862.15 – – 2,622,033,862.15
     �     Differences arising from  

  business combination  
  involving enterprises under  
  common control (14,325,593.72) – – (14,325,593.72)

Other capital reserve 23,349,059.67 23,349,059.67
Including: �Transfer from capital reserve  

  under the previous  
  accounting system 23,349,059.67 – – 23,349,059.67

     

Total 2,631,057,328.10 – – 2,631,057,328.10
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21.	 Other comprehensive income

Current period

RMB

Item

1 January 2022 Changes for the Period 30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
 

Amount for the 

current period 

before 

income tax

Less: 

Income tax 

expenses

Post-tax amount 

attributable to 

owners of 

the parent 

company

Post-tax 

amount 

attributable 

to non-

controlling 

shareholders

Less: Amount 

included in other 

comprehensive 

income (loss) 

in the prior 

period that is 

transferred to 

retained earnings
        

Other comprehensive income 

that cannot be reclassified 

into profit or loss 1,180,466,272.00 321,529,600.00 – 321,529,600.00 – – 1,501,995,872.00

Gains or losses arising 

from fair value change of 

other equity instrument 

investments 1,180,466,272.00 321,529,600.00 – 321,529,600.00 – – 1,501,995,872.00
        

Same Period of Last Year

RMB

Item

1 January 2021 Changes for the period 30 June 2021 

(Unaudited)
 

Amount for the 

current period 

before 

income tax

Less: 

Income tax 

expenses

Post-tax amount 

attributable to 

owners of 

the parent 

company

Post-tax 

amount 

attributable 

to non-

controlling 

shareholders

Less: Amount 

included in other 

comprehensive 

income (loss) 

in the prior 

period that is 

transferred to 

retained earnings
        

Other comprehensive income 

that cannot be reclassified 

into profit or loss 1,017,913,006.10 153,860,800.00 – 153,860,800.00 – (1,311,665.90) 1,173,085,472.00

Gains or losses arising 

from fair value change of 

other equity instrument 

investments 1,017,913,006.10 153,860,800.00 – 153,860,800.00 – (1,311,665.90) 1,173,085,472.00
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22.	 Surplus reserve

Current period

RMB

Item

1 January 2022

Increase in 

the current 

period

Decrease in 

the current 

period

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)
     

Statutory surplus reserve 1,008,375,729.16 – – 1,008,375,729.16
     

Same Period of Last Year

RMB

Item

1 January 2021

Increase in 

the current 

period

Decrease in 

the current 

period

30 June 2021 

(Unaudited)
     

Statutory surplus reserve 896,812,934.68 – – 896,812,934.68
     

23.	 Undistributed profits

RMB

Item

Current period 

(Unaudited) Prior year

Proportion of 

appropriation or 

distribution
    

Undistributed profits at the 

beginning of the Period/year 4,008,390,164.00 3,388,127,389.56

Add: Net profit for the Period 630,387,603.10 1,115,627,944.82

Less: Appropriation of statutory 

        surplus reserve – 111,562,794.48

      Distribution of dividends on 

        ordinary shares 394,829,120.00 382,490,710.00 Note (VI)37(2)

      �Internal carry-over within  

  equity – 1,311,665.90

Undistributed profits at the end of 

the Period/year 4,243,948,647.10 4,008,390,164.00
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24.	 Operating income and operating costs

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 

the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 

the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

Principal operating income 3,121,335,563.05 2,887,791,428.16

Including: �Textbooks and supplementary 

materials 2,685,805,125.31 2,491,797,710.34

Other operating income (Note) 83,541,556.75 81,435,338.05

Total income 3,204,877,119.80 2,969,226,766.21

Principle operating cost 1,853,854,378.23 1,645,424,099.09

Other operating cost 902,506.50 1,516,670.25

Total costs 1,854,756,884.73 1,646,940,769.34
   

Note:	 Included in other operating income was net income from concessionaire sales of RMB14,835,037.28. Among 

which, revenue from concessionaire sales was RMB99,733,287.68 and cost from concessionaire sales was 

RMB84,898,250.40. (The Same Period of Last Year: net income from concessionaire sales of RMB17,211,376.76. 

Among which, revenue from concessionaire sales was RMB118,596,609.81 and cost from concessionaire sales was 

RMB101,385,233.05.)

25.	 Taxes and surcharges

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 

the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 

the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

City construction and maintenance tax 20,672.25 77,565.03

Education surcharges 14,765.90 57,203.26

Property tax 9,539,917.41 8,694,530.88

Urban land use tax 1,092,209.64 1,078,055.17

Vessel and vehicle tax 110,712.00 58,361.12

Stamp duty 417,515.01 507,753.21

Others 18,959.73 5,983.48
   

Total 11,214,751.94 10,479,452.15
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26.	 Selling expenses

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 
the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 
the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

Wages and other labor costs 259,238,050.06 229,899,896.10
Transportation costs (Note) 52,944,629.71 101,776,979.58
Entrusted logistics fees (Note) 44,882,443.84 53,382,911.27
Business conference fees 10,336,659.84 26,291,041.26
Vehicle fees 6,918,168.20 7,514,725.58
Travel expenses 6,573,797.26 8,262,275.63
Handling fees 5,447,807.08 21,921,241.02
Promotion fees 29,844,171.09 16,249,395.89
Packing expenses 14,461,600.96 10,115,963.84
Others 8,785,670.43 10,899,050.09

   

Total 439,432,998.47 486,313,480.26
   

Note:	 During the current period, the Company has analyzed and sorted out the expenses related to contract performance 

costs in accordance with the Standard – Revenue, and the transportation fees and logistics fees arising from the 

performance of contract obligations were included in the operating cost accounting as contract performance costs, 

and the transportation fees and logistics fees arising from the non-performance of contract obligations were included 

in the selling expenses.

27.	 Administrative expenses

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 
the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 
the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

Wages and other labor costs 243,589,161.48 217,092,902.40
Business entertainment fees 23,093,830.71 63,715,167.36
Lease payments 7,914,391.39 6,291,771.67
Depreciation and amortization expenses 100,094,365.32 95,831,114.48
Conference fees 4,925,910.48 8,368,727.44
Energy costs 6,595,529.81 6,316,251.30
Property management fees 24,220,035.86 16,323,675.82
Travel expenses 2,250,229.68 3,431,626.68
Repair charge 3,224,956.58 8,114,305.67
Office expenses 2,473,024.44 2,320,861.27
Audit and other non-audit service fees 720,000.00 720,000.00
Others 29,659,154.65 33,305,170.30

   

Total 448,760,590.40 461,831,574.39
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28.	 Finance expenses

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 

the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 

the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

Interest expenses 8,890,855.03 5,098,753.34

Interest expenses on lease liabilities 10,406,291.18 10,452,585.10

Interest income (Note 1) (58,709,451.76) (32,380,864.87)

Interest income from long-term receivables (2,912,499.11) (2,575,161.68)

Foreign exchange gains or losses and others 2,074,600.55 2,960,812.45
   

Total (40,250,204.11) (16,443,875.66)
   

Note 1:	 The total interest income generated from time deposits shown as other current and non-current assets under the 

effective interest rate method for the current period was RMB8,099,936.98 (incurred in the Same Period of Last 

Year: RMB5,156,347.94).

29.	 Other income

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 

the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 

the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

Other fiscal subsidies 2,479,461.98 1,386,809.61
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30.	 Investment income

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 

the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 

the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

Income from long-term equity investments

Including: Investment income (losses) under 

            cost method 100,000,000.00 –

          Investment income (losses) 

            under equity method 6,880,786.52 11,583,846.70

          Investment income (losses) due to 

            disposal of long-term equity 

            investments – (31,274,658.73)

Investment income from other equity instrument 

investments 71,588,800.00 56,742,400.00

Investment income from disposal of financial 

assets at FVTPL 24,772,049.54 212,608.13

Others – 1,400,000.00
   

Total 203,241,636.06 38,664,196.10
   

31.	 Losses on credit impairment

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 

the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 

the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

Impairment losses for accounts receivable (63,166,252.91) (14,457,512.09)

Impairment losses for other receivables (18,502.20) (43,652.86)
   

Total (63,184,755.11) (14,501,164.95)
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32.	 Impairment losses of assets

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 

the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 

the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

Losses of decline in value of inventories (6,404,579.17) (19,534,275.44)
   

33.	 Non-operating income

Details of non-operating income are as follows:

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 

the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 

the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

Total gains on disposal of non-current assets 252,635.75 159,817.71

Including: Gains on disposal of fixed assets 252,635.75 159,817.71

Others 1,752,837.89 1,917,592.18

Total 2,005,473.64 2,077,409.89
   

34.	 Non-operating expenses

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 

the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 

the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

Total losses on disposal of non-current assets 78,133.92 216,272.36

Including: losses on disposal of fixed assets 78,133.92 216,272.36

Donations 10,788,101.27 15,618,669.80

Penalties 1,003.35 3,435.21

Others 390,982.06 17,491.10
   

Total 11,258,220.60 15,855,868.47
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35.	 Notes to items in the cash flow statement

(1)	 Other cash receipts relating to operating activities

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 

the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 

the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

Interests 50,609,514.78 27,224,516.93

Others 4,334,476.63 18,015,569.46
   

Total 54,943,991.41 45,240,086.39
   

(2)	 Other cash payments relating to operating activities

RMB

Item

Amount incurred in 

the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 

the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

Selling expenses 180,194,948.41 256,413,584.16

Including: Transportation costs 52,944,629.71 101,776,979.58

          Entrusted logistics fees 44,882,443.84 53,382,911.27

          Business conference fees 10,336,659.84 26,291,041.26

          Handling fees 5,447,807.08 21,921,241.02

          Promotion fees 29,844,171.09 16,249,395.89

          Vehicle fees 6,918,168.20 7,514,725.58

          Travel expenses 6,573,797.26 8,262,275.63

Administrative expenses 105,077,063.60 147,943,342.50

Including: Business entertainment fees 23,093,830.71 63,715,167.36

          Lease payment 7,914,391.39 6,291,771.67

          Property management fees 24,220,035.86 16,323,675.82

          Conference fees 4,925,910.48 8,368,727.44

          Repair charges 3,224,956.58 8,114,305.67

          Energy costs 6,595,529.81 6,316,251.30

Amounts due to/from subsidiaries – 9,011,475.16

Others 47,988,707.44 3,364,588.58
   

Total 333,260,719.45 416,732,990.40
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36.	 Supplementary information to the cash flow statement

(1)	 Supplementary information to the cash flow statement

RMB

Supplementary information

Amount incurred in 
the current period 

(Unaudited)

Amount incurred in 
the Same Period of 

Last Year (Unaudited)
   

1.	 Reconciliation of net profit to cash 
flow from operating activities:
Net profit 630,387,603.10 361,749,782.89
Add: Impairment loss of assets 6,404,579.17 19,534,275.44
      Credit impairment losses 63,184,755.11 14,501,164.95
      Depreciation of fixed assets 44,618,479.55 37,651,770.56
   �   Depreciation of right-of-use  

  assets 47,841,233.76 52,316,361.84
   �   Depreciation of investment  

  properties 415,489.03 450,095.02
      Amortization of intangible assets 5,733,537.39 4,961,106.65
   �   Amortization of long-term  

  prepaid expenses 4,681,873.12 2,818,717.71
      Asset disposal gains (2,096,212.61) (51,926.33)
   �   (Gains) losses from fair value  

  change (10,450,275.32) 10,644,615.91
      Finance expenses 11,197,209.23 10,394,990.50
      Investment income (203,241,636.06) (37,264,196.10)
      Asset retirement (gains) losses (174,501.83) 56,454.65
      Decrease in inventories 517,551,712.20 260,988,126.28
   �   Increase in receivables from  

  operating activities (257,513,547.21) (219,661,049.99)
   �   Decrease in payables from  

  operating activities (349,132,298.22) (74,858,095.14)
Net cash flow from operating activities 509,408,000.41 444,232,194.84

2.	 Material investment and financing 
activities not involving cash 
receipts and payments:
Right-of-use assets recognized on 
  leased fixed assets 106,322,421.94 8,458,270.71

3.	 Net changes in cash and cash 
equivalents:
Closing balance of cash and cash 
  equivalent 5,062,399,645.78 4,143,046,551.55
Less: �Opening balance of cash and  

  cash equivalent 4,812,923,667.75 4,235,082,239.58
Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
  cash equivalents 249,475,978.03 (92,035,688.03)
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36.	 Supplementary information to the cash flow statement (Continued)

(2)	 Cash and cash equivalents

RMB

Item

30 June 2022 

(Unaudited)

31 December 2021

   

Cash 5,062,399,645.78 4,812,923,667.75

Including: Cash on hand 878,777.03 1,231,520.24

Bank deposits readily available 

for payment 5,039,745,828.66 4,811,531,141.87

Other cash and bank balances 

readily available for payment 21,775,040.09 161,005.64

Balance of cash and cash equivalents 5,062,399,645.78 4,812,923,667.75
   

37.	 Assets with restricted ownership

RMB

Assets with restricted ownership

Balance at the 

end of the 

current period 

(unaudited)

Balance at the end of 

the prior year

   

Cash and bank balances (Note) 10,667,099.02 7,692,033.88
   

Note:	 At the end of the current period, the Company’s cash and bank balances with restricted ownership consist of 

security deposit placed in bank for the issuance of guarantee letter of RMB10,667,099.02 (31 December 2021: 

RMB7,692,033.88).
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1.	 BREAKDOWN OF NON-RECURRING PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD

RMB

Item Current period
  

Profit on disposal of assets 40,342,601.44

Government grants recognized in profit or loss (other than grants which are 

closely related to the Company’s business and are either in fixed amounts 

or determined under quantitative methods in accordance with the national 

standard) 9,060,267.68

Investment income acquired from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL 24,772,049.54

Profit or loss on fair value change from holding financial asset at FVTPL (Note 1) 10,450,275.32

Other non-operating income and expenses other than the aforesaid items (8,528,371.69)

Income tax effects (261,097.62)

Effects attributable to non-controlling shareholders (after tax) (361,924.52)
  

Total 75,473,800.15
  

Note 1:	 The principal business of Winshare Investment Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Xinhua Winshare, is investment holding. Its investment 

income from disposal and holding of financial assets at FVTPL and gains or losses from fair value changes are not recognized 

as non-recurring profit or loss. The investment income and loss of the fair value changes for the current period amounted to 

nil (prior period: nil) and RMB67,594,178.64 (prior period: RMB26,246,906.34).

Note 2:	 The cash dividends obtained during the investment period of other equity instruments held by Xinhua Winshare are not 

recognized as non-recurring profit or loss. The cash dividends distributed from such investments for the current period 

amounted to RMB71,588,800.00 (prior period: RMB56,742,400.00).

2.	 RETURN ON NET ASSETS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS”)

The return on net assets and EPS have been prepared by Xinhua Winshare in accordance with Information 

Disclosure and Presentation Rules for Companies Making Public Offering of Securities No. 9 – Calculation 

and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings per Share (Revised 2010) issued by China Securities 

Regulatory Commission.

Profit for the Reporting Period

Weighted average 

return on net 

assets (%)

EPS (RMB)

Basic EPS Diluted EPS
    

Net profit attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the parent company 6.11 0.58 N/A

Net profit after deduction of non-recurring 

profits or losses attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the Company 5.47 0.52 N/A
    

Xinhua Winshare has no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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